# Table of Contents

Agriculture	3
Antiquities	
Army	6
Art	
Associations	
Banks & Finance	
Books	
Bridges	
Buildings	
Cemeteries	
Charities	
Children	
Coast	
Commerce & Trade	
Communications	
Courts	
Crime & Punishment	
Customs & Excise	
Docks & Harbours	
Drainage	
Education	
Elections & Politics	
Emigration	
Entertainments & Amusements	
Expeditions	
Fairs	
Ferries	
Fires & Fire Brigade	41
Fishing	
Freemasonry	
Friendly & Benefit Societies	
Gardens & Parks	
Gas	
History	
Hospitals	
Housing	
Industries	
Inns	
Inventions	
Libraries	
Lifeboats & Lifesaving	55
Local Government	
Markets	62
Medicine	
Militia	64
Mills	
Museums	66
Natural History	67
Navigation	68
Navy	
Newspapers	
Occupations & Trades	
People	
Police	
Population	
Poverty & Poor Relief	
Prisons	
Property & Land	
Public Health	92

# Table of Contents

Railways	95
Religion	96
Roads	105
Shipping	106
Shops	112
Slavery	113
Smuggling	114
Sports & Games	115
Statues & Memorials	116
Streets	117
Strikes	119
Temperance	120
Theatres	121
Towns & Villages	122
Trade Unions and Work	123
Transport	124
Trinity House	125
Wars	126
Water	127
Weather	129
Whaling	130
Women	

#### Agriculture

## **Agriculture**

**Agricultural Labourers** 

Abolition of Statute Hirings at Driffield 25.12.75.8

Leader on wages 2.3.72.4, 9.3.72.4 Meeting at Patrington 23.3.72.6

And letter from Charles Lambert 2.3.72.7

Meeting Hessle 16.3.72.7

Butter

Report on new butter machine, could be local 9.2.67.2

Dairy

Pickering milk maid in court for adding urine to milk, horsewhipped by her employer, 1 month with hard labour, Mary Rayner 29.4.76.7

Harvest

Local harvest festivals 25.9.75.6 Prospects near Hull 19.8.76.5

Hirings

Abolition of Statute Hirings at Driffield 25.12.75.8

Livestock

Cattle

Cattle market

Application for removal of English Cattle Markets at Hull 30.11.67.6

For Hull 22.2.68.6

Meeting proposed new cattle market for Hull 23.9.76.5

Order for Cattle Market in Edward's Place 22.2.68.3

Cruelty

More cruelty to calves for white veal 20.7.67.6

Dealer

Presentation to Henry Snowden, foreign cattle dealer, Hull 26.1.67.7

Foot and mouth

6 cases of foot and mouth disease at Nafferton and 1 at Kilham 2.9.71.4

At Beverley 29.6.72.7 At Bridlington 19.2.76.7 At Driffield 9.11.72.7

Dying out at Driffield 10.5.73.7

More foot and mouth outbreaks in Driffield area 25.11.71.6

No new cases of foot and mouth reported in Driffield area 4.11.71.7

Outbreak in Gibson St 20.11.75.5

Plague

Case breach of cattle plague regulations 15.6.67.4

Case breach of cattle plague regulations, R Smeeton of Menethorpe 26.10.72.7

Case breach of Contagious Diseases (Animals) Act 5.8.71.5

Case diseased cattle for sale 2.12.71.7

Case of bringing diseased cattle to Hull market 23.10.75.5

Cattle plague boundary, meeting 19.10.67

Cattle Plague Committee Meeting 20.4.67.2, 5.10.67.6, 29.10.70.6, 13.5.71.6, 27.5.71.6,

9.12.71.6, 22.3.73.7, 27.9.73.6

Cattle plague outbreaks in Hull 3.8.72.5

Cattle plague report 28.9.72.2

Cattle plague reports including Patrington 28.9.72.2

Cattle plague returns 9.10.75.5

Cattle Plague still raging with great violence in Holderness 5.1.67.2

Meeting E R Chamber of Agriculture, cattle diseases 8.3.73.2

Meeting re Cattle Plague Orders 21.9.67.6

Newland case breach cattle plague regulations 2.11.72.5, 30.11.72.6

Outbreak of cattle plague at Preston 4.5.67.3 Outbreak of cattle plague in E R, Yapham 7.9.72.5 Outbreak of rinderpest in East Riding 14.9.72.7

Ref. cattle plague case and leader 17.8.72.5

### Agriculture

Report on cattle plague boundaries 28.9.67.6

Livestock continued

Report on Cattle plague 21.9.72.2, 12.10.72.2

Rinderpest and compensation meeting at Driffield 28.9.72.7

Rinderpest at Patrington, Mr Sanderson 14.9.72.7

Sanitary Committee meeting Re cattle plague 14.10.71.6

Serious outbreak of cattle disease in Hull 17.7.75.6

Pigs

Born at Hutton Cranswick with 2 heads, 4 eyes, 4 ears and 1 snout 6.6.74.3

Fat stock

Meeting to establish a fat stock market in Hull 25.1.67.7

Livestock Market

Meeting proposed livestock market 8.1.70.6

**Pasture Masters** 

Election of pasture masters at Beverley 27.2.75.5

**Ploughing** 

Keyingham Ploughing match 16.1.69.7

**Royal Agricultural Show** 

Further details Royal Show Hull 19.7.73.5

Leader on Royal Show ground, Anlaby Rd. 5.7.73.3

Long account of Royal Agricultural Show in Hull 12.7.73.6&8

Preparations for Royal Yorks. Show in Hull 24.5.73.6

Report on forthcoming Royal Show in Hull 28.6.73.6

Report on refreshment accommodation Royal Show visit to Hull 7.6.73.6

Stud

Sale of Earl of Yarborough's stud 20.3.75.8

### **Antiquities**

## **Antiquities**

Anglo Saxon

Discovery of Anglo Saxon remains at Sand Hill Cottage, Sancton 27.2.75.7

Remains found at How Hill, Kellythorpe, long account 15.10.70.7

**Barrows** 

Canon Greenwell lecture to Lit & Phil Barrows on the Yorkshire Wolds 15.4.71.7

Driffield

Discovery of skeletons while excavating for Driffield gasometer 15.1.76.7

**Fimber** 

Mortimer discoveries at Fimber 21.5.70.7

**Holy Trinity** 

Discovery at Holy Trinity of bricked up doorway 10.7.69.6

Discovery of ancient arch in Holy Trinity 20.6.68.6

Wolds

J R Mortimer discoveries on Yorks. Wolds 8.11.73.7

Roman

Report of Roman remains in Malton 19.1.67.5

Royal Archaeological Institute of Great Britain,

Hull meeting 29.6.67.4&6, 27.7.67.6, 10.8.67.6, 21.9.67.6,

Inaugural meeting 3.8.67.6&7

Report 3.8.67.4,

Royal Archaeological Society,

Arrangements for visit to Hull 9.3.67.2

Hull meeting 5.1.67.2

Tumuli

Canon Greenwell discoveries in tumuli near Rudston 4.12.69.3

Lecture on Tumuli on Yorkshire Wolds, Mr Evans 9.9.76.7

Report on tumuli on Yorks. Wolds, survey by Canon Greenwell 5.4.73.7

Army

Abyssinia

Letter from East Riding soldier in Abyssinia 30.5.68.4

**Barracks** 

Inauguration of new Artillery Barracks, Park St. 4.3.71.6

**East Riding Volunteers** 

At camp on Beverley Westwood 7.6.73.5

East Yorks. Artillery Volunteers

Inspection 4<sup>th</sup> East Yorks. Artillery Volunteers

Reg. orders 4<sup>th</sup> East Yorks. Artillery Volunteers, this is a regular feature

Report 4<sup>th</sup> E Yorks. Artillery Volunteers

20.1.72.6 30.1.75.5

East Yorks. Rifle Volunteers

Meeting 1<sup>st</sup> Corps E Y Rifle Volunteers 29.1.70.7

Reg. orders 1<sup>st</sup> Corps E Y Rifle Volunteers, this is a regular feature 30.1.75.5

**Hull Artillery Volunteers** 

Inspection Hull Artillery Volunteers 10.8.67.6, 29.8.74.6

**Hull Rifle Volunteers** 

**Encampment of Hull Rifle Volunteers** 7.8.75.6, 12.8.76.6

**Hull Volunteers** 

4.9.75.3 Inspection in Hull

Review of Hull Volunteers 10.8.72.6

Lincs. Volunteers

In camp at Thornton Abbey 29.6.72.8 Report Lincs. Volunteers in camp 27.6.74.6

Volunteers

Annual inspection of Volunteers at Hesslewood 6.8.70.7

Parade of Army Volunteers 3.9.70.6

## Art

## Stanwith

Late Dr Stanwith, a large oil portrait of this gent been placed in Beverley Town Hall, a gift from the family 27.4.67.6

## Walker

Portrait in oils of Mayor of Hull, Alderman Roberts, by James Walker 5.9.68.6

## Working Men's Art & Industrial Exhibition

Details Hull Industrial Exhibition 19.8.71.5

Leader on Working Men's Industrial Exhibition 26.2.70.4

Meeting proposed Working Men's Art & Industrial Exhibition 9.10.69.6

Meeting re Hull Working Men's Exhibition 20.5.71.5

Opening Working Men's Art and Industrial Exhibition 25.6.70.4&5

## **Associations**

### **Amalgamated Boot & Shoemakers Association**

Meeting No. 1 Branch Amalgamated Boot & Shoemakers Association at Green Man, Church Lane 3.5.73.5

## Amalgamated Society of Carpenters & Joiners

Meeting 29.6.67.4

### **Anti Income Tax Association**

Leader on Anti Income Tax Association 21.12.72.5, 11.1.73.3

Meeting Anti Income Tax Association 18.7.74.6

Meeting Hull & E R Anti Income Tax Association 9.12.71.6, 16.12.71.6, 6.1.72.5, 3.2.72.8, 17.2.72.6, 9.3.72.2, 4.5.72.5, 25.5.72.5, 24.8.72.5, 18.1.73.3, 15.3.73.5, 31.5.73.5, 9.1.75.5, 27.5.76.6

### **Anti Mill Society**

Meeting Hull Anti Mill Society 2.2.67.7, 27.7.67.6, 25.1.68.7, 29.1.70.6, 29.7.71.5, 22.7.76.5 Report Anti Mill Society 2.8.73.6

### **Association of Elementary Teachers**

Meeting Hull and District Association of Elementary Teachers 26.8.71.5

#### **Blind Institute**

Report Blind Institute 27.5.76.7

### **Burns Club**

Anniversary 1.2.73.7

Meeting Hull Burns Club 30.1.75.7

#### **Chemists Association**

Meeting Chemists Association 29.1.76.5

Meeting Hull Chemists Association 10.12.70.6, 9.12.71.6, 9.11.72.6, 26.4.73.5, 19.12.74, 16.12.76.6

## **Church Schoolmasters and mistresses Benevolent Association**

Meeting 17.12.70.5

### **Clerks and General Provident Association**

Meeting Hull Clerks and General Provident Association 25.1.71.6

### **Co-op Society**

South Myton Co-op Society meeting 20.7.67.6, 25.1.68.6

## **Deaf and Dumb Institute**

Letter 8.4.71.6

Meeting Hull Deaf and Dumb institute 6.5.76.7

Report Deaf and Dumb Institute 15.5.75.7

Meeting Hull & E R Institute for the Deaf and Dumb 15.2.73.6

### **Guardian Society**

Meeting Hull Guardian Society 7.5.70.6, 4.2.71.6, 11.3.71.7, 7.12.72.5, 22.2.73.5, 5.2.76.6

### **Harmonic Society**

Meeting Hull Harmonic Society 6.4.67.5, 25.4.68.7, 30.5.68.6 30.1.69.4, 24.4.69.5, 30.4.70.7, 21.5.70.5, 18.2.71.5, 25.3.71.5, 8.4.71.5, 3.6.71.6, 17.2.72.6, 8.3.73.6, 31.5.73.7, 25.12.75.8

Ref. to Mr Skelton, Dead March in Saul played 22.2.68.6

### **Hebrew Relief Society**

Table, Hull Hebrew Relief Society 2.2.67.4

#### **Hull Club**

Proposed new Hull club, to be near the Exchange 27.1.72.5

## **Keel and Lighter Owners Association**

Meeting Hull Keel and Lighter Owners Association 6.3.75.5

## Literary & Philosophical Society

Dinner to Dr Kelburne King by Lit & Phil, long account 19.4.73.6

E A Freeman lecture on Edward I, Lit & Phil 7.12.67.6

E A Freeman, lecture on the Origin of the English Race, to Lit & Phil 8.1.70.5

George Dawson lecture on America to Hull Lit & Phil
George Dawson lecture on William Cobbett to Lit & Phil
15.2.68.6

Inaugural address Lit & Phil ref. to Marvel statue presented 12.11.70.6 Kelburne King address to Lit & Phil - refs. to Charles Dickens 6.11.69.6

Lecture by E J Reed, CE, to Lit & Phil, Strains to which ships are subjected 13.4.72

Lecture by J Burtt, Contributions to the medieval history of Hull 4.1.68.6

Lecture Geology of Western Lincolnshire, F M Burton to Lit & Phil 14.3.68.4

#### Associations

Lecture Lit & Phil Decline of Nations as affected by purity of race 8.3.73.7

Lecture on Public Health by Dr Elliott - Lit & Phil 12.2.70.6

Literary & Philosophical Society continued

Meeting Hull Lit & Phil 1.5.75.5

Lecture on the Governors of Hull 14.9.67.6

Rev. A Jukes lecture on the Drama of Western Civilisation 16.2.67.7

Master Cartmen and Rulleymens Association

Meeting Master Cartmen and Rulleymens Association 20.6.74.2

**Master Tailors Association** 

Hull Master Tailors Association formed 20.4.67.2

**Mechanics Institute** 

Annual meeting 22.6.67.6, 20.6.68.6

Inquest on James Young, bookbinder and ex librarian of Mechanics Institute, lost in filth and vermin, 63 11.4.74.5

J Symons lecture on Hull previous to the visit of Edward I, Mechanics Institute 14.12.67.6

Lecture by Rev. J Scott on Gothic Architecture 23.2.67.3

Lecture list at Mechanics Institute 30.11.67.6

Meeting Driffield Mechanics Institute 8.1.76.6

Meeting 12.2.70.6, 1.7.71.5, 23.11.72.5, 25.1.73.5, 13.2.75.5

Re Free Library question 25.7.68.6

**National Education League** 

Meeting of Hull branch 27.1.72.7

North Eastern Railway Sick Club

Meeting N E Rail Sick Club 13.2.75.5

**Patrington Club** 

Report on Patrington Club feast 4.7.68.7

**Ploughing Society** 

Meeting Skidby and Cottingham Ploughing Society 30.1.75.7

**Pomological Society** 

Meeting Cottingham Pomological Society 8.11.73.7

**Prevention of Cruelty to Animals** 

Annual meeting Society for Prevention of Cruelty to Animals, 16.3.67.3

Letter E R Society Prevention of Cruelty to Animals 23.1.75.3

**Property Owners Society** 

Annual meeting Hull Property Owners Society 1.2.68

Repeal of Contagious Diseases Act

Meeting Association for Repeal of Contagious Diseases Act 21.10.76.5

**Rivermens Association** 

Meeting Hull Rivermens Association 2.9.76.5

Royal Archaeological Institute of Great Britain,

Hull meeting 29.6.67.4&6, 27.7.67.6, 10.8.67.6, 21.9.67.6

Inaugural meeting 3.8.67.6&7

Report 3.8.67.4

Royal Archaeological Society

Arrangements for visit to Hull 9.3.67.2,

Hull meeting 5.1.67.2

Scientific Association

Meeting of Hull Scientific Association 31.7.75.5

**Shipmasters Association** 

Meeting Hull Shipmasters Association 9.1.75.5

**Society Distressed Foreigners** 

Meeting in Hull 3.2.72.6

Society for Teaching the Blind

Meeting Hull Society for Teaching the Blind13.6.68.6

St. Mary's Recreation Club

Report 19.12.68.6

**Subscription Mill Society** 

Meeting Hull Subscription Mill Society 25.7.68.6, 5.2.70.7, 3.8.72.5, 1.2.73.5, 23.8.73.5, 17.7.75.5

**Systematic Beneficence Society** 

### Associations

Meeting 16.2.67.2&3

**Vocal Society** 

Meeting Hull Vocal Society 21.5.70.6, 17.12.70.6, 22.4.71.5, 25.11.71.6, 25.5.72.6, 29.3.73.6,

3.10.74.5, 13.3.75.6

Hull Vocal Society 24.5.73.3, 10.10.74.6, 21.11.74.5

Working Men's Club

Conference of working men's clubs at Leeds - Hull reps 20.4.67.5

Lecture by Alderman Roberts on Household Suffrage, to Working Men's Club 23.3.67.2

Meeting in aid of the infirmary 8.6.67.7

**Yorkshire Amateur Musical Society** 

Revival 29.5.69

YPI

Annual meeting 2.2.67.3

Emily Faithful lecture YPI on Prostitution and claims of Women 19.3.70.6

## Banks & Finance

## Banks & Finance

## London & Yorks. Bank

Near completion of London & Yorks. Bank in Silver St. 3.1.74.5

## Books

## **Books**

Crickmer

Reference to Rev. W R Crickmer, History of Collegiate Church of St. John of Beverley 17.9.70.6

**Directory** 

New Directory of Hull published 1.2.68.1

**Domesday Book** 

Ref. to Domesday Book for Lincs. 18.3.76.8

**Symons** 

Hullinia - Understood Councillor Symons writing work on early history of Hull 30.9.71.5

Visitors Guide to Hull by John Symons published 17.8.67.6

Tickell's

History of Independency in Hull, extract from Tickell's History of Hull 11.1.68.7

**Thompson** 

Researches into History of Welton and Neighbourhood, Thomas Thompson, long account 9.4.70.6

Todd

C S Todd, 2<sup>nd</sup> contribution to history in Hull - Hull from Henry VII to Henry VIII 24.4.69.4

## **Bridges**

Channel

Meeting proposed tunnel under the Channel 30.1.75.3

Bridge

The Bridge, a poem 31.5.73.3

**Bridge Committee** 

Meeting Bridge Committee 1.5.75.7, 22.5.75.5

Hull

Leader on proposed new bridge above North Bridge over river Hull

26.3/70/6

Meeting proposed bridge over River Hull on a line with Scale Lane

23.9.71.5

Meeting proposed new bridge over river Hull 3.4.69.4

Move for another bridge over the river Hull 30.1.69.6

Proposed new bridge over River Hull, Salthouse Lane - Clarence St. 2.1.75.3

Humber

Bridge over the Humber, poem 27.2.69.1

Letter on proposed bridge across the Humber 26.10.67.8

**North Bridge** 

Accident to machinery of North Bridge 7.9.72.6

Government inquiry proposed North Bridge 25.3.71.8

Letter on North Bridge drinking fountain 23.7.70.6

Meeting re new North Bridge 18.5.69.4, 6.12.73.3

New North Bridge opened 18.6.70.6

North Bridge Committee Meeting 23.8.73.4, 26.6.75.5

North Bridge ram broken 24.5.73.5

Property Committee, Letter on new North Bridge 13.2,69.5

Property Committee meeting North Bridge 13.6.68.6, 9.4.70.6, 7.1.71.6, 6.7.72.6

Property Committee meeting re widening North Bridge 12.1.67.5

Report on North Bridge 14.6.73.5

Tenders for engine work, North Bridge 3.6.71.4

Works Committee meeting New North Bridge 1.5.69.4

Pontoon

Committee meeting 16.11.67.4

New Holland pontoon report 6.11.69.6

Meeting proposed pontoon 9.3.67.2

Property Committee meeting Proposed pontoon for Humber 4.11.76.6

Rail

Letter re rail bridge and crossing Wellington St. and Manor House St. 26.1.67.8

**Sculcoates** 

Opening of Sculcoates new bridge 16.1.75.6

South Bridge

Case recently a sergeant charged toll on South Bridge 5.10.72.5

Description and details of new South Bridge 25.1.68.5

Fatal accident on South Bridge 1.2.68.6

Meeting South Bridge Co. 27.2.75.5

Property Committee meeting re opening and shutting of new South Bridge 11.1.68.6

Report South Bridge 29.2.68.6

Whitefriargate Bridge

Report on plan to widen street from Whitefriargate Bridge to Wellington St. 1.11.73.6

## **Buildings**

## See Also EDUCATION, RELIGION

**Barmston St** 

Tenders for erection of malt kiln, Barmston St., for W Glossop 10.6.71.4

**Beetons Villa** 

Letter on Mr Beeton and vitrified bricks used for 12.1.67.3

**Bridlington** 

Foundation stone laid new Masonic Hall at Bridlington, Londesborough Lodge 13.2.75.7

**Brigg** 

Tenders for building a chapel at Brigg Workhouse 1.7.76.1

Coltman St

Boiler explosion at residence of Talbot Constable, son of Sir Talbot Constable. House has frontages on Hessle Rd. and Coltman St. 5.1.67.3

Inquest on Boiler explosion, Coltman St 26.1.67.4

Cottingham

Tenders for erecting a dwelling house at Cottingham, Wm. Kirby 15.6.67.1

Dansom Lane

Tenders for erection of steam flour mill, engine and boiler house, chimney, stabling and 2 houses to be erected in Dansom Lane. Dale & Kershaw 13.5.71.4

Dock Offices

Foundation stone of new Dock Offices 18.4.68.7 Opening of new Dock Offices, long account 7.10.71.6

Report on clock on new Dock Offices 26.11.70.6

Report on new Dock Offices 16.11.67.4

East Ella House

Tenders for altering East Ella House for Robert Jameson, this later became White City, William Botterill 16.3.72.4

East Halton

Tenders for erection of master's house East Halton 18.10.73.4

Hornsea

Dinner to workmen building magnificent private house near Hornsea Station 15.2.73.7 Contents of Football Green Villa for sale, late Rev. Christopher Fonge, Hornsea 26.4.73.1

Hull

Short report of Hull's progress taken from The Architect 13.5.71

Kingston St

Tenders for erection of engine shed, boiler house, Kingston St., Hull 13.9.73

**Orphan Home** 

Laying of foundation stone of new wing of Orphan Home in Park St. 9.5.68.6

Paragon Stables

Fall of Paragon Stables, property between Paragon Inn and Queen's Theatre 25.12.69.6

Skin Market

Foundation stone laid Hull Skin Market in Hull 6.7.67.6

**Sproatley Grange** 

Destruction by fire, Henry Robson 2.2.67.3

Inquest on fire 9.2.67.3

Sugar House

Adjourned inquest on fall of Sugar House 24.10.68.6

Examination Sugar House site 10.10.68.6 Fall of Sugar House, long account 26.9.68.4 Inquest on fall of Sugar House 14.11.68.6 Inquest on fall of the Sugar House 3.10.68.6

Letter proposed relief for Sugar House victims families 21.11.68.4

Works Committee meting Re Sugar House 3.10.68.4&6

Warehouse

Opening of new seed warehouse, High St., long account
Opening of new warehouse in Trippett for J Hamilton
16.7.70.6

W B Nightingale, wholesale grocer, warehouse burnt down, Finkle Street one of a number of fires in Hull 13.11.75.6

#### Cemeteries

## **Cemeteries**

**Beverley** 

St Martin's Uproar at St Martin's Burial Board meeting at Beverley 5.10.67.8

St. Mary's, Beverley Trouble at St. Mary's, Beverley, Dissenters and burial grounds 27.4.67.4

**Bridlington** 

Meeting Bridlington proposed new burial ground 14.12.72.6, 18.1.73.6

**Burial Committee** 

Meeting 6.7.67.6, 9.1.69.6, 25.9.69.6, 11.3.71.6, 6.9.73, 30.1.75.5, 22.5.75.5, 5.6.75.5

At Sutton 10.4.75.3

Re Hedon Road Cemetery 26.10.72.7, 10.3.73.5

**Burial Ground Committee** 

Meeting, Hedon Road Cemetery 30.11.72.5

Cottingham

Meeting of parishioners re proposed burial ground at Cottingham 6.3.69.7

Proposed Cottingham cemetery 15.6.67.7

**Hedon Road** 

Disgraceful scene at Hedon Road cemetery 2.4.70.6

Tenders for erection of cemetery chapels Hedon Road plans by F Bartram Payton 19.4.73.4

**Hessle Road** 

Meeting re extension Hessle Road cemetery 11.3.71.6

More account of Hessle Road Cemetery 4.3.71.6

Hornsea Burial Board

Meeting 3.4.75.7, 5.6.75.5

**Hull Cemetery Co.** 

Meeting 4.3.71.6

Report 8.3.73.5

Laceby

Report on new cemetery at Laceby 10.7.75.6

Sculcoates

Consecration of Sculcoates Burial Ground 8.2.68.6

New burial ground for Sculcoates 18.5.67.6

Winterton

Tenders for erection of two chapels and house, Winterton cemetery 19.2.76.1

## **Charities**

### See Also POVERTY & POOR RELIEF

#### Almshouse

Case at Hessle, illegal possession of an almshouse 24.8.72.7

Report on Hessle almshouses 5.6.75.7

Trouble at Watson's Almshouse, Hessle - ejection of tenant 13.6.74.6

#### Charities

Government inquiry respecting Hull Charities, including Hull Grammar School 27.4.72.6

## **Charity Organisation Society**

Meeting 29.1.76.5, 1.4.76.5

Meeting in Hull for formation of Charity Organisation Society 6.11.75.3

### Charterhouse

Death of Rev. J H Bromby in 98<sup>th</sup> year. Master of the Charterhouse and late vicar of Holy Trinity Church 28.3.68.7&8

Leader on appointment of new Master of the Charterhouse 18.4.68.4

Rev. W H Kemp lecture on the Charterhouse 10.4.69.4

### Cogans

Leader on Grammar School - Cogans and Ferries Charities 25.6.70.5&6

### **Ferries**

Leader on Grammar School - Cogans and Ferries Charities 25.6.70.5&6

## **Hull Lying-in Charity**

Meeting 12.10.67.6

### Hull Seamens Orphanage, Spring Bank,

Report 29.6.67.6, 14.9.67.6

## **Sailors Orphan Home**

Inauguration of new Sailors Orphan Home, Park St. 10.8.67.6

Meeting 8.6.67.6, 5.6.69.4

## **Temporary Home for Fallen Women**

Report 12.10.67.6

## Training Ship (see EDUCATION)

Proposed Training Ship for Hull 30.3.67.2

Meeting

Proposed 6.7.67.4

Selection of ship, lists 20.4.67.2&3

## **Trinity House**

**Charity Commissioners** 

New scheme for Hull Trinity House Charity Commissioners 3.7.75.6

Charity Inspector

Visit of charity inspector to Trinity House 4.7.74.5

### Turner's

List of persons who have applied to Turner's Charity 21.12.67.2

## Children

Body

Hull boy found in field in Grange St. Joseph Cowling 2 12.4.73.6

Of a child found at South End 1.5.75.5

Of female child found in water closet Rail Co., Nelson St. Found drowned verdict 28.12.67.6

**Child Maintenance** 

Case Kirby Underdale disputed 22.5.75.7

**Children's Hospital Committee** 

Meeting Children's Hospital Committee 29.1.76.6

Cruelty

Case of cruelty, Hull children 17.4.69

Gross inhumanity to child by its mother 23.1.75.5

Ill-treatment of fisherboy 14.12.67.7

W Charlesworth, headmaster, Hull Workhouse School, in court for assaulting boy of 8 11.4.74.5

**Education** 

Lecture by Rev. Charles Garrett on the Education of Children at George Yard Chapel 12.10.67.7

Hospital for Poor Children

Local gossip - Hospital for poor children, swimming baths 15.1.76.6

Hospital for Sick Children

Long letter on hospitals for sick children 16.11.72.3

Meeting to establish cottage homes for sick children 7.12.72.6

Report Hospital for Sick Children 2.1.75.6

Report Hull Children's Hospital 20.11.75.5

Hull Orphan Home, Park St.

Annual meeting 6.6.68.6

Inauguration of new Sailors Orphan Home, Park St. 10.8.67.6

Opened for Divine service by licence Hall of building 30.5.68.6

Opening of new homes for orphans in Park St. 3.7.69.5

Sculpture on front of Park Street Orphans Home by Keyworth 14.11.68.6

Hull Seamen's Orphanage, Spring Bank

Annual meeting 20.6.68.6

Opening of Wilson Wing, Hull Seamen's Orphanage 5.2.76.6

Report 29.6.67.6, 14.9.67.6, 20.6.74.3

To be enlarged 5.2.70.6

Murder

At Boston, W Harrod 11 killed Arthur Hanley 4 4.3.76.3

Child murder at Kirk Ella 23.11.72.5

Child murder in Hull 20.4.67.2, 24.5.73

Child murder in Osborne St. 31.5.73.5

Osborne St. murder trial 2.8.73.7

Murder of infant in Hull 27.1.72.4

**Orphanages** 

Children of Park Street and Spring Bank orphanages shown round 'Bessemer' steamer 17.6.76

## Coast

**Down the Humber** 

Article 12.6.75.3

East Yorks.

Rev. F O Morris and loss of land in East Yorks., reported from Pall Mall Gazette 2.9.71.5

Hornsea

First pile of new Hornsea Pier driven 8.6.72.7

Spurn

Case removal of shingle from Spurn 7.8.69.6

**Towns meeting** 

Re foreshore question 6.5.76.6

Withernsea

Report on Withernsea new pier 27.2.75.6

Commerce & Trade

Cattle Market

Application for removal of English Cattle Markets at Hull 30.11.67.6

For Hull 22.2.68.6

Order for Cattle Market in Edward's Place 22.2.68.3

**Chamber of Commerce** 

Meeting Hull Chamber of Commerce 9.10.75.7

Coal

Report on coal trade of Hull 18.1.73.6

Commerce

State of commerce in Hull in 1876 30.12.76.6

Fat Stock Market

Meeting to establish a fat stock market in Hull 25.1.67.7

Fish

Address on local fish trade by J W Ansell, fish smack owner 27.11.69.6

Leader Fishing Trade and Dock Co. 15.11.73.5

Meeting at Preston on proposal of Hull Fish Trade Association to purchase Salt End Ings to carry on fishing

trade of Hull from there 3.5.73.7

Report fish trade between Hull and London 16.3.72.5

Report Hull fish trade 26.10.67.6, 14.12.67.4

German Atlantic

'Hohenzollern' Launch of 1st of 4 steamers for German Atlantic trade, 'Hohenzollern' Earles yard 31.5.73.5

Hull

Local Review of the year, Hull. Includes commerce, house building, trade, long account 2.1.69.4

25.1.68.8

Long account, trade and commerce in Hull in 1873 and table of events 3.1.74.6

Report Trade of Hull 19.6.76.5

Trade and Commerce in 1869 1.1.70.4&5

Trade of Hull 26.6.75.6

**Keel and Lighter Owners Association** 

Meeting Hull Keel and Lighter Owners Association 6.3.75.5

**Linseed Cake** 

Meeting Hull Linseed Cake trade 21.9.72.6

Liquor

Conference on liquor traffic in Hull 1.4.76.6

Letter on high price of butcher's meat

Meat

Reciprocity Meeting in Hull (Hull Trades Defence Association) 13.11.69.6

Skin

Foundation stone laid Hull Skin Market in Hull 6.7.67.6

Trades Council

Hull Trades Council meeting 7.9.67.4

**Wool Trade** 

Report on in Hull and district 2.3.67.2

## Communications

# **Communications**

# Post Master of Hull

Requires new premises or land on which a post office can be erected 23.11.72.4

## Courts

## **Courts**

## Stipendiary

Debate on salary of Stipendiary Magistrate 4.7.74.6 Salary, letter 9.2.67.2 Stipendiary Magistrate assaulted 26.8.76.6

## See also COURTS, POLICE, PRISONS

Accident

Alarming accident at Blundell Spence 18.12.75.5

Case attempting to derail train, Hull to Hessle, 3 months 7.3.74.3 Fatal accident in Hull brothel - pensioner in Trundle St. 7.3.68.4

Arson

Attempt to set Southampton Training Ship on fire 24.1.74.2

Case re Training Ship 31.1.74.5

Case Southampton, 12 and 18 months 11.4.74.5

Assault

Case at Cottingham 27.7.72.7

Case of assault in Hull Synagogue Elias Casrel v Louis Israel 26.10.72.8

Case Rev. W L Hughes late curate of Sculcoates for assaulting a policeman, 3 refs. 28.8.75.5

Watch Committee And ref. Hughes case 4.9.75.3&5

Stipendiary Magistrate assaulted 26.8.76.6

W Charlesworth, headmaster, Hull Workhouse School, in court for assaulting boy of 8 11.4.74.5

**Baby Farming** 

At Sutton 3.10.74.5 Case at Beverley 12.12.74

Bankruptcy

Creditors meeting re Martin Samuelson 22.3.73.8

John Rylands bankrupt, link with Kingston Cotton Mill 22.10.70.7

Of Rev. G T Clare, rector of Bainton 18.5.72.7

**Breach of Regulations** 

Case breach of Board of Health building regulations 29.10.70.5

Case breach of regulations Board of Health, 145 Market Place 1.6.72.7

Case breach of local building regulations 25.1.68.6 Case breach of cattle plague regulations 15.6.67.4

Case breach of cattle plague regulations, R Smeeton of Menethorpe 26.10.72.7

Newland case breach cattle plague regulations 2.11.72.5, 30.11.72.6

Case breach of Contagious Diseases (Animals) Act 5.8.71.5

Case breach of Education Act 5.8.76.5 Case breach of Factory Act 2.7.70.6

Important case, breach of Factory Act - Archibald & Stool, binders 1.7.71.6

Cottingham night soil collector, breach of Highways Act 29.6.72.7 Case Capt. George Soulsby breach Prevention of Cholera 19.8.71.6

Case breaches Workshop Regulation Act

Burglaries

At Hull chapels 14.8.75.5

Burglary season in Hull 23.11.67 21.8.75.5

More burglaries in Hull

**Capital Punishment** Execution of Louth murdered Peter Blanchard at Lincoln 14.8.75.3

**Church Rates** 

Rev. R A Redford and others in court for not paying church rates 24.4.69.6

Crime

Criminal police returns Hull 29.2.68.4 Hull Criminal returns in 1868 3.4.69.5 Statistics for crime in Hull, 1871 16.3.72.6

Statistics Hull 1870 4.3.71.7 The years crime in Hull 6.4.67.2

Cruelty

Case cruelty to fisherlad 23.10.69.5 Case cruelty to horses 5.6.75.7 Case ill-treating a lunatic 26.10.72.7

Case of cruelty to a cat 12.6.75.5, 23.1.75.5 Flogging a prisoner in Hull Gaol 13.2.69.4

Gross inhumanity to child by its mother 23.1.75.5

**Cruelty continued** 

Hull Local Board of Health meeting Long account, case of alleged neglect Sculcoates Board Union 29.1.76.6

More details alleged neglect at Sculcoates Union 5.2.76.6

Ill-treatment of fisherboy 14.12.67.7

Wholesale horse breaking in Hull 13.2.75.5

Disturbance

Case disturbances among Hull gasmen 14.12.72.6

Case disturbances in Hull 23.11.72.5

Serious disturbance in Hull Market Place 2.9.73.5

**Embezzlement** 

Case of embezzlement from Infirmary 18.9.75.6

**Explosion** 

Inquest on Hull petroleum explosion 11.5.72.5, 25.5.72.6

Merrikins Varnish Factory, Trippett 17.8.72.5

Firearms

Case seizure of firearms in Hull 17.8.72.6

Extensive seizure of firearms in Hull, from continent 13.7.72.5

Fraud

Case Humber Ironworks, charge of false prospectus 3.7.69.6, 10.7.69.6

Defalcations of Borough Treasurer, suicide of accountant

Meeting Town Council re defalcations by Town Treasurer, long account 23.9.76.6

More Corporation defalcations 21.10.76.5, 28.10.76.6 Report on Corporation frauds 14.10.76.6, 18.11.76.6

Serious defalcations Hull Borough accounts 7.10.76.6, 16.12.76.5

Parochial frauds in Hull 21.10.76.6

Serious Parochial frauds in Hull 14.10.76.8

**Gypsies** 

In court at Cottingham 25.1.73.6

Heresy

Voycey appeal 19.11.70.7

Case Rev. Charles Voycey rector of Healaugh 12.11.70.5

Leader on Voycey, Colenso, Newman 19.11.70.5

Prosecution of Rev. Charles Voysey for heresy 4.12.69.3

**Immorality** 

Vicar of Ingoldmells

Charged with immorality with a female, Edwards 30.5.68

Charged with immorality with two women - had one leg amputated 6.6.68.8

**Impersonation** 

Tichborne meeting in Hull 4.3.76.7

**Inquest** 

On Dansom Lane Oil Mill victims 7.10.76.5

On death in machinery in Hull 29.5.75.5

**Libel Case** 

W C Leng v Earl and Countess of Sefton 12.11.70.7

Litter

Notice prosecution for throwing orange peel on footpath 4.1.68.1

Misconduct

Robert Meadley Tarbotton apprentice to Moses Johnson of Ottringham, case of misconduct as apprentice 22.6.72

Mortality

Of Hull, 1868 9.1.68.4

Murder

'Sappho' case 23.1.75.6, 13.3.75.6, 20.3.75.6

And attempted suicide in S S 'Sappho' Wilson liner 16.1.75.5

Trail and sentence 'Sappho' murder 20.3.75.5

At Deaf and Dumb Institute, Dock St. (special issue) 27.3.71.2

More details murder at Deaf and Dumb institute 1.4.71.5

York Assizes Charles Sleight and Deaf and Dumb 5.8.71.6

Acquittal of Charles Sleight, manager of Deaf and Dumb Asylum, Dock St., for murder 31.7.71.5

Murder continued

Emma Starkie, Coughy St. 21.1.71.5

Adjourned inquest Emma Starkie murder 4.2.71.6 Correspondence re Emma Starkie murder 21.1.71.8

Inquest on Emma Starkie 4.3.71.5

Report Emma Starkie murder 28.1.71.5

Watch Committee meeting And Emma Starkie murder 4.3.71.5

At Beverley 6.7.67.4, 13.7.67.4

Exhumation of bodies 27.7.67.4

At Boston, W Harrod 11 killed Arthur Hanley 4 4.3.76.3

Child murder at Kirk Ella 23.11.72.5

Child murder in Hull 20.4.67.2, 24.5.73 Child murder in Osborne St. 31.5.73.5 Osborne St. murder trial 2.8.73.7

Double murder at Leven 17.6.71.7

Hull boy found in field in Grange St. Joseph Cowling 2 12.4.73.6

Inquest on Grange St. murder victim 26.4.73.5

Murder in Roper St 29.4.76.7, 20.5.76.7

Murder of infant in Hull 27.1.72.4

Mutiny

Case of on a ship in the Humber, The Foundling 5.1.67.2

Nuisance

Case Thomas Wilson Sons & Co. smoke nuisance 4.3.71.6

Case, mustard manufacturer in Baker St. nuisance to be abated, James Marks 13.12.73.5

Large supplies of fish seized by Nuisance Inspector of Grimsby 3.7.75.8

Letter on Lowgate nuisance 8.8.68, 12.10.72.5 Report on smoke nuisance on steamers 11.3.71.6

Case objectionable manufactory in Towns, G W Hart, cake & manure, Stoneferry 19.8.76.6

Pickering milk maid in court for adding urine to milk, horsewhipped by her employer, 1 month with hard

labour, Mary Rayner 29.4.76.7

Perjury

Case perjury charges against Hull police 19.3.70.5

**Poisoning** 

Hannah Thorley on poisoning charge death of John King son of late station master at Beverley 6.7.67.4

**Prostitution** 

Brothel case, Bourne St. 13.9.73.5

Case disorderly houses and the police 10.6.71.5

Court case house of ill fame 22.8.74.5 Disorderly house case in Hull 20.5.71.6

Fatal accident in Hull brothel - pensioner in Trundle St. 7.3.68.4

Rape

Case, Cottingham16.3.72.7

Robbery

Case of a garrotte robberies 29.4.71.5

Case of Robberies from smacks

Case extensive robbery from Hull Dock Co. 2.10.75.5

Case extensive robbery of books, Church Institute 25.3.71.5

Extensive robbery of tobacco in Hull 30.1.69.4 Garotters at work in Hull - English St. 11.3.71.6

Shooting

Rev. F O Morris on Sheffield wasters shooting seabirds at Brid and Flamborough 6.4.67.5

Smoking

Case smoking in a rail carriage, Malton 3.4.75.7

Smuggling

Extensive smuggling case 18.3.76.6

Serious smuggling of tobacco case 28.8.75.5

Starvation

Case of death by starvation of fisherman's wife, Grimsby 30.1.75.7

Theft

351lbs of beef taken from larder of Rev. G W Holto, Barton 2.2.67.5

Beverley bicycle case, theft 9.4.70.6

Charles Marshall, miller, in court or stealing a canary property of Robert Marshall, landlord of Holderness Inn

- 40s and costs or 2 months 30.9.71.6

Toll

Case - right of charging toll on cyclists going through Newland Toll Bar 12.6.69.6

Case recently a sergeant charged toll on South Bridge 5.10.72.5

Trials

Newmarsh v Clark, application for faculty to enlarge Hessle Church and opposition 7.12.67.6

McCormick v Dock Co. 27.4.72.6 Norwood v Plimsoll 14.6.73.5

Reckitt Bros. v Hull Board of Health - Sutton Drain 16.5.68.6

Roberts v Blanchard fishing smack case 14.8.75.5 W C Leng v Earl and Countess of Sefton 12.11.70.7

**Unwholesome Goods** 

Case bad fish for sale 16.11.72.5 Case in Hull bad mussels 28.9.72.5

Case West Hull fish dealers and unfit mussels
Cases destruction of 600 tons of oysters, Hull
18.5.72.5

Vaccination

Conviction under Vaccination Act 18.7.68.6

Vagrancy

Cottingham, Carafa Carafa a Negro vagrant drunk and riotous 3.5.73.7

Wasting Water

Case of wasting water, Lime St., Groves, occupant has a water closet 6.5.71.5

## **Customs & Excise**

To let Watch House, Humber St.

Lately vacated by H M Customs 30.9.71.5

**Custom House** 

Foundation stone of new Custom House, Grimsby 2.8.73.8

## **Docks & Harbours**

#### Albert Dock

Foundation stone laid of two new docks west of Albert Dock 22.4.76.6

Letter on Albert Dock 11.3.71.5

Letter on roadway to Albert Dock 9.4.70.6

#### **Bridlington**

Meeting Bridlington to form Harbour of Refuge 4.3.71.7

### Dock Co

Annual meeting Hull Dock Co. 5.2.70.6, 4.2.71.7, 3.2.72.5, 7.2.74.2

Case extensive robbery from Hull Dock Co. 2.10.75.5

Case McCormick v Dock Co. 27.4.72.6 Dinner centenary of Hull Dock Co. 24.5.73.6

Election of Secretary to Hull Dock Co. 5.10.67.6

Meeting Hull Dock Co. 26.1.67.4, 25.5.68.4, 30.1.69.6, 6.2.69.6, 6.2.75.6

On resignation of Mr Huffam, secretary 31.8.67.4

Resignation of Secretary 25.11.76.6

#### **Dock Extension**

Letter on dock extension in Hull 29.4.76.3 Leader on Hull dock extensions 22.4.76.5

## **Dock Offices**

Foundation stone of new Dock Offices 18.4.68.7

Meeting re new street from Carlisle St. to Dock Offices 18.10.73.7

Opening of new Dock Offices, long account 7.10.71.6 Report on clock on new Dock Offices 26.11.70.6

Report on new Dock Offices 16.11.67.4

## **Dock Works**

Details on new rail and dock works at Hull 15.11.73.5

### **Ferry Boat Dock**

Leader on Ferry Boat Dock 1.7.71.4

Leader on proposed filling up of Ferry Boat Dock 9.7.70.4

Mr Billany and objections to filling in Ferry Boat Dock 19.3.70.6

Report on filling up of Ferry Boat Dock 24.6.71.5

Filling up of Ferryboat Dock 25.9.75.5

## **Graving Dock**

Case Hull Corporation and their Graving Dock 21.8.75.6

Report Corporation Graving Dock 3.7.75.7

## **New Dock**

Notice to form a new dock 29.4.76.4

### West Dock

Opening of new West Dock plans 3.7.69.6

## Drainage

## See also AGRICULTURE, PUBLIC HEALTH

**Barton** 

Letter on Barton drainage 15.2.73.7

Beetonville

Leader on drainage of Beetonville 16.3.72.5

Sculcoates Board of Guardians meeting re drainage of Beetonville, Dairycoates, etc. 13.5.71.6

Boulevard

Contract for new Boulevard between Anlaby Road and Humber Bank, drainage, etc. 17.6.71.1

Coltman St

Tender for drainage works, brick sewer west of Coltman St. 12.10.72.4

Day St.

Letter on drainage of Day St. 13.3.69.5

**Derringham Estate** 

Sanitary Committee meeting On Derringham estate drainage 29.6.67.6

**Drainage Works** 

Report Mr Garbutt's drainage works 17.10.74.5

Hessle

Meeting Hessle ratepayers re drainage of parish 2.3.72.3

Hornsea

Report proposed Hornsea drainage works 10.10.74.6

Newington

Government inspector Newington drainage 6.9.73.6

**Outfall Drain** 

Proposed outfall drain, Hull, Newington & Cottingham 28.3.74.2&3

Stoneferry

Drainage of Stoneferry 15.7.76.6

Local Government Inquiry Drainage of Stoneferry 8.7.76.5

Report on drainage of Sutton and Stoneferry 2.10.75.5

Work starting to drain Stoneferry 26.6.75.5

**Sutton Drain** 

Case re cleaning of Sutton Drain 4.12.69.6

Case Reckitt Bros. v Hull Board of Health - Sutton Drain 16.5.68.6

Sutton

Report on drainage of Sutton and Stoneferry 2.10.75.5

**West District** 

Letter on West District drainage 19.12.68.7, 26.12.68.6

Report West District Drainage proposed gratuity to surveyor 25.7.68

Completion of West Drainage works 13.6.68.4

See also RELIGION

**Association of Elementary Teachers** 

Meeting Hull and District Association of Elementary Teachers 26.8.71.5

**Baker Street** 

Opening new organ in Baker Street Schools, built by Mr Cuthbert 27.3.75.5

**Board Schools** 

Meeting Lincoln Street Board School 30.10.75.5

Report 1<sup>st</sup> Board School for Hull, long account, Daltry St. 1.3.73.6

Opening of 1<sup>st</sup> Board School, Daltry St. 10.1.74.6

Foundation stone laid new Board Schools, Driffield, corner of large grass field belonging to Lady Downe

22.3.73.6

Opening new Board Schools Driffield 29.8.74, 26.9.74.7

Report Board Schools in Hull 9.1.75.7

Brantingham

HMI report on Brantingham and Ellerker School 17.5.73.6

**British Schools** 

Meeting Day St. British Schools 28.2.74.5

Bubwith

School for Bubwith and Spaldington 27.2.75.7

**Christ Church Night School** 

Meeting 25.2.71.6

**Church Schools** 

Report on Education in the North and East Ridings by Rev. G French 17.8.67.4

College

Long account proposed gift of college to Hull 17.12.70.5

**Cottingham School** 

Report 10.2.72.3

Driffield

Report on Driffield education 5.11.70.7

**Drypool** 

Inspector's report on Drypool schools 14.11.68.6

**Education Act** 

Court case breach of Education Act 5.8.76.5

**Education Code** 

Letter form Canon Brooke on new Education Code 4.3.71.8

Education

Dr Rollitt address on education 13.3.75.6 Elementary education in Hull 29.10.70.6

Leader on education in Hull - What is to be done? 22.10.70.4&5

Lecture by Rev. Charles Garrett on the Education of Children at George Yard Chapel 12.10.67.7

Meeting Hull clergy and ministers on Education question 38.5.70.6

**Elementary Education Committee** 10.12.70.5

Examination

Meeting re Middle Class Examination 17.4.69

Results Cambridge Local Exams 6.3.75.5

Fish St

Foundation stone laid Fish St. Schools, long account 3.6.71.5

Report Fish Street Day Schools 13.1.72.5

Goodmanham

School to be built at Goodmanham 14.10.71.7

**Grammar School Committee** 

Meeting 29.10.70.6, 12.11.70

**Grammar School Enquiry Committee** 

Meeting 11.6.70.6

**Grammar School** 

Hull Grammar School prize day 2.7.70.6, 24.6.71.6, 26.6.75.6, 24.6.76.6 Leader on Grammar School - Cogans and Ferries Charities 25.6.70.5&6

Letter from the Rev. H W Kemp on vacant Grammar School headship 16.5.68.6

**Grammar School continued** 

Meeting Grammar School, Hull Educational Endowments 11.3.76.5

Notice no room for more pupils at Hull Grammar School will advise when vacancies occur 21.1.71.4

Report on Hull Grammar School 25.12.69.6

Rev. George Ohlson new headmaster of Hull Grammar School

8.8.68

Death in Liverpool, March 30<sup>th</sup> at 51, Rev. Frederick James Gruggen, MA, headmaster of Pocklington

Grammar School 6.4.72.8

Sale at Pocklington Grammar School 20.7.72.7

**Hull & East Riding College** 

Formal opening 26.1.67.5

J Steele appointed vice principal of Hull & E R College, ex tutor to son of President Lincoln 6.1.72.5

Lecture on Poland at Hull & E R College by Count Woba 24.8.72.5

Meeting Hull & E R College 20.3.69.6, 25.12.69.6, 12.2.70.6, 19.6.75.5, 18.3.76.5 Prize day, Hull & E R College 22.6.67.4, 20.6.68.6, 19.6.69.6, 24.6.71.5, 22.6.72.6

Report Hull & E R College 21.12.67.4, 11.4.74.5, 20.3.75.5, 3.4.75.5

**Hull Ragged and Industrial Schools** 

Excursion Hull Ragged School children 19.8.71.5

Letter on Ragged Schools 5.7.73.3

Management of Hull Ragged Schools 8.11.73.6

Management of Ragged Schools and leader on School Boards 22.11.73.6

Meeting Hull Ragged and Industrial School 12.1.67.3, 26.1.67.2&3, 18.1.68.3, 25.1.68.7, 9.1.68.4, 7.11.68.6,

17.4.69, 26.2.70.6, 29.7.71.5, 10.2.72.6, 11.1.73.5, 16.8.73.6, 9.1.75.6

Ragged & Industrial Schools Committee

Amalgamated with Southampton (Training Ship) Committee 1.2.73.6

Meeting 11.7.68.6, 21.6.73.5, 20.9.73.5, 19.2.76.5, 8.4.76.5, 19.6.76.5, 19.8.76.6

Ragged Schools and Training Ship Committee

Meeting 22.2.73.5, 26.4.73.6, 28.6.73.6, 31.1.74.2, 18.4.74.3, 6.2.75.6, 8.1.76.5, 12.2.76.7

Report 9.10.75.5

Thomas Haller letter on management of Hull Industrial Schools 1.11.73.6

**Training Ship Southampton** 

Attempt to set Southampton Training Ship on fire 24.1.74.2

Case re Southampton Training Ship31.1.74.5

Case Southampton, 12 and 18 months 11.4.74.5

Hull School Board and grants to the Southampton Training Ship 1.3.73, 7.11.74.6,

5.12.74.6

Training Ship Committee Meeting (reported regularly) 10.8.67.6

Annual meeting 4.9.69.6

Meeting proposed 6.7.67.4

Election of Superintendent for Training ship 23.5.68.5

Leader on Training Ship 23.4.70.4, 15.2.73.4

Proposed Training Ship for Hull 30.3.67.2

Meeting, selection of ship, lists 20.4.67.2&3

Table of donations for Training Ship and leader and inaugural meeting 4.7.68.1&4&6

Visit to Training Ship for inspection 18.7.68.4

Hull Union of the University of London

Inauguration of Hull Union of University of London 8.11.73.7

Meeting Hull Union of the University of London 13.9.73.5

Medical School

Report on Hull Medical School 12.10.67.4

**National Education** 

Canon Brooke address on National Education 18.1.68.6 Rev. W M Statham lecture on National Education 26.3.70.6

**National Education League** 

Meeting of Hull Branch 27.1.72.7

**National Schools** 

Opening new reading rooms, in National Schools, Mason St., Hull 3.10.74.5

Report on St. Paul's National Schools 6.11.69.6

Letter Barrow National School 15.2.73.7

Meeting Driffield National Schools and School board 10.2.72.3 Report Patrington National Schools 11.3.71.7 National Schools continued Opening of Paull National School 30.1.69.6 Report Sunk Island National School 12.12.68.6 Inspectors report Sutton National Schools 9.1.69.6 Report Welton National Schools 23.4.70.7 Night Leader on night schools in Hull 6.11.69.3&4 Christ Church Night School 13.2.75.5 Meeting St. Stephen's night school 19.2.76.5 North Frodingham Case wrongful dismissal of North Frodingham schoolmaster 22.2.73.5 Parish Schools Report Hessle Parish Schools and Hospitals 20.6.74.3 **Patrington Teachers Association** Meeting Patrington Teachers Association 12.8.76.7 Port of Hull Society Tenders for new school buildings in Clarendon St. Port of Hull Society 23.3.72.4 **Prizes** A K Rollitt and school prizes 11.9.75.5 Leader on artisans prizes and scholarships 30.9.76.5, 7.10.76.5 Scholarship Jameson Scholarship Testimonial 7.11.74.5 Meeting Jameson Scholarship Committee 28.2.74.5 Subscription list to Jameson Scholarship 3.1.74.4 School Boards Letter on School Boards 9.5.74.3 24.6.71.7 Brigg Driffield Election at Driffield 11.1.71.7 Meeting 4.3.71.6, 17.6.71.7, 16.12.71.6, 27.1.72.3, 20.4.72.7, 22.2.73.7, 9.5.74.3, 23.1.75.7, 6.2.75.7, 3.4.75.7 Report 18.5.72.7 Cottingham 18.3.71.7 Hedon 18.1.73.6 Hull And grants to the Southampton Training Ship 1.3.73, 7.11.74.6, 5.12.74.6 28.1.71.6, 29.11.73.3, 31.1.74.6 Election Leader on School Board election 3.1.74.5, 24.1.74.5 Leader on School Board for Hull - and Class and Educational Reform in Hull Leader on 24.12.70.4 Meeting (reported regularly) 18.3.71.6 21.1.71.6 Candidates Leader on School Board meetings 14.1.71.5 Upton 22.4.71.6 Property Committee Meeting, School Board 6.7.72.6 Prosecutions 5.10.72.6, 12.10.72, 26.10.72.5, 2.11.72.6, 9.11.72.6, 23.11.72.5, 18.1.73.3, 15.2.73.3, 1.3.73.3, 19.4.73.3, 25.4.74.5, 20.2.75.5, 1.5.75.5, 29.4.76.5 Ratepayers meeting Re expenditure of Hull School Board Ratepayers meeting School Board, expenses 3.7.75.6 Keyingham Report 15.1.76.6 Newland 7.6.73.7 Sutton 16.1.75.6, 10.4.75.3 Thorngumbald 24.4.75.5 School of Art Prize distribution Hull School of Art 11.12.75.6 Report Hull School of Art 21.11.74.5

**Sculcoates Parish Schools** 

Tenders for erection Sculcoates Parish Schools, Botterill 1.7.71.4

**Secondary Education** 

Ref. to plan for secondary education in East Riding 16.3.72.6

**Sidney House** 

Opening new school house by Mr Saroney, Sidney House School 18.10.73.3

Sir Henry Cooper

Opening of Sir Henry Cooper Schools 22.7.76.7

Skidby

Report on Skidby School 17.5.73.6

St. Stephen's

Death 61 Spring Street at 38. John Hardy, 18 years master St. Stephen's Boys School 26.10.72.8

Inspector's report St. Stephen's schools
Report on St. Stephen's night school

24.10.68.6
18.2.71.6

**Swine** 

Opening of new school at Swine 25.7.68.6

Swinefleet

Smith & Brodrick plans for Swinefleet School approved 13.9.73.5

**University Extension** 

Prize distribution Cambridge University Extension, Hull Centre 13.5.71.7

Public meeting re University Extension in Hull 25.3.76.6

Workhouse

W Charlesworth, headmaster, Hull Workhouse School, in court for assaulting boy of 8 11.4.74.5

## **Elections & Politics**

### Beverley

Case alleged tampering with voting papers at Beverley 20.7.72.5 Election

Case 11.9.69.6, 18.9.69.5&6, 25.9.69.5&7, 2.10.69.6 Commission 23.10.69.3&4, 30.10.69.3, 13.11.69.7

Inquiry 4.9.69.3&4

Petition, long account 13.3.69.5

Trollope one of the candidates 28.8.69.6

### Clay

Statue of James Clay to be received at the Guildhall 18.12.75.5

Death of James Clay MP 27.9.73.5

Leader and meetings following death of James Clay MP 11.10.73.7

Leader on retirement of Mr Clay 10.5.73.6 Proposed retirement of Mr Clay 16.5.68.6

Testimonial to Mr Clay 7.6.73.5

#### Conservative

Banquet in Hull 18.4.68.6, 27.1.72.6, 18.4.74.3, 29.5.75.6, 22.1.76.6

Beverley Conservatives

Meeting 1.8.68.3

Candidates for Hull 7.11.68.6

Central Ward Conservatives

Meeting 17.6.71.5

Demonstration 23.4.70.5, 18.10.73.8

Letter on conservative demonstration 30.4.70.7

Long account Conservative demonstration in Hull 25.3.71.6

East Sculcoates Conservative Association

Meeting 9.11.67.6, 11.4.58.6, 8.4.71.5, 22.4.71.5, 17.6.71.5, 11.3.76.5

Holderness Ward Conservative Association

Formation 7.9.67.6

Meeting 14.12.67.4, 24.6.71.5, 24.6.71.5, 8.7.71.7, 29.7.71.5, 28.10.71.5, 6.1.72.5, 17.2.72.6, 30.3.72.5, 13.4.72.5, 27.4.72.5, 16.11.72.6, 12.4.73.5

Holderness Ward Working Men's Conservative Association

Meeting 23.9.71.6, 2.12.71, 23.1.75.5

Report 15.2.73.3

Hull Conservative Association

Meeting 2.2.67.2, 1.8.68.3, 19.8.71.5, 18.11.71.5, 1.6.72.5, 8.6.72.5, 14.2.74.4

Leader on Conservatives progress in Hull 17.6.71.5

Lowgate Ward Conservatives

Meeting 27.5.71.5, 5.8.71.5, 9.12.71.5, 6.1.72.5, 3.8.72.61.2.73.5, 9.8.73.5, 6.9.73, 20.9.73.5, 8.11.73.5, 6.12.73.6

Market Place Ward

Formation of Conservative Association in Market Ward 2.5.68.6

Meeting 9.5.68.4, 22.7.71.4, 13.1.72.5

Mass meeting for general election 31.1.74.5

Meeting in Hull 5.10.67.6, 20.1.72.4&5, 6.7.72.6

Myton Conservative Association

Meeting 17.4.75.5

North Myton Conservative Association

Meeting 30.3.67.2, 8.6.67.6, 7.3.68.6, 6.5.71.7, 27.5.71.5, 28.10.71.5, 27.4.72.5, 8.3.73.5, 20.12.73.5, 10.1.74.5, 11.4.74.5, 30.5.74.5, 12.6.75.6, 18.12.75.6, 12.2.76.6, 18.3.76.6, 12.8.76.5, 18.11.76.6

North Myton Working Men's Conservative Association

Meeting 14.1.71.6, 28.1.71.5, 11.2.71.5, 29.4.71.5, 24.6.71.5, 19.8.71.5, 16.9.71.5, 22.3.73.5, 20.2.75.6

South Myton Conservative Association

#### **Elections & Politics**

Meeting 16.3.67.2, 30.3.67.2, 29.6.67.6, 3.8.67.6, 27.6.68.6, 30.1.69.4, 18.5.69.6, 2.4.70.6, 30.7.70.6, 1.4.71.5, 29.4.71.5, 3.6.71.5, 29.71.71.5, 28.10.71.5, 30.12.714, 29.3.73.6, 6.12.73.3, 4.74.5, 2.5.74.6, 23.5.74.5, 3.4.75.5, 10.4.75.5

### **Conservative continued**

South Myton Ward

Conservative news room opened in 27.11.69.6

West Sculcoates Conservatives

Meeting 16.3.67.2, 6.7.67.6, 7.3.68.6, 6.6.68.6, 26.9.68.6, 19.6.69.6, 17.6.71.5, 24.6.71.5, 5.8.71.5, 18.11.71.5, 6.1.72.5, 4.5.72.5, 28.9.72.6, 22.3.73.6, 19.4.73.5, 17.5.73.5, 27.9.73.5, 13.12.73.7, 6.6.74.6, 5.12.74.6

### **East Riding**

Election results 28.11.68.7

#### **Fenianism**

Fenian executed at Manchester prayed for at St. Charles 30.11.67.6

Hull Reform League and Fenians in Hull 9.11.67.6

Hull Waterworks and Fenianism 4.1.68.7

Swearing in of special constable in connection with Fenian troubles 4.1.68.6

### **Home Rule**

Meeting in Hull 3.4.75.2

#### Hull

Election

Case Hull election petition 6.3.69.5

Cases at Hull election, riots at the Hustings 21.11.68.4

Cases of roughs at Hull election 28.11.68.6

(General) nominations 21.11.68.7

Nomination and polling Hull elections 25.10.73.6

Local elections 6.11.69.6, 4.11.71.6

Municipal elections 1.11.73.6&7, 23.10.75.6, 30.10.75.6

Report Hull Municipal elections 8.11.73.6

## Liberals

Banquet in Hull 18.12.75.6

Dairycoates Liberals

Meeting 18.7.68.6

Demonstration in Hull 2.12.71.6

E & W Sculcoates Liberal association

Meeting 16.12.76.6

Liberals and representation of Hull 13.9.73.6

Meeting at Hengler's Circus 11.10.73.3

N Myton Liberal Association

Meeting 5.2.76.5, 6.5.76.7, 19.6.76.5, 9.12.76.5

S Myton Liberals

Meeting 22.4.76.6

### Local election

Meetings 26.10.72.6, 2.11.72.7

Hull and District 8.8.68.5&6, 22.8.68.4, 29.8.68.6, 5.9.68.6, 12.9.68.6, 24.10.68.4, 31.10.68.6,

14.11.68.5, 21.10.71.7, 28.10.71.6,

Results 2.11.67.6

Local meetings for municipal elections 19.10.72.6

Leader on local elections 5.11.70.5, 9.9.71.4, 28.10.71.4&5

Ward meeting 22.10.70.4

Local municipal elections 21.10.76.6

#### **Local Government election**

Meetings 9.11.72.6

North Myton Ward

Meeting, election 14.12.67.4, 22.10.70.5

#### Pease

Broadsheet for Colonel Pease 11.10.73

Political meetings 18.10.73

## **Elections & Politics**

Polling day

At Hull 7.2.74.5

Reform

Hull Reform League

And Fenians in Hull 9.11.67.6

**Reform continued** 

Meeting 20.4.67.5, 11.5.67.6

South Myton Reform Association

Meeting 11.5.67.6, 6.7.67.6, 7.9.67.6, 12.10.67.6, 4.4.68.7, 30.9.71.5

Letter reforms wanted in Hull 20.6.68.6

Representation

Leader on representation in Hull 20.9.73.5 Liberals and representation of Hull 13.9.73.6

Long account Representation of Hull 18.10.73.6

Report representation of Hull and Ward meetings 31.1.74.6

**Republican Society** 

Meeting Hull Republican Society 17.6.76.5

**Returning Officer** 

Charges against Returning Officer for Sculcoates 2.5.68.6

## Emigration

# Emigration

America

Emigration to America - London agent, not local 13.5.71.1

Canada

Lecture at Patrington, Canada as a home for working men 8.3.73.7

Lecture on emigration to Canada, Mr Billany in the chair, long account 22.2.73.5

Queensland

Advert emigration to Queensland, J Wheeler Hull agent 23.1.69.2

Quebec

Screw steamer 'Ganges' left Hull for Quebec with 761 emigrants 30.4.70.6

Small pox

Outbreak among emigrants 18.5.69.5

#### Entertainments & Amusements

Amusements

Rev. J McCormick lecture on Amusements 11.3.76.5

**Arian Orchestral Union** 

Meeting 22.2.73.5, 2.3.73.5

**Ballads** 

Lecture on Scottish Ballads, J H Gibbson 23.3.72.6

Balloon ascent

In Hull 6.6.68.6

'Diana'

Entertainment in aid of crew 12.1.67.4

**Festival of Choirs** 

Hedon District Festival of Choirs 10.6.71.8

Freemasons Ball

In Hull 6.2.75.6

Ghost

A ghost at Great Thornton Street Chapel 30.10.69.5

**Harmonic Society** 

Meeting Hull Harmonic Society 6.4.67.5, 25.4.68.7, 30.5.68.6 30.1.69.4, 24.4.69.5, 30.4.70.7, 21.5.70.5, 18.2.71.5, 25.3.71.5, 8.4.71.5, 3.6.71.6, 8.3.73.6, 31.5.73.7, 25.12.75.8

Ref. to Mr Skelton, Dead March in Saul played 22.2.68.6

Hengler's Circus

Bullock's Marionettes at Hengler's Circus 24.4.75.5

Messiah conducted by T Craddock of Henglers Circus 21.12.72.6

Messiah at Hengler's Circus - T C Craddock 24.12.70.6

Hull & E R College

Concert Hull & E R College 19.4.73.5

Madame Neruda

Concert in Hull 2.3.72.5

Magic

For sale magic instruments, 3 Brighton Arcade, Prospect St. 4.3.71.4

**Moonlight trips** 

On the Humber 1.8.68.6 **Mr Bragazzi's Concert** 19.4.73.8

Music

Lecture on Music by Fred Jackson, organist of Christ Church 2.2.67.3

Opera

Letter on opera music in Hull 1.10.70.6

**Patrington** 

Concert at Patrington for aged poor 30.1.69.6

**Public Rooms** 

Bullock's Royal marionettes at Public Rooms 1.5.75.5

Séance

Herr Dobler's Dark Séance in Hull 7.9.72.6

Vocal Society

Hull Vocal Society 24.5.73.3, 10.10.74.6, 21.11.74.5

Meeting Hull Vocal Society 21.5.70.6, 17.12.70.6, 22.4.71.5, 25.11.71.6, 25.5.72.6, 29.3.73.6,

3.10.74.5, 13.3.75.6

W S Gilbert

Performance of Pygmalion and Galatea 15.5.75.5

# Expeditions

# Expeditions

**Captain Nares** 

Leader on return of Captain Nares from the Polar Regions 4.11.76.5

**Leigh Smith** 

Report on Leigh Smith Arctic exploration 6.9.73

# Fairs

# Fairs

# Hull Fair

A visit to Hull Fair 17.10.74.6

Report on Hull Fair 12.10.67.4, 15.10.70.5, 9.10.75.6, 14.10.76.5

### **Ferries**

## **Ferries**

## **Ferry Boat Dock**

Filling up of Ferryboat Dock 25.9.75.5 Leader on Ferry Boat Dock 1.7.71.4

Leader on proposed filling up of Ferry Boat Dock 9.7.70.4

Mr Billany and objections to filling in Ferry Boat Dock 19.3.70.6

Report on filling up of Ferry Boat Dock 24.6.71.5

## **Owston Ferry**

Case 12.6.75.8

## Pier Boat

'Gamma' Launch of steamer 'Gamma' and pier boat 'Swift', Humphries and Pearson's 2.3.72.4

Fires & Fire Brigade

Church Lane

Serious fire Church Lane 16.5.74.8

**Enholmes Hall** 

Serious fire at Enholmes Hall £3000 27.6.68.4

Fire Extinguisher

Trail new fire extinguisher at Stoneferry Waterworks 21.5.70.6

Flour Mill

R T Kirby flour mill destroyed by fire, Holderness Rd. 10.12.70.6

Hemp, Flax and Tar premises

Serious fire in Hull, hemp, flax and tar premises of William Irving & Co. 29.11.73

**Hodges Mill** 

Great fire in Hull, Samuel Hodges Mill, east side of Hodge St. 23.1.69.5

Serious fire Hodges Oil Mill, Holderness Road 8.10.70.5

Hull

Great fire in Hull, Blackfriargate 24.8.67.4

More fires in Hull, Heaneage, Ferraby & Hare & Hutchinsons Saw Mill 9.2.67.3

Serious fires in Hull 9.5.68.5

Humber Ironworks & Shipbuilding Co.

Fire at 24.4.69.4

Ice Co

Fire at Hull Ice Co., Cambridge St. 23.1.75.7

**Incendiarism** 

On the Yorkshire Wolds, Boythorpe 20.10.69.7 Case Willerby / Cottingham stack fire 20.2.69.7

Two supposed incendiary stack fires at Cottingham 30.1.69.6

Oil Refiners

Big fire Frederick Tall & Co. oil refiners Bank Side, Groves 23.8.73.6

Saw Mill

Great fire in Witham steam sawing and planing mills 19.8.76.7

Leader on fire as Sissons Saw Mill 7.5.70.4&5

More fires in Hull, Heaneage, Ferraby & Hare & Hutchinsons Saw Mill 9.2.67.3

Skirlaugh

Fire at Skirlaugh Workhouse 11.9.69.7

**Sproatley Grange** 

Destruction by fire, Henry Robson 2.2.67.3

Inquest on fire 9.2.67.3

Tar Distillery

Storry Smithson, great fire 18.1.68.6

Theatre Royal

Destroyed by fire, Humber St. 6.2.69.4

Warehouse

W B Nightingale, wholesale grocer, warehouse burnt down, Finkle Street one of a number of fires in Hull 13.11.75.6

## **Fishing**

#### Casualties

Case of death by starvation of fisherman's wife, Grimsby 30.1.75.7

Casualties to Hull smacks in late gale 2.10.75.3 Collision of two Hull fishing smacks 3.5.73.5

Dreadful storm at Hull and district, smacks lost 7.12.67.6

Drowned at sea, C H Atkinson and Walter Hunter off smack in a gale 25.1.68.7

Loss of 6 fishing smacks 2.10.69.6

Loss of fishermen - Hull smacks in rescue 8.2.68.4 Loss of Hull and Grimsby fishing hands 31.10.74.7

**Court Case** 

Roberts v Blanchard fishing smack case 14.8.75.5

**Faroes** 

Report of fishing off Faroes by Hull smacks 24.8.67.6

Fishermen

C H Wilson and Hull fishermen 25.9.75.6

Report on Hull fisherlads 10.4.75.6

Lecture on a Day on the Brixham Trawlers, at Fisherman's Institute 15.11.73.5

Opening of Fisherman's Institute 20.3.69.6

Fishing Trade

Address on local fish trade by J W Ansell, fish smack owner 27.11.69.6

Leader Fishing Trade and Dock Co. 15.11.73.5

Meeting at Preston on proposal of Hull Fish Trade Association to purchase Salt End Ings to carry on fishing

trade of Hull from there 3.5.73.7

Report fish trade between Hull and London 16.3.72.5 Report Hull fish trade 26.10.67.6, 14.12.67.4

Smack Builders

Brown

'Victor' smack launched George Brown vard for James Jelloms of Hull 25.11.76.6

McCann's

Launch fishing smack 'Amy', R T Vivian from McCann's yard 16.3.72.5

Wray & Son

Two smacks launched Wray & Son yard, Burton Stather for Grimsby 8.6.67.6

 $Launch\ of\ two\ trawling\ smacks\ John\ Wray\ \&\ Son,\ Butron\ Stather\ for\ J\ Harding\ of\ Hull\ -\ `Hare'\ and\ Son'\ And\ Son'\ And\ Son'\ Butron\ Stather\ for\ J\ Harding\ of\ Hull\ -\ 'Hare'\ and\ Son'\ Son'\ Son'\ Son'\ Son'\ Son'\ Stather\ for\ Son'\ So$ 

'Harriet' 8.7.71.6

**Nuisance Inspector** 

Large supplies of fish seized by Nuisance Inspector of Grimsby 3.7.75.8

Seamen

Petition of Hull seamen to Parliament 20.3.75.6

Smacks, individual

'Amy' Launch fishing smack 'Amy', R T Vivian from McCann's yard 16.3.72.5

'Atlanta' Trial of new smack for Dartmouth, 'Atlanta' 5.6.75.5

'Hare' Launch of two trawling smacks John Wray & Son, Butron Stather for J Harding of Hull - 'Hare' and 'Harriet' 8.7.71.6

'Harriet' Launch of two trawling smacks John Wray & Son, Butron Stather for J Harding of Hull - 'Hare' and 'Harriet' 8.7.71.6

'Ingomar', loss of smack 19.1.67.5

'James Evans' Fishing smack 'James Evans' on fire 3.4.75.5

'Luna' Loss of billy boy 'Luna' of Councillor Wells 27.2.69.4

'Superior' Hull salvage case, 'Superior' fishing smack of Hull 24.8.72.5

'Twins' Loss of smack 'Twins' 30.10.69.5

'Victor' smack launched George Brown yard for James Jelloms of Hull 25.11.76.6

'Win' two fishermen drowned 2.3.67.2

Smack Owners

Chapman

Notice to legatees Robert Chapman, late South Killingholme smackowner 28.9.72.1

Claim for salvage against a Hull smackowner 7.9.67.6

## Fishing

## **Smack Owners continued**

Harding

Launch of two trawling smacks John Wray & Son, Butron Stather for J Harding of Hull - 'Hare' and

'Harriet' 8.7.71.6

Jelloms

'Victor' smack launched George Brown yard for James Jelloms of Hull 25.11.76.6

Meeting of Hull smackowners

Grievances 11.4.68.6

Re the fishing trade of Hull 21.12.67.6, 8.11.73.5

Vivian

Launch fishing smack 'Amy', R T Vivian from McCann's yard 16.3.72.5

Wells

Loss of billy boy 'Luna' of Councillor Wells 27.2.69.4

## **Robberies**

Case of Robberies from smacks

#### **Freemasonry**

# Freemasonry

Barton

New Masonic Hall for Barton 22.5.75.7

Bridlington

Foundation stone laid new Masonic Hall at Bridlington, Londesborough Lodge 13.2.75.7

De la Pole Lodge

Consecration of De la Pole Lodge of Freemasons 7.10.76.8

Freemasonry

Report local freemasonry 20.3.75.5

Hull

Freemasons Ball in Hull 6.2.75.6 Meeting Hull Freemasons 17.10.68.4

Big Masonic meeting in Hull 9.10.75.6

**Humber Lodge**49<sup>th</sup> anniversary of foundation stone laying Humber Lodge of Freemasons 13.5.76.6

Lincs.

Meeting Annual Provincial Grand Lodge of Lincs. Freemasons 10.6.76.7

# Friendly & Benefit Societies

**Church Schoolmasters and mistresses Benevolent Association** 

Meeting 17.12.70.5

**Clerks and General Provident Association** 

Meeting Hull Clerks and General Provident Association 25.1.71.6

Kingston upon Hull Conservative Building Society

Report 5.6.75.5

**Hull Order of Druids** 

Present to Dr Rollitt 20.11.75.6

#### Gardens & Parks

## Gardens & Parks

#### Belle Vue

Opening of Belle Vue Gardens Beverley Road beyond St. John's Wood 12.4.73.5

**Botanic** 

Annual meeting Hull Botanic Gardens 4.5.72.6 Hull Botanic Garden report 9.5.68.6, 10.6.76.6

Leader on Hull Botanic Gardens 27.4.72.5

Report Botanic Gardens and proposed removal 15.7.76.6

**Park Committee** 

Meeting 10.8.67.4, 14.12.67.6, 4.7.68.6, 15.8.68.6, 15.8.68.6, 9.1.69.6, 22.5.69, 9.7.70.5, 3.12.70.5, 8.7.71.5,

5.8.71.5, 2.12.71.2, 14.9.72.5, 12.2.76.5, 17.6.76.5, 12.8.76.5

And leader 9.2.67.4

Proposed Boulevard for Hull, Mr Garbutt 19.9.74.5

Mr Garbutt's improvement scheme, Princes Ave. 12.9.74.5

**Pearson Park** 

Report on rockery in Pearson Park 8.5.69.4

Prince Consort Statue

Arrangements for unveiling of Prince Consort statue 3.10.68.6

Inauguration of Prince Consort statue in Pearson Park 10.10.68.6&3

Meeting proposed statue of Prince Consort 18.1.68.2

Prince Consort Memorial Committee meeting 18.4.68.7

Plans to unveil Prince Consort statue 26.9.68.6 Table of donations for Prince Consort statue 25.1.68.1

Window Gardening

For the working classes 18.5.67.4

## Gas

**Brough, Elloughton & Welton** 

Prospectus of Brough, Elloughton & Welton Gas Co. 20.5.71.5

Cottingham

Meeting on Cottingham gas supply 20.2.69.7

Gasmen

Case disturbances among Hull gasmen 14.12.72.6

**Hull Gaol** 

Gaol Committee meeting Suggested manufacture of gas needed at the gaol on the premises 30.1.69.4

Lighting

Experiments in gas lighting in Council Chamber 27.2.75.5

Supply

Leader on gas supply in Hull 27.2.75.5

Meeting re gas supply on Old Town 2.1.75.7

Sutton

Letter on Sutton Gas Co. 12.8.71.4

## History

**American Claim** 

To the town of Hull 21.9.67.2

**Burtt** 

Lit & Phil lecture by J Burtt, Contributions to the medieval history of Hull 4.1.68.6

Crickmer

Reference to Rev. W R Crickmer, History of Collegiate Church of St. John of Beverley 17.9.70.6

**Domesday Book** 

Ref. to Domesday Book for Lincs. 18.3.76.8

**Everett-Greene** 

Mrs Everett-Greene lecture on the Siege of Hull 17.8.67.6

Freeman

E A Freeman lecture on Edward I, Lit & Phil 7.12.67.6

Lecture by A Freeman, Early Historical Notices of Yorkshire 26.2.76.6&7

Goe

Rev. F F Goe lecture on the Monks of Old England, Church Institute 22.2.68.6

**Governors of Hull** 

Lecture on the Governors of Hull 12.10.67.6

Lit and Phil lecture on the Governors of Hull 14.9.67.6

Jones

W H Jones lecture Hull in the Olden Time 11.11.76.5

Kemp

The De la Poles of Hull, long account. No name given but likely to be by Rev. W H Kemp, Master of the Charterhouse 30.12.76.6

Richardson

Lecture by John Richardson on Local Coinage in Hull - Edward I to George III 23.3.72.5

Symons

Hull in the ancient Time, lecture by John Symons 30.12.76.6

Hullimia - Understood Councillor Symons writing work on early history of Hull 30.9.71.5

J Symons lecture Hull and the Hothams 4.2.71.6

J Symons lecture on Hull previous to the visit of Edward I, Mechanics Institute 14.12.67.6

J Symons lecture on Old Hull 21.12.72.6

J Symons lecture, Our Ancient Churchyards 29.1.70.6

Round about Old Hull, John Symons 21.3.74.3

Visitors Guide to Hull by John Symons published 17.8.67.6

**Thompson** 

Researches into History of Welton and Neighbourhood, Thomas Thompson, long account 9.4.70.6

Tickell

History of Independency in Hull, extract from Tickell's History of Hull 11.1.68.7

Todd

C S Todd lecture Incidents in Town of Hull 23.11.67.6

C S Todd lecture on Battle of Brunaburgh 29.4.76.3

C S Todd lectures on the Journey of Henry VIII through Lincs. en route for York 16.11.67.6

C S Todd, 2<sup>nd</sup> contribution to history in Hull - Hull from Henry VII to Henry VIII 24.4.69.4

C S Todd, lecture Cromwell and his Contemporaries 13.11.69.6

Leader on C S Todd, antiquarian 18.5.67.4

## Hospitals

## See also MEDICINE, PUBLIC HEALTH

Asylum

Case ill-treating a lunatic 26.10.72.7

Letter on Borough Asylum 12.8.71.4

Local Gossip - need for new asylum 3.6.76.6

Plans for an asylum in Beverley 29.2.68.7

Treat for inmates of Borough Asylum 21.8.69.6

**Asylum Committee** 

Meeting Asylum Committee 5.8.76.6

Children's Hospital Committee

Meeting Children's Hospital Committee 29.1.76.6

Dispensary

Sculcoates

Meeting Sculcoates Dispensary 29.3.73.6

61<sup>st</sup> annual meeting of Sculcoates Dispensary 25.3.76.6

Hull and Sculcoates Dispensary

Meeting 16.3.67.2, 23.3.67.2, 7.3.68.6, 20.3.69.6, 27.3.69.6, 26.3.70.6, 30.7.70.6, 20.5.71.6,

30.3.72.6, 22.3.73.5, 28.3.74.2, 27.3.75.6

Goole

New Infirmary, Goole Workhouse opened 18.1.73.6

Grimsby

Plans by Smith & Brodrick chosen for new Grimsby hospital, Logan & Hemingway to be contractors 20.5.76.8, 27.5.76.5

Hospital for Poor Children

Local gossip - Hospital for poor children, swimming baths 15.1.76.6

**Hospital for Sick Children** 

Long letter on hospitals for sick children 16.11.72.3

Meeting to establish cottage homes for sick children 7.12.72.6

Report Hospital for Sick Children 2.1.75.6

Report Hull Children's Hospital 20.11.75.5

**Hull General Infirmary** 

Annual report 12.2.70.6

89<sup>th</sup> annual meeting Hull General Infirmary 2.3.72.5

Annual meeting Infirmary Governors 4.3.76.6 Case of embezzlement from Infirmary 18.9.75.6

Life in the Infirmary, by an inpatient 10.6.76.6

Meeting Hull General Infirmary 6.3.69.6, 4.3.71.6

Meeting Infirmary Governors, proposed Training Institution for nurses 22.1.76.5

Meeting of Governors of Hull General Infirmary

Meeting Working Men's Committee, Infirmary

11.12.75.3

17.4.69

Notice for convalescent patients leaving the Infirmary and subscription list to furnish a convalescent ward 4.1.68.2

Working Men's Committee Report Hull General Infirmary 12.4.73.6

Working men's meeting in aid of the 8.6.67.7

Poor

Request for flowers for the sick poor, S Walliker 29.4.76.6

Surgeons

Death - at his son's residence, Todworth Rectory near Sheffield, aged 82, Humphrey Sandwith, formerly senior physician Hull General Infirmary, 25<sup>th</sup> July1.8.74.6

Death of Frederick Huntingdon, surgeon 21.11.74.5

Presentation to Charles Edwin Smith, surgeon of the Diana 17.8.67.6

# Housing

# Housing

Case

Dilapidated buildings in High St. 16.11.67.6, 23.11.67.6

Courtney St.

Houses in Courtney St. may be purchased by payment of rent alone for 4 years 14.5d per month or 3s 4d a week31.8.72.1

#### Industries

## Industries

Cake & Manure

Case objectionable manufactory in Towns, G W Hart, Stoneferry 19.8.76.6

Flour Mill

R T Kirby flour mill destroyed by fire, Holderness Rd. 10.12.70.6

**Foundry** 

Fatal accident at Allot & Thelwall's Foundry, Cannon St. 4.9.69

Ice

Fire at Hull Ice Co., Cambridge St. 23.1.75.7

**Iron Works** 

Report East Riding Iron Works 27.4.72.5

Report Hull Ironworks 13.11.75.5

**Leather Belt Manufactures** 

Fenner To be sold leather strapping and fire hose J H Fenner & Co. High St., opposite Corn Exchange 157 9.3.72.1

High St.

Case, mustard manufacturer in Baker St. nuisance to be abated, James Marks 13.12.73.5

Oil & Paint

Mustard

Big fire Frederick Tall & Co. oil refiners Bank Side, Groves 23.8.73.6

Great fire in Hull, Samuel Hodges Mill, east side of Hodge St. 23.1.69.5

Serious fire Hodges Oil Mill, Holderness Road 8.10.70.5

Alarming accident at Blundell Spence 18.12.75.5

Saw Mill

David Dales opened Grove Steam Saw Mill 2.2.67.4

Gale and floods sawmill blown down in Gibson St. 20.11.75.5

Leader on fire as Sissons Saw Mill 7.5.70.4&5

More fires in Hull, Heaneage, Ferraby & Hare & Hutchinsons Saw Mill 9.2.67.3

Great fire in Witham steam sawing and planing mills 19.8.76.7

Seed Crushers

Meeting of seed crushers in Hull 17.8.72.6

Tar distillery

Storry Smithson, great fire 18.1.68.6

Boiler explosion Storry Smithsons 2.9.76.5

Death in Storry Smithson boiler explosion 9.9.76.5

**Textiles** 

Flax and Cotton Mills

Thought operation will be resumed at Flax and Cotton Mills being fitted up with machinery

5.8.71.4

Flax warehouse destroyed in Wellington St. 2.5.68.4

Kingston Cotton Mill

800 employees at Kingston Cotton Mill 10.12.70.7

Serious damage done to Kingston Cotton Mill during storm 8.6.67.4

Meeting Kingston Cotton Mills 8.3.73.5

Serious fire in Hull, hemp, flax and tar premises of William Irving & Co. 29.11.73

Varnish

Explosion Merrikins Varnish Factory, Trippett 17.8.72.5

#### Inns

Citadel Hotel

For sale Citadel Hotel 5.10.72.1

**Engineers Arms** 

Prosecutions under new Licensing Act, Jolly Sailor, Grimsby Lane, Engineers Arms, etc. 28.9.72.6

Green Man

Meeting No. 1 Branch Amalgamated Boot & Shoemakers Association at Green Man, Church Lane 3.5.73.5

**Holderness Inn** 

Charles Marshall, miller, in court or stealing a canary property of Robert Marshall, landlord of Holderness Inn - 40s and costs or 2 months 30.9.71.6

Jolly Sailor

Prosecutions under new Licensing Act, Jolly Sailor, Grimsby Lane, Engineers Arms, etc. 28.9.72.6

**Licensing Act** 

Disturbances in Hull - Licensing Act 16.11.72.6

Prosecutions under new Licensing Act, Jolly Sailor, Grimsby Lane, Engineers Arms, etc. 28.9.72.6

**Old Corn Exchange** 

For sale Queen's Hotel and Old Corn Exchange 28.9.72.5

Polar Bear

Death at Uckfield, John Simpson Seaman late of Polar Bear and Museum, Spring Bank 21.12.72.8

**Public Houses** 

Meetings at public houses 21.12.72.6

Queen's Hotel

For sale Queen's Hotel and Old Corn Exchange 28.9.72.5

White Hart

Opening new billiard room, White Hart, Silver St. 9.9.71.5

## Inventions

# Inventions

## **Butter Machine**

Report on new butter machine, could be local 9.2.67.2

Waterworks

Trial new steam engine Springhead Waterworks, details of engine Trail new fire extinguisher at Stoneferry Waterworks 21.5.70.6 29.1.76.5

#### Libraries

## Libraries

#### **Church Institute**

Case extensive robbery of books, Church Institute 25.3.71.5

Free Library

Committee meeting 16.2.67.2

Death of W H Moss, Free Library promoter 10.1.74.5

Letter on establishing 16.3.67.4

Letter on Free Library 22.2.68.6, 13.1.72.8 Meeting proposed for Hull9.3.67.2, 18.4.68.6

Table of ratepayers in favour of a Free Library in Hull 6.1.72.1, 30.12.71

**Hull Subscription Library** 

Annual meeting Hull Subscription Library 9.12.76.7

Centennial Dinner Hull Subscription Library 11.12.75.6

Death of Joseph Clark of Hull, catalogued Hull Subscription Library, maths editor of Hull Packet 29.1.76.5 Meeting 4.12.69.6, 26.11.70.5, 10.12.70.7, 4.2.71.6, 5.12.74.5, 4.12.75.6

**Mechanics Institute** 

Inquest on James Young, bookbinder and ex librarian of Mechanics Institute, lost in filth and vermin, 63 11.4.74.5

**Public Libraries Act** 

Notice of meeting re Public Libraries Act to be held 13<sup>th</sup> Jan 13.1.72.4

**Temperance Library** 

Meeting to form a Temperance Library in Hull, at Mr Wray's School, Norwood St. 26.10.72.5

Report Hull Temperance and General Library 11.4.74.5

Report Hull Temperance Library 8.3.73.5

# Lifeboats & Lifesaving

Bridlington

Launch of new lifeboat at Bridlington 23.12.71

Flamborough

New lifeboats for Flamborough 18.11.71.3

Hornsea

Enquiry into conduct of Hornsea lifeboat crew - censured 25.2.71.5 New lifeboat launched at Hornsea, the 'Ellen and Margaret' 5.6.75.7

Report Hornsea lifeboat and recent storm 16.11.72.7

Aldermen

Death Alderman Abbey 3.4.75.6

Death of Alderman Bryson 7.6.73

Death of Alderman Hodge 16.11.67.4

Death of Alderman Mayfield 14.10.76.5 Funeral of Alderman Witty 18.10.73.4

Lecture by Alderman Roberts on Household Suffrage, to Working Men's Club 23.3.67.2

**Amalgamation Committee** 

Letter on Mr Upton and Amalgamation Committee 30.9.76.8

Meeting Amalgamation Committee 21.8.75.5, 11.3.76.5

**Asylum Committee** 

Meeting Asylum Committee 5.8.76.6

**Baths and Washhouses Committee** 

Meeting 23.2.67.3, 30.4.70.6, 17.9.70.6, 6.5.71.6, 2.3.72.6

**Baths Committee** 

Meeting Baths Committee 2.9.76.5

**Beck Committee** 

Meeting Beck Committee 1.5.75.7

Beetonville

Local Government inquiry at Beetonville 20.7.72.6

**Beverley Town Council** 

Meeting 16.9.71.6, 11.11.71.7, 16.5.74.3, 13.6.74.6, 17.10.74.6, 2.1.75.8, 13.2.75.5, 13.3.75.7, 15.5.75.7,

9.10.75.7, 8.1.76.6, 15.4.76.6, 15.7.76.6, 16.9.76.6, 16.12.76.6

Meeting Beverley Corporation re Waterworks for Beverley 23.1.75.6

Bills

Local Bills in Parliament 4.4.74.2

**Borough Extension Committee** 

Meeting Borough Extension Committee 6.2.75.5

Borough

Meeting Hull Borough Revision 28.9.67

Members Meeting Hull Borough Members and Income Tax 9.11.72.8

**Boundaries** 

Boundary Commission in Hull and leader 21.9.67.3&4

Of Hull 22.2.68.6

Sanitary Committee meeting, Proposed extension of borough boundary 27.4.72.5

**Bridge Committee** 

Meeting Bridge Committee 1.5.75.7, 22.5.75.5

**Bridlington Local Board** 

Meeting 9.1.69.6, 21.12.72.7

**Burial Committee** 

Meeting 6.7.67.6, 9.1.69.6, 25.9.69.6, 11.3.71.6, 6.9.73, 30.1.75.5, 22.5.75.5, 5.6.75.5

At Sutton 10.4.75.3

Re Hedon Road Cemetery 26.10.72.7, 10.3.73.5

**Burial Ground Committee** 

Meeting, Hedon Road Cemetery 30.11.72.5

**Cattle Plague Committee** 

Meeting 20.4.67.2, 5.10.67.6, 29.10.70.6, 13.5.71.6, 27.5.71.6, 9.12.71.6, 22.3.73.7, 27.9.73.6

Children's Hospital Committee

Meeting Children's Hospital Committee 29.1.76.6

Clerk of the Peace

Death February 28<sup>th</sup> Frances widow of late William Wooley ex Clerk of the Peace 2.3.72.8

**Coal Committee** 

Meeting 16.4.70.6, 5.7.73.3

**Corporation Property** 

Sale of property in Hull 20.7.67.6

Cottingham Local Board 21.10.76.7, 16.12.76.6

Meeting (reported regularly) 12.1.67.5

Includes widening of Chestnut Ave. 15.6.67.7

**Cottingham Local Board continued** 

A lamp for Market Green 12.12.68.7

Proposed 25.9.69.7

Election of members

Queen's Road streets 12.9.74.3

Drainage 13.12.73.7

Proposed bridges Beverley Rd., Newland 12.4.73.4

Street construction of Queens Road 18.4.74.3

Alexandra Rd 19.6.76.5

Newland supply of water 11.7.74.3

Nuisances 15.11.73.5

**Council Chamber** 

Experiments in gas lighting in Council Chamber 27.2.75.5

Councillors

Councillor Stephenson in court for causing disturbance in St. Silas church 15.2.73

Death of Councillor Brownbridge 1.3.73.5 Death of Councillor William Drant 16.3.67.2

Death of Thomas Toogood ex councillor - Sculcoates soup kitchen 11.3.71.5

Presentation to Councillor D P Garbutt, builder 3.1.74.2

Presentation to Councillor Larard 10.1.74.3

Stained glass window placed in Drypool Church in memory of Councillor Boulter 5.9.68.6

**Dockside Improvement Committee** 

Meeting Dockside Improvement Committee 29.11.73.6

**Driffield Local Board** 

Meeting Driffield Local Board 21.12.72.7, 11.7.74.3

Report Driffield Local Board 11.4.74.6

**Driffield Ratepayers** 

Meeting re water supply and sewage 11.5.72.7

**East & West Sculcoates Ratepayers** 

Meeting 29.4.71.5

East Sculcoates Ward

Meeting 13.11.69.5

Committee assessors alleged irregularities in East Sculcoates Ward 16.3.67.3

**Elementary Education Committee** 10.12.70.5

**Finance Committee** 

Meeting Finance Committee 13.1.72.6, 25.1.73.5, 22.3.73.5, 20.2.75.5

Re private streets 24.1.74.5

Board of Health Rules 24.8.72.6

Free Library Committee

Meeting 16.2.67.2

**Gaol Committee** 

Meeting (reported regularly) 5.1.67.2

And escape from Hull gaol 3.10.68.4

Suggested manufacture of gas needed at the gaol on the premises 30.1.69.4

Gaol

Meeting contractors of new gaol and Corporation 14.3.68.4

**Grammar School Committee** 

Meeting 29.10.70.6, 12.11.70

**Grammar School Enquiry Committee** 

Meeting 11.6.70.6

**Grimsby Town Council** 

Meeting 2.1.75.8

Hedon Town Council

Meeting 7.1.71, 12.8.71.5, 20.7.72.7, 15.2.73.7, 13.2.75.8

Mr Plimsoll and seamen 22.3.73.7

**Hessle Ratepayers** 

Re drainage of parish Meeting 2.3.72.3

Hornsea

Local Board

Meeting 6.11.69.7, 8.6.72.6, 7.9.72.7, 6.1.72.7, 10.4.75.3

### Hornsea Local Board continued

And Ratepayers 12.2.70.7

Local Government inquiry at Hornsea 30.11.72.6

Hull

Ward meetings 26.10.67.4, 23.10.69.5, 30.10.69.5, 29.10.70.6

#### **Hull Town Council**

Meeting (reported regularly) 5.1.67.2

£100 donation to Holy Trinity 18.3.76.6

And leader 23.3.67.3&4

Defalcations by Town Treasurer, long account 23.9.76.6

Hull water supply 1.6.72.6

And Waterworks, leader 6.4.67.5

Proposed amalgamation of Council and Board of Health 31.7.75.6

## Improvement Bill

Letter new Hull Improvement Bill 25.2.71.6

#### Market Place and Lowgate Ward Ratepayers

Meeting 22.1.76.6

## **Market Place Ratepayers Association**

Meeting 18.2.71.6, 2.3.72.6,7.12.72.6, 23.5.74.5, 30.1.75.6, 5.6.75.5, 2.7.75.5, 18.3.76.5, 29.4.76.5, 18.11.76.7

Re defalcations 7.10.76.6

#### Mayor

Election of Mayor, Witty 13.11.69.6

Leader on Mayoralty of Hull 14.11.74.5

Letter from John Richardson on Edward Richardson, Alderman and Mayor of Hull, long letter 5.6.75.3

Report on William Popple, Mayor of Hull 17.9.70.6

Visit to St. Petersburg by H J Atkinson, ex Mayor of Hull 9.2.67.2

#### **Newington Local Board**

And ex Law Clerk case 16.12.76.6

Meeting (reported regularly) 3.5.73.6

Trouble at Newington Local Board meeting 27.3.75.6

### Newington

Local Government inquiry Newington 26.2.76.7

#### Newland

Government Inquiry proposed incorporation of Newland with Hull 15.10.70.7

Meeting re Inspector's visit 22.10.70

# Newland and St. Johns Wood Ratepayers

Meeting 4.3.76.5

#### Newland Local Board

First meeting 21.12.72.7

## **Newland Ratepayers**

Meeting 19.12.74

## **North Bridge Committee**

Meeting 23.8.73.4, 26.6.75.5

## **North Myton Ratepayers Association**

Meeting 7.12.67.4, 23.8.73.5

## Park Committee

Meeting 10.8.67.4, 14.12.67.6, 4.7.68.6, 15.8.68.6, 15.8.68.6, 9.1.69.6, 22.5.69, 9.7.70.5, 3.12.70.5, 8.7.71.5, 5.8.71.5, 2.12.71.2, 14.9.72.5, 12.2.76.5, 17.6.76.5, 12.8.76.5

And leader 9.2.67.4

Proposed Boulevard for Hull, Mr Garbutt 19.9.74.5

Mr Garbutt's improvement scheme, Princes Ave. 12.9.74.5

### Park Ward Ratepayers Association

Meeting 27.4.72.5

### Parliamentary Committee

Meeting 16.3.67.2

## **Police Inquiry Committee**

Several refs. in these issues 29.1.70 **Pontoon Committee** Meeting 16.11.67.4 **Private Streets Committee** Meeting Private Streets Committee 13.7.72.5 **Property Committee** Letter on, re North Bridge 21.8.69.6 Meeting (reported regularly) 12.1.67.5 New cattle market 20.3.69.6, 27.3.69.6 North Bridge 13.6.68.6, 9.4.70.6, 7.1.71.6 Proposed pontoon for Humber 4.11.76.6 Proposed promenade at South End 19.3.70.6 Proposed promenade 5.2.70.6 Re cleansing of Old Harbour 18.3.71.6 Re old Waterworks Committee 1.10.70.6 Re opening and shutting of new South Bridge 11.1.68.6 Re widening North Bridge 12.1.67.5 Removal of market stalls 29.1.76.5 School Board and new Gaol and North Bridge 6.7.72.6 Ragged & Industrial Schools Committee Amalgamated with Southampton (Training Ship) Committee 1.2.73.6 Meeting 21.6.73.5, 20.9.73.5, 19.2.76.5, 8.4.76.5, 19.6.76.5, 19.8.76.6 Ragged Schools and Training Ship Committee Meeting 22.2.73.5, 26.4.73.6, 28.6.73.6, 31.1.74.2, 18.4.74.3, 6.2.75.6, 8.1.76.5, 12.2.76.7 Report 9.10.75.5 Ratepayers Meeting And Hull water supply 10.8.72.6 Re expenditure of Hull School Board 8.2.73.8 School Board, expenses 3.7.75.6 Recorder Marriage St. Thomas Marylebone, S Warren, recorder of Hull, to Miss Beaumont 26.8.71.8 **Recreation Ground Committee** Meeting 16.7.70.6, 25.3.71.5, 23.9.71.6, 13.4.72.5, 17.8.72.6 Sanitary Committee Meeting (reported regularly) 26.1.67.5 And asphalt nuisance 15.4.71.5 And leader 23.3.67.2 Cholera precautions 5.8.71.6, 3.8.72.6, 10.8.72.6, 16.8.73.5 Nuisance inspector's report to 25.1.68.6 On Derringham estate drainage 29.6.67.6 Prevalence of fever in Hull 24.10.74.5 Proposed extension of borough boundary 27.4.72.5 Re cattle plague 14.10.71.6 Sanitary conditions in Hull in 1870 21.1.71 Smoke 6.3.69.6 Sculcoates Ratepayers Meeting Assessment of tenement property Sculcoates 28.8.69.6 Sheriff Marriage of C H Wilson, Sheriff of Hull, to Florence Wellesley 7.10.71.5 **South Myton Ratepayers** New Association for 12.12.74 Meeting 2.12.76.6 South Myton Ward Election 23.3.67.4

**South Newington Ratepayers** Meeting 29.4.76.6

**Swimming Baths Committee** 

Meeting 27.3.75.7, 2.10.75.5, 11.12.75.5, 8.1.76.5

Town Clerk

Election of G C Roberts as new Town Clerk of Hull 18.2.71.6 Funeral Thomas Thompson, ex Town Clerk of Hull 25.4.74.5

**Town Clerk continued** 

Local Gossip - Town Clerk 13.5.76.6

Marriage at Poplar on August 20<sup>th</sup> Robert Wells, Town Clerk of Hull, to Emily Marian, elder daughter of late

Charles C Celley of Poplar 24.8.67.8 Meeting re Town Clerkship 19.2.76.6

**Town Extension Committee** 

Meeting Town Extension Committee 30.1.75.5

**Town's Improvement Committee** 

Meeting (reported regularly) 20.7.67.4

> Re proposed communication between Carr Lane and Osborne St. 3.5.73.7

New street from Whitefriargate to South End 26.7.73.8

**Training Ship Committee** 

Meeting (reported regularly) 10.8.67.6

**Tramways Committee** 

Meeting 18.5.72.6, 2.8.73.5

Annual meeting 4.9.69.6

Treasurer

Death of W Bolton, ex Borough treasurer at Ferriby, involved in defalcations. Appointed Towns husband in

1821, Treasurer in 1826 16.12.76.5

Defalcations of Borough Treasurer, suicide of accountant 30.9.76.6

Meeting Town Council re defalcations by Town Treasurer, long account 23.9.76.6

More Corporation defalcations 21.10.76.5, 28.10.76.6 Report on Corporation frauds 14.10.76.6, 18.11.76.6

Serious defalcations Hull Borough accounts 7.10.76.6, 16.12.76.5

Warden Inquiry Committee

Meeting 4.7.68.4

**Warden Remuneration Committee** 

Meeting 9.4.70.6, 5.8.71.5

Watch Committee

And ref. Hughes case 4.9.75.3&5

Meeting (reported regularly) 11.6.70.6

And Emma Starkie murder 4.3.71.5 Proposed increase of police force 27.2.75.5

Hull Packet and Hull Times and the police 10.8.72.6

Waterworks Committee

Meeting (reported regularly) 12.1.67.2 Re mismanagement 9.11.67.6

> 1<sup>st</sup> meeting new Waterworks Committee 10.10.74.6

Dispute with Mr Musgrove 25.11.76.6

Re Waterworks Bill, threatened resignation of Mayor of Hull 4.5.72.6

Stormy meeting, long account re water supply of Hull 25.5.72.6

Resignation of Waterworks Committee

**Waterworks Enquiry Committee** 

Meeting 13.12.73.5, 11.12.75.7

West Sculcoates Ratepayers Association

Meeting 19.10.67.4, 29.3.73.6, 7.6.73.8, 2.8.73.6, 2.5.74.6, 30.1.75.3

West Sculcoates Ward

Meeting 30.11.67.4

**Workhouse Committee** 

Meeting 30.3.67.2, 15.8.68.6

**Working Men's Committee** 

Report Working Men's Committee Hull General Infirmary 12.4.73.6

**Works Committee** 

Meeting (reported regularly) 12.1.67.2

Beverley Rd. improvement 27.7.67.4

Neptune St. rail crossing 19.2.70.5 New North Bridge 1.5.69.4 Rail crossings in Hull 16.10.69.5

Re Anlaby Rd. & Hessle Rd. toll bars 21.1.71 Re Park St. rail crossing 10.10.68.6, 17.10.68.4

## **Works Committee continued**

Re Sugar House 3.10.68.4&6 Re Whitefriargate paving 17.6.76

## **Workshops Regulation Committee**

Meeting 16.5.68.6, 22.8.68.6, 6.3.69.6

#### Markets

## Markets

**Cattle Market** 

Application for removal of English Cattle Markets at Hull 30.11.67.6

For Hull 22.2.68.6

Meeting proposed new cattle market for Hull 23.9.76.5

Order for Cattle Market in Edward's Place 22.2.68.3

Cottingham

Market opened 1.2.68.7

**Early Closing** 

Proposed early closing in Hull Market 5.10.72.7

Fat stock Market

Meeting to establish a fat stock market in Hull 25.1.67.7

**Livestock Market** 

Meeting proposed livestock market 8.1.70.6

**Market Stalls** 

Property Committee meeting Removal of market stalls 29.1.76.5

Skin Market

Foundation stone laid Hull Skin Market in Hull 6.7.67.6

### Medicine

### See also HOSPITALS, PUBLIC HEALTH

Cholera

Case Capt. George Soulsby breach Prevention of Cholera 19.8.71.6 Nuisance precautions in connection with cholera precautions 9.9.71.5

Precautions against cholera 5.8.71.5

Rumour of cholera outbreak in Hull 2.8.73.6

Sanitary Committee Meeting Cholera precautions 5.8.71.6, 3.8.72.6, 10.8.72.6, 16.8.73.5

**Enteric Fever** 

At Hull and intermittent water supply 16.1.75.5

Fever

Sanitary Committee Meeting Prevalence of fever in Hull 24.10.74.5

Hydrophobia

In South Holderness. Mad dogs at Hollym and Withernsea area destroyed 26.6.75.7

Influenza

John Richardson letter on certain cure for influenza 15.4.71.3

Measles

Sculcoates Board of Guardians meeting re measles outbreak 23.11.67.6

Medical School

Report on Hull Medical School 12.10.67.4

Pills

Advert Barton Palatable Pills - 6 varieties made in Barton 15.4.71.1

Pleuro pneumonia

Outbreak at Norton 2.5.74.3

Outbreak at Swinton, Malton 29.5.75.7

Report on recent outbreak of pleuro pneumonia at Hull 25.9.75.5

Scarlet fever

6 or 7 persons have died in Napier Terrace of scarlet fever all aged about 16 23.7.70

**Small Pox** 

In North and East Riding 13.1.72.5

Death of Richard Fleetwoode Shawe, recent owner of Brantinghamthorpe, dies of small pox 14.9.72.7

Letter on small pox outbreak 27.1.72.3 Outbreak among emigrants 18.5.69.5

Outbreak in Hull, especially in Groves and Drypool 15.2.73.6

Outbreak of small pox in Hull 4.2.71.6 Spread of small pox in Hull 20.1.72.7

Vaccinations

Prosecutions for non vaccinations 12.10.72.6

Meeting Anti Vaccination League to be held in Hull 21.9.67.6

Vivisection

Letter on vivisection, T F Hewitt 8.1.76.3

# Militia

Meeting

East Yorks. Militia 27.5.71.7

## Mills

## Anti Mill Industrial Society,

Meeting 2.2.67.7, 27.7.67.6, 25.1.68.7, 29.1.70.6, 29.7.71.5, 22.7.76.5

Report Anti Mill Society 2.8.73.6

Hodge

Adjourned inquest Hodge boiler explosion 25.9.69.5

Boiler explosion at Hodge's Mill 18.9.69.5

Inquest boiler explosion at Hodge's mill 9.10.69.5

**Paint** 

Alarming accident at Blundell Spence 18.12.75.5

Paper mill

Destructive fire at Mayfield's paper mill 18.9.69.5

Saw Mill

David Dales opened Grove Steam Saw Mill 2.2.67.4

More fires in Hull, Heaneage, Ferraby & Hare & Hutchinsons Saw Mill 9.2.67.3

**Subscription Mill Society** 

Meeting Hull Subscription Mill Society 25.7.68.6, 5.2.70.7, 3.8.72.5, 1.2.73.5, 23.8.73.5, 17.7.75.5

## Museums

# Museums

# Megatherium

Discovery of thigh bone of a megatherium to go to museum 10.7.69.6

#### Seaman's

Death at Uckfield, John Simpson Seaman late of Polar Bear and Museum, Spring Bank 21.12.72.8

## Natural History

# **Natural History**

Birds

Christopher Sykes speech on preservation of birds 6.3.69.6

**Botanic Gardens** 

Annual meeting Hull Botanic Gardens 4.5.72.6 Hull Botanic Garden report 9.5.68.6, 10.6.76.6

Leader on Hull Botanic Gardens 27.4.72.5

Report Botanic Gardens and proposed removal 15.7.76.6

Dogs

Hydrophobia in South Holderness. Mad dogs at Hollym and Withernsea area destroyed 26.6.75.7

Megatherium

Discovery of thigh bone of a megatherium to go to museum 10.7.69.6

Porpoises

Shoals of porpoises in the Humber 15.7.76.5

Seabirds

Rev. F O Morris on Sheffield wasters shooting seabirds at Brid and Flamborough 6.4.67.5

Whale

Caught in Victoria Dock 18.9.69.6

## Navigation

# Navigation

**Beck Committee** 

Meeting Beck Committee 1.5.75.7

**Bridlington** 

Meeting Bridlington to form Harbour of Refuge 4.3.71.7

**Humber Conservancy Bill** 

Meeting re Humber Conservancy Bill 13.5.76.5

Opposition to Humber Conservancy Bill 13.5.76.7, 27.5.76.6

**Old Harbour** 

Property Committee meeting re cleansing of Old Harbour 18.3.71.6

**Pilotage Abolition Bill** 

Examination of witnesses Compulsory Pilotage Abolition Bill 14.5.70.6

# Navy

Admiralty

Towns meeting re Admiralty Slavery circular 5.2.76.7

Corvette

Launch steam corvette 'Ruby' Earles yard 12.8.76.5

Guard Ship
'Vanguard' Hull Guard Ship in Collision H M S 'Vanguard' sunk 4.9.75.5

**Naval Engineers** 

Meeting of naval engineers in Hull 2.12.71.6

### Newspapers

# Newspapers

## **Packet**

81<sup>st</sup> anniversary of Hull Packet 11.1.68.7

Death of Joseph Clark of Hull, catalogued Hull Subscription Library, maths editor of Hull Packet 29.1.76.5 Watch Committee meeting Hull Packet and Hull Times and the police 10.8.72.6

### Times

Leader on death of Richard Wallis, 30 Albion St., 49; late editor and joint proprietor of Hull Times 26.2.70.4

Watch Committee meeting Hull Packet and Hull Times and the police 10.8.72.6

#### **Occupations & Trades**

## Occupations & Trades

#### Architect

Tenders for altering East Ella House for Robert Jameson, this later became White City, William Botterill 16.3.72.4

Foundation stone laid new church Bridlington Quay, R S Smith, architect Holy Trinity 9.4.70

Meeting proposed new Wesleyan chapel at Hessle, Botterill architect, W & J Hall builders 10.4

Plans by Smith & Brodrick chosen for new Grimsby hospital, Logan & Hemingway to be contractors 20.5.76.8, 27.5.76.5

Smith & Brodrick plans for Swinefleet School approved 13.9.73.5 Tenders for erection Sculcoates Parish Schools, Botterill 1.7.71.4

Tenders for erection of double fronted house Anlaby Rd opposite Coltman St, F W Hagen architect 26.8.71.4

Tenders for altering East Ella House for Robert Jameson, this later became White City, William Botterill 16.3.72.4

### **Binders**

Important case, breach of Factory Act - Archibald & Stool, binders 1.7.71.6

#### **Bookbinder**

Inquest on James Young, bookbinder and ex librarian of Mechanics Institute, lost in filth and vermin, 63 11.4.74.5

#### **Brewers**

Gleadow & Dibb dinner to work people 16.1.75.5

#### **Bricklayers**

Meeting Hessle bricklayers 30.3.72.7

Leader on manufacture of bricks in Hull 11.1.73.5

#### Builder

Tender of Simpson & Malone accepted for St. John's Newington 12.8.76.5

Meeting proposed new Wesleyan chapel at Hessle, Botterill architect, W & J Hall builders 10.4.75.3

Plans by Smith & Brodrick chosen for new Grimsby hospital, Logan & Hemingway to be contractors 20.5.76.8, 27.5.76.5

Dinner to work people by Clarksons & Sons, builders 9.1.75.5

Leader on Mr Garbutt, Hull builder, Princes Avenue 28.10.71.4

#### Butchers

Meeting of Hull butchers 11.7.68.6

### Cabmen

Letter for cabmen's shelter, T F Hewitt 14.3.74.2

### **Chemists**

Meeting Hull Chemists Association 10.12.70.6, 9.12.71.6, 9.11.72.6, 26.4.73.5, 19.12.74, 29.1.76.5, 16.12.76.6

### **Drapers**

Hull Drapers Early Closing meeting 1.10.70.6, 18.3.71.6

Edwin Davis staff excursion 7.8.75.3

Marris Willows & Smith, silk mercers & drapers, treat to employees 22.2.73.5

## **Druggist**

Death June 14<sup>th</sup> James Soutter, druggist, Hedon 22.6.72.8

#### **Engineers**

Letter on Engineers Movement 16.12.71.8 Meeting of naval engineers in Hull 2.12.71.6

#### Grocer's

J M Broadbent new grocer's shop Market Place, Barton 26.8.71.1

W B Nightingale, wholesale grocer, warehouse burnt down, Finkle Street one of a number of fires in Hull 13.11.75.6

## Joiner

Letter from on loss of work 9.3.67.3

Amalgamated Society of Carpenters & Joiners meeting 29.6.67.4

### Labourers

Meeting at Hedon 5.4.73.7

#### **Occupations & Trades**

Laundry

Notice Kingston Laundry, 11 Silver St., too small, removal to large premises at Hessle, pure air and plentiful

supply of water 17.5.73.4

Report on Kingston Laundry, Silver St. 1.2.73.4

Maltster

Tenders for erection of malt kiln, Barmston St., for W Glossop 10.6.71.4

Master Cartmen and Rullevmens Association

Meeting 20.6.74.2

**Organ Builders** 

Opening new organ in Baker Street Schools, built by Mr Cuthbert 27.3.75.5

**Organist** 

John Robinson junior, late of St. Vincent's Catholic Church has been appointed choirmaster and deputy 6.7.72.5 organist of Sheffield Parish church

L Colburn, St. Michael's College, Tenbury, appointed assistant organist Beverley Minster, Mr Lambert retiring 11.7.74.3

T Craddock one of the candidates for organist of Holy Trinity - organist of St. John's, Paddington, played at funeral service to Rev. J H Bromby 4.4.68.6

T Craddock organist of Holy Trinity passed 1<sup>st</sup> degree of B. Music, Oxford 18.11.71.5

Mr Craddock new organist of Holy Trinity 16.5.68.6

Reported death of Mr Skelton, organist of Holy Trinity, proposed memorial 20.3.69.5

Death of J G Skelton organist of Holy Trinity 66. Feb 11<sup>th</sup>

Lecture on Music by Fred Jackson, organist of Christ Church 2.2.67.3

**Printers** 

Meeting of Hull Printers 23.12.71.5

Rivermen

Meeting Hull Rivermens Association 2.9.76.5

Sculptor

W D Keyworth jun commissioned for statue of Sir William de la Pole 3.4.69.4

William De la Pole statue completed by Keyworth 16.7.70.6

W D Keyworth given commission for recumbent figure of late Dean of Chester 7.10.76.5

W D Keyworth completion of 2 lions for entrance of a Hull mansion

**Servants** 

Notice Mrs Pinnock's Registry, 13 St. Stephen's Square 1.6.72.1

Shipmasters

Meeting Hull Shipmasters Association 9.1.75.5

Shoeblacks

Meeting of shoeblacks 18.4.68.6

Tailors

Hull Master Tailors Association formed 20.4.67.2

Tea Dealers

Bristow's, Tea Dust 5d per guarter 10.2.72.1

Bristows Tea establishment to be opened in Queen Street on March 30<sup>th</sup> 1.4.76.4

Richard Field opening of new premises for sale of Assam and China teas, 11 Market Place 25.5.72.1

Abbey

Death Alderman Abbey 3.4.75.6

Alford.

Sermon by Dr Alford, Archbishop of Victoria at St. Mary Lowgate 2.3.67.2

Ansell

Address on local fish trade by J W Ansell, fish smack owner 27.11.69.6

Archbishop of York

Archbishop of York refusal to consecrate Thixendale church, trouble with Sir Tatton Sykes

Archbishop of York to attend ordination in Holy Trinity on 4<sup>th</sup> June 20.5.71

Armstrong

Burial at Paull after death in workhouse of William Armstrong, 74, one of crew of H M S Northumberland which took Napoleon to St. Helena 13.1.72.7

Atkinson

Drowned at sea, C H Atkinson and Walter Hunter off smack in a gale 25.1.68.7

Visit to St. Petersburg by H J Atkinson, ex Mayor of Hull 9.2.67.2

**Bailey** 

Marriage St. Peter, Anlaby A K Rollitt of Spring Villa, Anlaby, to Eleanor Ann, 2<sup>nd</sup> daughter of W Bailey of Field House, Anlaby, steam ship owner 31.8.72.8

Bannister

Marriage Hessle February 18<sup>th</sup> Martin Samuelson C E of Hessle to Catherine 2<sup>nd</sup> daughter of Anthony Bannister JP of Hessle 25.2.71.6

Marriage of John Bannister to Jane Schofield Day 21.12.67.4

Barkworth

Marriage Kirk Ella H J R Pease to D E Barkworth 17.4.69.8

Baxter

Robert Baxter and railways to Hull 17.10.68.3

**Beaumont** 

Marriage St. Thomas Marylebone, S Warren, recorder of Hull, to Miss Beaumont 26.8.71.8

Beeton

Letter on Mr Beeton and vitrified bricks used for Beetons Villa 12.1.67.3

Billany

Letter Mr Billany and the Working Man 2.12.76.5

Bishop of Capetown

In Hull - St. Mary's and St. James churches 11.7.68.6

Blanchard

Execution of Louth murdered Peter Blanchard at Lincoln 14.8.75.3

Bohn

Marriage All Saints church, Hull, George Bohn, civil engineer, to Alice Ruth Mary younger daughter of Charles Spilman Todd, solicitor 6.6.74.8

Bolton

Death of W Bolton, ex Borough treasurer at Ferriby, involved in defalcations. Appointed Towns husband in 1821, Treasurer in 1826 16.12.76.5

Bonnin

Leader on 'Persecuting Bishops' pamphlet and Rev. T S Bonnin 23.10.69.4 Letter from Rev. T S Bonnin on the Author of the Sling and the Stone (Voysey) 25.9.69

Persecuting Bishops - A Letter to the Archbishop of York by TS. B. (Bonnin), pamphlet 2.10.69.6

T S Bonnin letter J W Leng 28.5.70.7

Botterill

Tenders for altering East Ella House for Robert Jameson, this later became White City, William Botterill 16.3.72.4

Meeting proposed new Wesleyan chapel at Hessle, Botterill architect, W & J Hall builders 10.4.75.3

Tenders for erection Sculcoates Parish Schools, Botterill 1.7.71.4

Tenders for altering East Ella House for Robert Jameson, this later became White City, William Botterill 16.3.72.4

Bowker

Marriage Bangor Cathedral the Rev. H F Bowker Vicar of Christ Church to Susannah Moneypenny of Fife 23.8.73.8

Boynton

Death of Sir Henry Boynton, 54, and obituary notice 3.7.69.5&8

Funeral of Sir Henry Boynton 10.7.69.7

Marriage of Sir Henry Boynton to Mildred Augusta Paget of Welton 5.8.76.6

Visit to Hull of Captain Boynton 17.7.75.6

Bradlaugh

Charles Bradlaugh in Hull 18.3.76.6

Bragazzi

Mr Bragazzi's Concert 19.4.73.8

**Brander** 

Death of Rev. Banton Brander, vicar of St. Mary's, Beverley, since 1856 at vicarage in North Bar St.

12.10.72.7

Funeral of Rev. B Brander in St. Mary's cemetery 19.10.72.7

**Bromby** 

Memorial window to Rev. J H Bromby in Vicar's porch Holy Trinity 31.12.70.5

Death of Mrs Bromby, widow of Rev. J H Bromby 21.9.67.6

Death of Rev. J H Bromby in 98<sup>th</sup> year. Master of the Charterhouse and late vicar of Holy Trinity Church

28.3.68.7&8

Funeral of Rev. J H Bromby 4.4.68.6

Marriage St. Peter's, Rev. Christopher Bromby to Elizabeth Eyre of Hull 2.12.71.8

Memorial service to Rev. J H Bromby at St. John's Church 11.4.68.6

Brooke

Canon Brooke address on the Church of England 23.1.69.6

Canon Brooke accepted living of Bath Abbey 31.10.74.5

Canon Brooke inducted to rectory of Bath 20.2.75.5

Canon Brooke address on National Education 18.1.68.6

Canon Brooke appointed a Surrogate of York 31.8.67.4

Election of a vicar for Holy Trinity - Canon Brooke 4.5.67.3

Letter form Canon Brooke on new Education Code 4.3.71.8

Rev. Canon Brooke has appointed the Rev. G Robinson, curate of St. Stephens, to curacy of St. Michael and

All Angels 10.8.67.6

W P Brooke 2<sup>nd</sup> son of Canon Brooke, 1<sup>st</sup> class Tripos Cambridge 22.3.73.5

Brownbridge

Death of Councillor Brownbridge 1.3.73.5

Brown

List of new Overseers for the poor, S Holderness Robert Meadley for Keyingham George Brown and John

Spilman for Sunk Island 10.4.75.3

**Browne** 

Banquet at Alexandra Hotel, Hornsea, to Revs. H G Kinnear, G O Browne and G Burnell, end of Holy Trinity curacies following appointment of canon Brooke 27.7.67.6

Presentation to Rev. G O Browne, ex curate of Holy Trinity 3.8.67.6

Rev. G O Browne, late Holy Trinity, appointed by Prime Minister to living in Worksop 16.7.70.6

**Bryson** 

Death of Alderman Bryson 7.6.73

**Burnell** 

Banquet at Alexandra Hotel, Hornsea, to Revs. H G Kinnear, G O Browne and G Burnell, end of Holy Trinity curacies following appointment of canon Brooke 27.7.67.6

Burton

Lecture Geology of Western Lincolnshire, F M Burton to Lit & Phil 14.3.68.4

Burtt

Lit & Phil lecture by J Burtt, Contributions to the medieval history of Hull 4.1.68.6

Carafa

Cottingham, Carafa Carafa a Negro vagrant drunk and riotous 3.5.73.7

Charlesworth

W Charlesworth, headmaster, Hull Workhouse School, in court for assaulting boy of 8 11.4.74.5

Cherry

Letter from John Cherry to my brother workmen in Hull - political 17.10.68.5

Clare

Bankruptcy of Rev. G T Clare, rector of Bainton 18.5.72.7

Clark

Death of Joseph Clark of Hull, catalogued Hull Subscription Library, maths editor of Hull Packet 29.1.76.5

Clarke

Marriage August 10<sup>th</sup> St. Johns, Henry Lowther Clarke B A scholar St. Johns Cambridge and vicar of Hedon to Alice Lovell 2<sup>nd</sup> daughter of the Rev. W H Kemp, Mater of the Charterhouse 19.8.76.8

Marriage St. James church, August 22<sup>nd</sup> by the Rev. Andrew Jukes, father of the groom, Edward Jukes, solicitor, Birmingham, to Ida Catherine Clarke 31.8.72.8

More details of Joseph Clarke, Marine Row 5.2.76.5

Clay

Statue of James Clay to be received at the Guildhall 18.12.75.5

Death of James Clay MP 27.9.73.5

Leader and meetings following death of James Clay MP 11.10.73.7

Leader on retirement of Mr Clay 10.5.73.6 Proposed retirement of Mr Clay 16.5.68.6

Testimonial to Mr Clay 7.6.73.5

Cobbett

George Dawson lecture on William Cobbett to Lit & Phil 15.2.68.6

Colenso

Leader on Voycey, Colenso, Newman 19.11.70.5

Constable

Death of Sir Clifford Constable 24.12.70.5, 7.1.71.2

Funeral of Sir Clifford Constable 31.12.70.5

Boiler explosion at residence of Talbot Constable, son of Sir Talbot Constable. House has frontages on Hessle Rd. and Coltman St. 5.1.67.3

Sale of Sir Clifford Constable's horses, carriages, etc. 11.3.71.5

Cooper

Proposed testimonial to Sir Henry Cooper 23.12.76.6

**Count Woba** 

Lecture on Poland at Hull & E R College by Count Woba 24.8.72.5

Craddock

T Craddock one of the candidates for organist of Holy Trinity - organist of St. John's, Paddington, played at funeral service to Rev. J H Bromby 4.4.68.6

T Craddock organist of Holy Trinity passed 1<sup>st</sup> degree of B. Music, Oxford 18.11.71.5

Mr Craddock new organist of Holy Trinity 16.5.68.6

Messiah conducted by T Craddock of Henglers Circus 21.12.72.6

Craddock composition Christ Our Passover, sung at Christ Church 11.4.74.5

Messiah at Hengler's Circus - T C Craddock 24.12.70.6

Crickmer

Reference to Rev. W R Crickmer, History of Collegiate Church of St. John of Beverley 17.9.70.6

Cussons

Marriage of John Cussons, grocer, to Mary Ruth daughter of William Drury Herbert, Waltham St. chapel, June 8<sup>th</sup> 13.6.74.8

Czarwich

Visit of Czarwich to Earles yard re new yacht 29.8.74.6

Corporation and visit of Czarwich 5.7.73.6

To visit Hull 28.6.73.5

Visit of Czarwich to Hull 5.7.73.3

Dale

Report Mr Dale's works at Springhead 11.3.71.7

Biographical sketch of late Thomas Dale, waterworks engineer at Hull, native of Daventon, Cheshire. Author of On the Supply of Water from the Lake Districts of Cumberland and Westmoreland, published Hull 1866 10.7.75.6

**Dales** 

David Dales opened Grove Steam Saw Mill 2.2.67.4

Dawson

George Dawson lecture on America to Hull Lit & Phil 24.4.75.6 George Dawson lecture on William Cobbett to Lit & Phil 15.2.68.6

Day

Marriage of John Bannister to Jane Schofield Day 21.12.67.4

**Dickens** 

Death of Charles Dickens 1.6.70.5

Dixon

Marriage at Birkin Church March 16<sup>th</sup> by the Rev. F K Sorres, James Seward Soutter of Hedon to Catherine younger daughter of late George Dixon of Preston in Holderness 20.3.75.8

Dobler

Herr Dobler's Dark Séance in Hull 7.9.72.6

Drant

Death of Councillor William Drant 16.3.67.2

**Duke of Edinburgh** 

Local celebrations for marriage of Duke of Edinburgh and Grand Duchess Marie of Russia 24.1.74.5

**Dykes** 

Death at St. Leonards the Rev. John Baccus Dykes, vicar of St. Oswald's, Durham 22<sup>nd</sup> January 29.1.76.6 Letter on Rev. Dr Dykes birthplace, Lime St 4.3.76.3

Memorial service for Dr J B Dykes at St. John's church 6.5.76.6

Earl of Yarborough

Death of Earl of Yarborough 13.2.75.8 Presentation to Earl of Yarborough 16.1.75.8 Sale of Earl of Yarborough's stud 20.3.75.8

Earle

Death of Charles Earle of shipbuilding firm 20.8.70.5 Death of Thomas Earle, sculptor, in London 6.5.76.5 Report on death of Thomas Earle 13.5.76.5

Edwards

Marriage A N Edwards to Eleanor Pease, Hessle 24.1.74.5

**Elliott** 

Lecture on Public Health by Dr Elliott - Lit & Phil 12.2.70.6

**Emperor of Brazil** 

Expected to visit Hull 22.7.76.7

**Everett-Greene** 

Mrs Everett-Greene lecture on the Siege of Hull 17.8.67.6

**Evers** 

Marriage All Saint's Church the Rev. Edwin Evers, vicar of Newland, to Fanny, only daughter of John Saxilbye, solicitor 18.6.70.8

Eyre

Marriage St. Peter's, Rev. Christopher Bromby to Elizabeth Eyre of Hull 2.12.71.8

Farnell

Visit of Mr Farnell to Sculcoates Workhouse 28.12.67.6&7

Ferens

Marriage Kingston Wesleyan Chapel, Hull by the Rev J Hugh Beech, Thomas Robinson Ferens to Ester Eleen (Ettie) daughter of William Field, no cards 13.9.73

Field

Death at East Parade, Holderness Road, Richard Robert Field, brother of William Field, merchant 17.4.69.8 Marriage Kingston Wesleyan Chapel, Hull by the Rev J Hugh Beech, Thomas Robinson Ferens to Ester Eleen (Ettie) daughter of William Field, no cards 13.9.73

**Flowers** 

Death of Rev. W H Flowers vicar of Ulceby 18.9.75.8

**Fonge** 

Contents of Football Green Villa for sale, late Rev. Christopher Fonge, Hornsea 26.4.73.1

Freeman

E A Freeman lecture on Edward I, Lit & Phil 7.12.67.6

E A Freeman, lecture on the Origin of the English Race, to Lit & Phil 8.1.70.5

Lecture by A Freeman, Early Historical Notices of Yorkshire 26.2.76.6&7

French

Church Schools, report on Education in the North and East Ridings by Rev. G French 17.8.67.4

**Furley** 

Marriage St Stephen's church, the Rev. Philip Kemball Fyson, MA, curate of Drypool to Eleanor Furley, later Bishop of Hokkaido 24.1.74.8

**Fussey** 

Marriage October 15<sup>th</sup> St. Peter's Drypool, Robert Fussey of Holderness Road to Ann Meadley daughter of John Meadley Speck, Esq. 19.10.72.7

**Fyson** 

Marriage St Stephen's church, the Rev. Philip Kemball Fyson, MA, curate of Drypool to Eleanor Furley, later Bishop of Hokkaido 24.1.74.8

Garbutt

Hull Local Board of Health meeting Includes Garbutt's Boulevard scheme 2.1.75.6

Leader on Mr Garbutt, Hull builder, Princes Avenue 28.10.71.4

Presentation to Councillor D P Garbutt, builder 3.1.74.2

Proposed Boulevard for Hull, Mr Garbutt 19.9.74.5

Mr Garbutt's improvement scheme, Princes Ave. 12.9.74.5

Report Mr Garbutt's drainage works 17.10.74.5

Garrett

Lecture by Rev. Charles Garrett on the Education of Children at George Yard Chapel 12.10.67.7

Gee

Marriage at Freshford Church, Bath, by Rev. Thomas Scott, vicar of West Ham, the Rev. John Scott MA vicar of St. Mary's Hull, to Edith 6<sup>th</sup> daughter of William Gee, Woodside Freshford, Bath 22.4.71.8

Gibbson

Lecture on Scottish Ballads, J H Gibbson 23.3.72.6

Gilbert

W S Gilbert Performance of Pygmalion and Galatea 15.5.75.5

Goe

60 guineas sent to Christian Missionary Society be congregation of Christ Church thanksgiving for recovery from serious illness of vicar F F Goe 27.1.72.4

Presentation to Rev. F F & Mrs Goe, Christ Church, leaving for Sunderland, later rector of St. George's, Bloomsbury and Bishop of Melbourne 12.7.73.5

Rev. F F Goe lecture on the Monks of Old England, Church Institute 22.2.68.6

Goundrill

Appointment as Parish Overseers Patrington Robert Meadley for Kilnsea Matt Goundrill for Skeffling and George Marriott, Thomas Harrison and John Spilman for Sunk Island

5.4.73

Gravill

Funeral of Captain Gravill of the Diana 4.5.67.7

Movement to erect a monument to Captain Gravill 30.11.67.6

Greenwell

Canon Greenwell discoveries in tumuli near Rudston 4.12.69.3

Canon Greenwell lecture to Lit & Phil Barrows on the Yorkshire Wolds 15.4.71.7

Report on tumuli on Yorks. Wolds, survey by Canon Greenwell 5.4.73.7

Greenwood

James Greenwood lecture, A night in a Workhouse 12.12.68.6

Grotrian

F B Grotrian and municipal honours 15.5.75.5

Gruggen

Death in Liverpool, March 30<sup>th</sup> at 51, Rev. Frederick James Gruggen, MA, headmaster of Pocklington Grammar School 6.4.72.8

Gurnhill

Presentation to Rev. J Gurnhill of Holy Trinity 12.10.67.5

Gurntell

Rev. J Gurntell last sermon at Holy Trinity 31.8.67.6

Hagen

Tenders for erection of double fronted house Anlaby Rd opposite Coltman St, F W Hagen architect 26.8.71.4

Hall

Rev. Newman Hall to visit Hull 27.4.67.6

Haller

Thomas Haller letter on management of Hull Industrial Schools 1.11.73.6 Letter on Board of Health and houses in Walmsley St. Thomas Haller 12.1.67.3

Hardy

Death 61 Spring Street at 38. John Hardy, 18 years master St. Stephen's Boys School 26.10.72.8

Harland

Death of John Harland FSA late of Hull 2.5.68.6

Sunk Island election of Overseers of the Poor, Thomas Harrison and John Spilman, George Harland and John Meadley 6.4.72.4

Harrison

Appointment as Parish Overseers Patrington Robert Meadley for Kilnsea Matt Goundrill for Skeffling and George Marriott, Thomas Harrison and John Spilman for Sunk Island 5.4.73

Sunk Island election of Overseers of the Poor, Thomas Harrison and John Spilman, George Harland and John Meadley 6.4.72.4

Haslam

Marriage Miss Sykes of Kirk Ella to Rev. C E Haslam, ex curate of Kirk Ella 12.6.69.6

Haworth

Death of Benjamin Haworth 4.4.68.6

Herbert

Marriage of John Cussons, grocer, to Mary Ruth daughter of William Drury Herbert, Waltham St. chapel, June 8<sup>th</sup> 13.6.74.8

Hewitt

Letter from T F Hewitt on French wounded in Franco-Prussian War 3.9.70.5

Letter on vivisection, T F Hewitt 8.1.76.3

Testimonial to T F Hewitt 4.1.68.6

Hodge

Death at Withernsea of Samuel Hodge, seed crusher, 59 years 3.7.69.8

Death of Alderman Hodge 16.11.67.4

Holto

Theft. 351lbs of beef taken from larder of Rev. G W Holto, Barton 2.2.67.5

Hood

Lecture Hull Church Institute by Tom Hood, jun. 13.1.72.6

Huffam

Meeting of Dock Co. on resignation of Mr Huffam, secretary 31.8.67.4

Hunter

Drowned at sea, C H Atkinson and Walter Hunter off smack in a gale 25.1.68.7

Huntingdon

Death of Frederick Huntingdon, surgeon 21.11.74.5

Jackson

Lecture on Music by Fred Jackson, organist of Christ Church 2.2.67.3

Jacobs

Death of Bethel Jacobs 1.1.70.7

Jalland

Marriage Emily Jalland of Holderness House to R G Webster of Montrose 20.4.72

Jameson

Gift of brass lectern to Cottingham church by R W Jameson 13.7.72.7

Tenders for altering East Ella House for Robert Jameson, this later became White City, William Botterill 16.3.72.4

Johnson

Robert Meadley Tarbotton apprentice to Moses Johnson of Ottringham, case of misconduct as apprentice 22.6.72

Jones

Death of Ernest Jones 30.1.69.5

W H Jones lecture Hull in the Olden Time 11.11.76.5

Jukes

Lit and Phil, Rev. A Jukes lecture on the Drama of Western Civilisation 16.2.67.7

Marriage St. James church, August 22<sup>nd</sup> by the Rev. Andrew Jukes, father of the groom, Edward Jukes, solicitor, Birmingham, to Ida Catherine Clarke 31.8.72.8

Presentation to Rev. Jukes, Fish St. Chapel 6.7.67.6

Keary

Death in London of Lucy, widow of late Rev. W Keary, ex curate of Sculcoates and later rector of Nunnington, York. Mother of Annie Keary, Hull novelist 2.10.69.8

Kemp

Letter from the Rev. H W Kemp on vacant Grammar School headship 16.5.68.6 Letter proposed statue of First Mayor of Hull, Rev. H W Kemp 28.12.67.4

Kemp continued

Marriage August 10<sup>th</sup> St. Johns, Henry Lowther Clarke B A scholar St. Johns Cambridge and vicar of Hedon to Alice Lovell 2<sup>nd</sup> daughter of the Rev. W H Kemp, Mater of the Charterhouse 19.8.76.8

The De la Poles of Hull, long account. No name given but likely to be by Rev. W H Kemp, Master of the Charterhouse 30.12.76.6

Rev. H W Kemp letter on restoration Holy Trinity 23.2.67.2, 23.3.67.5

Kendall

Mr and Mrs Kendall at the Theatre Royal. Later Dame Madge Kendall, born Grimsby later lived in Hull where her father was lessee of theatre in Humber St. Theatrical career began in Hull 5.12.74.5 Visit to Hull of Mr and Mrs Kendall (later Dame Madge Kendall famous actress born Grimsby later resident in Hull) 6.11.75.6

Kenealy

Dr Kenealy visit to Hull, long account 10.4.75.6

Keyworth

W D Keyworth jun commissioned for statue of Sir William de la Pole 3.4.69.4

William De la Pole statue completed by Keyworth 16.7.70.6

W D Keyworth given commission for recumbent figure of late Dean of Chester 7.10.76.5

W D Keyworth completion of 2 lions for entrance of a Hull mansion 6.9.73

Kinealy

Visit of Dr Kinealy to Hull 27.3.75.5

King

Dinner to Dr Kelburne King by Lit & Phil, long account 19.4.73.6

Hannah Thorley on poisoning charge death of John King son of late station master at Beverley 6.7.67.4 Kelburne King address to Lit & Phil - refs. to Charles Dickens 6.11.69.6

Letter from Kelburne King on slaves boarding British vessels - no longer slaves with other signatures 29.1.76.4

Marriage at North Ferriby, Richard Joseph Wade eldest son of Joseph Armitage Wade of Hornsea to Jane Isabella eldest daughter of W Robinson King of Ferriby House 12.10.72.8

Kinnear

Banquet at Alexandra Hotel, Hornsea, to Revs. H G Kinnear, G O Browne and G Burnell, end of Holy Trinity curacies following appointment of canon Brooke 27.7.67.6

Presentation to Rev. H G Kinnear 31.8.67.6

**Kirby** 

Tenders for erecting a dwelling house at Cottingham, Wm. Kirby 15.6.67.1

Kirk

Death at Providence Cottage, Dansom Lane, aged 66, Elizabeth relict of Mr W Kirk and sister of late J D Sollitt, Grammar School, Hull 12.10.72.8

Lambert

Agricultural labourers Meeting at Patrington And letter from Charles Lambert 2.3.72.7

Larard

Presentation to Councillor Larard 10.1.74.3

Death of Lt. Col. Layard, Chief Constable of the East Riding, Bernard Granville, 60 28.9.72

Leetham

Death of William Leetham of Bailey & Leetham 16.1.75.5

Leng

Libel case W C Leng v Earl and Countess of Sefton 12.11.70.7

Presentation to W C Leng late of Hull 2.5.68.6

T S Bonnin letter J W Leng 28.5.70.7

Liddell

Funeral of Henry Liddell 18.9.75.5

Long

Death of Archdeacon Long late of East Riding, rector of Bolton Percy 9.10.75.7

**Lord Burghley** 

Marriage of Lord Burghley to Isabella Whichcote of Aswardly Hall, Lincs. 4.9.75.3 Lord Hotham Funeral of Lord Hotham 24.12.70.5 Lord William Lenox Lecture on Theodore Hook by Lord William Lenox 30.11.72.5 Lowson Keyingham election of Overseers of the Poor, Peter Lowson and Robert Meadley 6.4.72.4 Lubbock Meeting Lubbock Ten Hours Bill 14.6.73.5 Meeting Town Hall, Sir John Lubbock Shop Hours Bill 17.5.73.5 Lumsden Death of Mr J Lumsden JP22.7.76.5 Marriott Appointment as Parish Overseers Patrington Robert Meadley for Kilnsea Matt Goundrill for Skeffling and George Marriott, Thomas Harrison and John Spilman for Sunk Island 5.4.73 Marshall Charles Marshall, miller, in court or stealing a canary property of Robert Marshall, landlord of Holderness Inn - 40s and costs or 2 months 30.9.71.6 Marriage St. Matthew's church, W A Walker to Sophia Marshall, 1st marriage in church 20.7.72.8 Marvel Presentation of Marvel statue 2.11.67.6 Report on death of Andrew Marvel 21.3.74.3 Statue of Andrew Marvel for Town Hall 15.6.67.6 Mavfield Death of Alderman Mayfield 14.10.76.5 McCormick Rev. J McCormick appointed rural dean of Hull 30.10.75.5 Rev. Joseph McCormick has accepted the living of Holy Trinity, Hull 24.7.75.5 Rev. Joseph McCormick new vicar of Holy Trinity read himself in 21.8.75.5 Rev. J McCormick preached ordination sermon in York Minster 18.12.75.6 Rev. J McCormick lecture on Amusements 11.3.76.5 Meadley Death of George Meadley, farmer Sunk Island, aged 59 (great grandfather of John Meadley) 24.5.73.8 Marriage October 15<sup>th</sup> St. Peter's Drypool, Robert Fussey of Holderness Road to Ann Meadley daughter of John Meadley Speck, Esq. 19.10.72.7 Appointment as Parish Overseers Patrington Robert Meadley for Kilnsea Matt Goundrill for Skeffling and George Marriott, Thomas Harrison and John Spilman for Sunk Island List of new Overseers for the poor, S Holderness Robert Meadley for Keyingham George Brown and John Spilman for Sunk Island 10.4.75.3 Keyingham election of Overseers of the Poor, Peter Lowson and Robert Meadley Sunk Island election of Overseers of the Poor, Thomas Harrison and John Spilman, George Harland and John 6.4.72.4 Meadley Monkman Death of Charles Monkman scientific writer, Malton 24.4.75.7 Moore Death of Rev. R G Moore vicar of Horkstow 6.7.67.4 Morris Rev. F O Morris on Sheffield wasters shooting seabirds at Brid and Flamborough 6.4.67.5 Rev. F O Morris and loss of land in East Yorks., reported from Pall Mall Gazette 2.9.71.5 Mortimer Discoveries at Fimber 21.5.70.7

J R Mortimer discoveries on Yorks. Wolds 8.11.73.7

Moss

Death of W H Moss, Free Library promoter 10.1.74.5

Neruda

Madame Neruda Concert in Hull 2.3.72.5

Newman

Leader on Voycey, Colenso, Newman 19.11.70.5

Newmarsh

Marriage at St. Stephens, Paddington of the Rev. Charles Walsham to Mary Caroline Newmarsh 31.8.67.8 Nonabell Death 69 Walmsley Street John Nonabell 62 18.4.74.8 Norwood Erection of a tablet in St. Stephen's church to mother of C M Norwood, MP 20.4.72.5 Report of Mr Norwood against Mr Plimsoll 15.7.76.5 Opening of Beverley Church Institute Ohlson Birth at 72 Park St. to wife of Rev. George Ohlson, a daughter 6.7.72.8 **Paget** Marriage of Sir Henry Boynton to Mildred Augusta Paget of Welton 5.8.76.6 **Parry** Report on new theatre building for Sefton Parry in Paragon St. to be Queen's Royal Theatre 10.6.71.5 **Pearson** Zachary Pearson elected assistant at Trinity House 11.4.74.5 Pease Broadsheet for Colonel Pease 11.10.73 Marriage A N Edwards to Eleanor Pease, Hessle 24.1.74.5 Marriage Kirk Ella H J R Pease to D E Barkworth 17.4.69.8 Plimsoll C H Wilson and support for Samuel Plimsoll 16.1.75.7 Case Norwood v Plimsoll 14.6.73.5 Hedon Town Council Mr Plimsoll and seamen 22.3.73.7 Leader Mr Plimsoll and the sailors 22.3.73.5 Leader on Mr Plimsoll's visit to Hull, long account Meeting in Hull against Mr Plimsoll's Bill 3.5.73.6 Monster meeting to be held in Hull next week, Mr Plimsoll 29.3.73.7 Mr Plimsoll's movement, action by C M Norwood MP 26.4.73.7 Mr S Plimsoll and unseaworthy ships Report of Mr Norwood against Mr Plimsoll 15.7.76.5 Report of Plimsoll Movement 1.11.73.6 Pollock For sale premises house and garden suitable for smackowner belonging to John Charles Pollock smackowner 16.12.71.1 Popple Report on William Popple, Mayor of Hull 17.9.70.6 Preston Death at Bulmer House, Castle Howard aged 86, the Rev. William Preston, MA, senior canon of York and 61 years vicar of Bulmer 13.7.67.8 Priestman Death of Samuel Priestman, Sutton, 73, Resident Director of North Eastern and of Hull Dock Co. 13.4.72.5 Funeral of Samuel Priestman 20.4.72.6 **Prince Christian** Visit of Prince Christian to Hull 22.10.70.7 Prince of Wales At Brantinghamthorpe 16.9.76.6 Local thanksgiving for recovery of Prince of Wales 2.3.72.6 Princess of Wales Plans for visit of Prince and Princess of Wales 3.7.69.3 Visit of Prince and Princess of Wales to Hull includes opening of Albert Dock 24.7.69.5&6&7 Prvme Death at Wistow, Cambridge, July 18<sup>th</sup> aged 82, Jane relict of George Pryme late MP for Cambridge 29.7.71.8

Page 81

12.12.68.6

11.7.68.6

Death of George Pryme, barrister at Wistow, Cambridge

Lecture Geology of your own neighbourhood by Rev. J L Raines

Death of Mary Railer, 106 reported age

Railer

Raines

Ravner

Pickering milk maid in court for adding urine to milk, horsewhipped by her employer, 1 month with hard labour, Mary Rayner 29.4.76.7

Reckitt

Death 53 Park St. Harriet Thorpe wife of John Reckitt 7.5.70.8

Marriage Francis Reckitt of Hessle to Alice Caroline daughter of late Rev. George Harris, at Ringwood, Hants., July 18<sup>th</sup>

Reed

Lecture by E J Reed, CE, to Lit & Phil, Strains to which ships are subjected 13.4.72

Reeves

Visit of Simms Reeves to Hull 19.10.72.5

Restori

Madame Restori at Theatre Royal 26.7.73.6

Richardson

John Richardson letter on certain cure for influenza 15.4.71.3

Lecture by John Richardson on Local Coinage in Hull - Edward I to George III 23.3.72.5

Letter from John Richardson on Edward Richardson, Alderman and Mayor of Hull, long letter 5.6.75.3

Marriage Rev. James Sibree to Deborah Hannah Richardson, 22<sup>nd</sup> February 26.2.70.8

Roberts

Election of G C Roberts as new Town Clerk of Hull 18.2.71.6

Lecture by Alderman Roberts on Household Suffrage, to Working Men's Club 23.3.67.2

Robinson

Rev. Canon Brooke has appointed the Rev. G Robinson, curate of St. Stephens, to curacy of St. Michael and All Angels 10.8.67.6

Robson

Sproatley Grange, destruction by fire, Henry Robson 2.2.67.3

Rollitt

Death of John Rollitt, solicitor 13.12.73.5 Dr Rollitt address on education 13.3.75.6

Hull Order of Druids Present to Dr Rollitt 20.11.75.6

Marriage St. Peter, Anlaby A K Rollitt of Spring Villa, Anlaby, to Eleanor Ann, 2<sup>nd</sup> daughter of W Bailey of Field House, Anlaby, steam ship owner 31.8.72.8

Royal

More details of Royal visit31.7.69.6

Visit to Hull, programme of proceedings 10.7.69.5, 17.7.69.5

Samuelson

Marriage Hessle February 18<sup>th</sup> Martin Samuelson C E of Hessle to Catherine 2<sup>nd</sup> daughter of Anthony Bannister JP of Hessle 25.2.71.6

Sandwith

Death - at his son's residence, Todworth Rectory near Sheffield, aged 82, Humphrey Sandwith, formerly senior physician Hull General Infirmary, 25<sup>th</sup> July 1.8.74.6

Saxilbye

Marriage All Saint's Church the Rev. Edwin Evers, vicar of Newland, to Fanny, only daughter of John Saxilbye, solicitor 18.6.70.8

Scott

Lecture by Rev. J Scott on Gothic Architecture Mechanics Institute 23.2.67.3

Lecture by Rev. J Scott on Rubrics of the Prayer Book

Lecture on Town Churches by Gilbert Scott 18.3.76.5

Marriage at Freshford Church, Bath, by Rev. Thomas Scott, vicar of West Ham, the Rev. John Scott MA vicar of St. Mary's Hull, to Edith 6<sup>th</sup> daughter of William Gee, Woodside Freshford, Bath 22.4.71.8

Memorial contemplated to the Rev. Thomas Scott, Bible Commentator, in St. Mary's, Lowgate

Relief of the poor in Hull - J Scott in chair 19.1.67.5 Rev. John Scott and Morris nuisance

15.8.68.6

Seaman

Death at Uckfield, John Simpson Seaman late of Polar Bear and Museum, Spring Bank 21.12.72.8

Sefton

Libel case W C Leng v Earl and Countess of Sefton 12.11.70.7

Selkirk

Death of James Selkirk chaplain of Hull Gaol 18.2.71.6

Death at North Adelaide of Thomas Sibree, 28, second son of Rev. James Sibree and late Assistant Surveyor

14.9.72.7

26.2.70.8

Death of Richard Fleetwoode Shawe, recent owner of Brantinghamthorpe, dies of small pox

6.11.69.8 Marriage Rev. James Sibree to Deborah Hannah Richardson, 22<sup>nd</sup> February

Ordination of James Sibree for Madagascar Mission 12.2.70.7

Shawe

Sibree

Local Board of health, Hull

Simons		
Clasitor	Marriage of Rev. J H Wicksteed curate of Christ Church to Anna Maria Simons step daughter of Rev. W H Kemp, later vicar of Hedon and of Pocklington 18.4.68.4	
Skelton	Death of J G Skelton organist of Holy Trinity 66. Feb 11 <sup>th</sup> 15.2.68.7&8	
	Hull Harmonic Society meeting, ref. to Skelton, Dead March in Saul played 22.2.68.6	
	Reported death of Mr Skelton, organist of Holy Trinity, proposed memorial 20.3.69.5	
Slater	reported death of the sketten, organist of froit framely, proposed memorial 20.5.00%	
	Death at Hedon of Samuel Standidge Slater, grandson of ex Mayor of Hull, interred Burstwick, 74 extensive farmer 14.12.72.7	
Sleight		
	Acquittal of Charles Sleight, manager of Deaf and Dumb Asylum, Dock St., for murder 31.7.71.5	
Smith		
	Presentation to Charles Edwin Smith, surgeon of the Diana 17.8.67.6	
Snowde		
G 11144	Presentation to Henry Snowden, foreign cattle dealer, Hull 26.1.67.7	
Sollitt	Death of Continue to CA and the CLUB December 2011/4 of the continue to the co	
	Death at Scarborough of Ann widow of John Dawson Sollitt of this town, April 10 <sup>th</sup> 15.4.71.8  Death of J D Sollitt, headmaster of Hull Grammar School and obituary notice 25.4.68.5&8	
Coulchy	•	
Soulsby	Case Capt. George Soulsby breach Prevention of Cholera 19.8.71.6	
Soutter	Case Capt. George Soursby breach revention of Cholera 17.6.71.0	
Doutter	Death June 14 <sup>th</sup> James Soutter, druggist, Hedon 22.6.72.8	
	Marriage at Birkin Church March 16 <sup>th</sup> by the Rev. F K Sorres, James Seward Soutter of Hedon to Catherine	
	younger daughter of late George Dixon of Preston in Holderness 20.3.75.8	
Spilman		
•	Appointment as Parish Overseers Patrington Robert Meadley for Kilnsea Matt Goundrill for Skeffling and	
	George Marriott, Thomas Harrison and John Spilman for Sunk Island 5.4.73	
	List of new Overseers for the poor, S Holderness Robert Meadley for Keyingham George Brown and John	
	Spilman for Sunk Island 10.4.75.3	
	Sunk Island election of Overseers of the Poor, Thomas Harrison and John Spilman, George Harland and John	
	Meadley 6.4.72.4	
Stanwith		
	Late Dr Stanwith, a large oil portrait of this gent been placed in Beverley Town Hall, a gift from the family	
	27.4.67.6	
Starkie	W 1 47 A 11 A 1 A 1 A 1 A 1 A 1 A 1 A 1 A 1 A	
G	Murder of Emma Starkie, Coughy St. 21.1.71.5	
Stathan		
C41 -	Rev. W M Statham lecture on National Education 26.3.70.6	
Steele	I Steele amplieted vice uniquinal of IIvil & E.D. College, on total to control Described Lincoln (1705)	
Ctowns	J Steele appointed vice principal of Hull & E R College, ex tutor to son of President Lincoln 6.1.72.5	
Storrs	Death of Mary Charlotte wife of Rev. Townsend Storrs, curate of St. Stephen's 16.1.69.8	
Swann	Death of Mary Charlotte wife of Key. Townsend Storts, curate of St. Stephen's 10.1.09.8	
Swaiiii	Opening of new streets in Hull - Lincoln, Swann, Oxford, for John Swann 2.5.68.4	
Sykes	Opening of new succes in 11un Emeoni, Swann, Oxford, for John Swann 2.5.00.4	
Бунсь	Archbishop of York refusal to consecrate Thixendale church, trouble with Sir Tatton Sykes 13.8.70.7	
	Foundation stone of Fimber church laid by Sir Tatton Sykes 31.7.69.7	
	Christopher Sykes speech on preservation of birds 6.3.69.6	
	Funeral of Mary Elizabeth Sykes at Brantingham elder daughter of late Sir Tatton Sykes 3.4.75.3	
	Marriage Miss Sykes of Kirk Ella to Rev. C E Haslam, ex curate of Kirk Ella 12.6.69.6	
	Report on Major Sykes and his work for West Ella 12.2.70.7	

Symons
--------

Hull in the ancient Time, lecture by John Symons 30.12.76.6

Hullimia - Understood Councillor Symons writing work on early history of Hull 30.9.71.5

J Symons lecture Hull and the Hothams 4.2.71.6

J Symons lecture on Hull Fisheries 12.2.70.6

J Symons lecture on Hull previous to the visit of Edward I, Mechanics Institute 14.12.67.6

J Symons lecture on Old Hull 21.12.72.6

J Symons lecture, Our Ancient Churchyards 29.1.70.6

Marriage at Birmingham of Councillor John Symons and Rosy Levy of Windsor, inmates of Hull Workhouse treat at bridegroom's expense 30.8.73.3

Presentation to John Symons 13.12.73.6

## **Symons continued**

Round about Old Hull, John Symons 21.3.74.3

Visitors Guide to Hull by John Symons published 17.8.67.6

#### **Tarbotton**

Robert Meadley Tarbotton apprentice to Moses Johnson of Ottringham, case of misconduct as apprentice 22.6.72

# Thompson

Death of General Thomas Perronet Thompson 11.9.69.5

Funeral Thomas Thompson, ex Town Clerk of Hull 25.4.74.5

Researches into History of Welton and Neighbourhood, Thomas Thompson, long account 9.4.70.6

#### Thorley

Hannah Thorley on poisoning charge death of John King son of late station master at Beverley 6.7.67.4

#### Thumb

Visit to Hull of General Tom Thumb and his wife 23.9.71.5

#### Tichborne

Tichborne meeting in Hull 4.3.76.7

#### Todd

C S Todd lecture Incidents in Town of Hull 23.11.67.6

C S Todd lecture on Battle of Brunaburgh 29.4.76.3

C S Todd lectures on the Journey of Henry VIII through Lincs. en route for York
C S Todd, 2<sup>nd</sup> contribution to history in Hull - Hull from Henry VII to Henry VIII
24.4.69.4

C S Todd, lecture Cromwell and his Contemporaries 13.11.69.6

Leader on C S Todd, antiquarian 18.5.67.4

Marriage All Saints church, Hull, George Bohn, civil engineer, to Alice Ruth Mary younger daughter of Charles Spilman Todd, solicitor 6.6.74.8

# Tombleson

Report late Thomas Tombleson of Barton 20.11.75.8

#### Toogood

Death of Thomas Toogood ex councillor - Sculcoates soup kitchen 11.3.71.5

# Trappes

Death at St. Charles of the Very Rev. Dean Trappes, 76 14.6.73.8

# **Travis**

Leader on Mr Travis salary 21.6.73.5

# **Trollope**

Anthony Trollope lecture to YPI on English Prose Fiction 29.1.70.6

Death April 23<sup>rd</sup>, 35, Rev. Arthur Barnard Trollope, rector of Cowlam, at Beverley 27.4.72.8

#### Vickers

Death of Hull Workhouse Master and Matron 19.1.67.2

# Voycey

Appeal 19.11.70.7

Case Rev. Charles Voycey rector of Healaugh 12.11.70.5

Leader on Voycey, Colenso, Newman 19.11.70.5

Prosecution of Rev. Charles Voysey for heresy 4.12.69.3

#### Wade

Marriage at North Ferriby, Richard Joseph Wade eldest son of Joseph Armitage Wade of Hornsea to Jane Isabella eldest daughter of W Robinson King of Ferriby House 12.10.72.8

# Walker

Marriage St. Matthew's church, W A Walker to Sophia Marshall, 1<sup>st</sup> marriage in church 20.7.72.8

Walliker

Request for flowers for the sick poor, S Walliker 29.4.76.6

Wallis

Death of Ebenezer Wallis, late proprietor of Hull Times, leader 31.8.72.5

Walsham

Death of Mary Caroline wife of Rev. Charles Walsham, vicar of Sculcoates 14.12.72.8

Marriage at St. Stephens, Paddington of the Rev. Charles Walsham to Mary Caroline Newmarsh 31.8.67.8 Rev. C Walsham letter on church building and schools for Sculcoates 23.2.67.3

Walton

Death of Captain Samuel Standige Walton, 74 9.5.68.8

Funeral of the Rev. Samuel Standidge Walton in General Cemetery 12.10.67.6

Ward

Death of Thomas Ward, shipowner 11.1.68.6

Funeral of Thomas Ward 18.1.68.6

Report late Thomas Ward 25.1.68.5

Warden

Leader on Mr Warden and Springbank 25.3.71.4

Leader on treatment of Mr Warden 1.4.71.4

Letter on Mr Warden 20.2.69.7 Mr Wardens claims 26.3.70.6

Warden Inquiry Committee Meeting 4.7.68.4

Warden Remuneration Committee Meeting 9.4.70.6, 5.8.71.5

Warren

Marriage St. Thomas Marylebone, S Warren, recorder of Hull, to Miss Beaumont 26.8.71.8

Watson

Rev. John Watson, curate of All Saints, left to become vicar of Hanley 15.7.76.5

Wellesley

Marriage October 5<sup>th</sup> St. John's, Forton, C H Wilson of Park House, Cottingham to Florence Jane Helen Wellesley 21.10.71.8

Marriage of C H Wilson, Sheriff of Hull, to Florence Wellesley 7.10.71.5

Wells

Death of Robert Wells, Town Clerk of Hull 11.2.71.5

Marriage at Poplar on August 20<sup>th</sup> Robert Wells, Town Clerk of Hull, to Emily Marian, elder daughter of late

Charles C Celley of Poplar 24.8.67.8 Testimonial to ex mayor Wells 18.3.76.5

Whichcote

Marriage of Lord Burghley to Isabella Whichcote of Aswardly Hall, Lincs. 4.9.75.3

Wicksteed

Marriage of Rev. J H Wicksteed curate of Christ Church to Anna Maria Simons step daughter of Rev. W H Kemp, later vicar of Hedon and of Pocklington 18.4.68.4

Wilson

C H Wilson on Sunday Closing Bill 25.9.75.5

C H Wilson and Hull fishermen 25.9.75.6

C H Wilson and support for Samuel Plimsoll 16.1.75.7

Death of Thomas Wilson, Park House, shipbuilder, in 78<sup>th</sup> year 26.6.69.4

Funeral of Thomas Wilson, General Cemetery 3.7.69.6

John Wilson presentation after performance of Israel in Egypt 16.5.68.6

Leader on C H Wilson, Sheriff elect 26.11.70.5

Marriage October 5<sup>th</sup> St. John's, Forton, C H Wilson of Park House, Cottingham to Florence Jane Helen

Wellesley 21.10.71.8

Marriage of C H Wilson, Sheriff of Hull, to Florence Wellesley 7.10.71.5

Wing

Death of Joseph Wing, December 30<sup>th</sup> at 68, late Master of Patrington Workhouse 6.1.72.8

Witty

Funeral of Alderman Witty 18.10.73.4

Sermon on death of Alderman Witty 8.11.73.6

Wooley

Death February 28<sup>th</sup> Frances widow of late William Wooley ex Clerk of the Peace 2.3.72.8

# Young

Inquest on James Young, bookbinder and ex librarian of Mechanics Institute, lost in filth and vermin, 63 11.4.74.5

# Police

# **Police**

# **Chief Constable**

Death of Lt. Col. Layard, Chief Constable of the East Riding, Bernard Granville, 60 28.9.72

Dismissal

Of policeman Ballman 3.4.75.5

**Hull Police** 

2<sup>nd</sup> annual tea meeting Hull Police, long account 8.2.73.5

Anniversary of Hull police 1.5.75.6

Case perjury charges against Hull police 19.3.70.5 Government inspection of Hull Police 29.7.71.5

Grievances of Hull Police 3.8.67.3 Report Hull Police Force 4.5.72.6

**Police Inquiry Committee** 

Several refs. in these issues 29.1.70

**Special Constables** 

Swearing in of special constable in connection with Fenian troubles 4.1.68.6

Letter on special constables 11.1.68.4

Meeting special constables Sculcoates 18.1.68.6

Meeting special constables 18.1.68.7, 25.1.68.7

**Street Disturbances** 

Leader on street disturbances and the police 3.8.72.5

**Watch Committee** 

Meeting

Hull Packet and Hull Times and the police 10.8.72.6

Proposed increase of police force 27.2.75.5

# Population

# Population

Hull

Article on population of Hull 10.5.73.6

# Poverty & Poor Relief

## **Board of Guardians**

Beverley

Meeting 1.5.75.7, 22.4.76.7

Bridlington

Meeting 29.5.75.7

Driffield

Meeting 24.1.74.3, 18.4.74.3, 20.3.75.8, 15.5.75.7, 18.3.76.6, 29.4.76.7, 27.5.76.7

And Rural Sanitary Authority 6.3.75.7

Hull

Election of Guardians in Hull 18.9.75.6 Meeting (reported regularly) 5.1.67.2 Re cabmen's shelters 20.5.76.5

Re paupers beer at Christmas 25.12.75.6

Long account 14.10.76.8

To replace Rev. T S Bonnin, resigned 20.6.68.6

What to do with our street Arabs 3.7.69.5

Sculcoates

Meeting (reported regularly) 5.1.67.5

And Catholic demands 29.6.72.6

Leader Mr Dix and Sculcoates Board of Guardians 11.3.71.5

Re drainage of Beetonville, Dairycoates, etc.13.5.71.6

Re measles outbreak 23.11.67.6 Re new Health Act 24.8.72.6

Cottingham

Cottingham, Carafa Carafa a Negro vagrant drunk and riotous 3.5.73.7

Tea for poor families at Cottingham 11.1.68.7

**Diana Relief Fund Committee** 

Meeting 9.3.67.2

**Distressed Foreigners Society** 

Distressed Foreigners Meeting in Hull 3.2.72.6 Meeting for relief of distressed foreigners 10.2.72.5

Helpless

Leader Help the Helpless 26.12.74

Overseers of the Poor

Holderness

Appointment as Parish Overseers Patrington Robert Meadley for Kilnsea Matt Goundrill for Skeffling and George Marriott, Thomas Harrison and John Spilman for Sunk Island 5.4.73

List of new Overseers for the poor, S Holderness Robert Meadley for Keyingham George Brown and John Spilman for Sunk Island 10.4.75.3

List Overseers Sproatley 10.4.75.3

Keyingham election of Overseers of the Poor, Peter Lowson and Robert Meadley 6.4.72.4

Patrington election of Overseers of the Poor 6.4.72.4

Sunk Island election of Overseers of the Poor, Thomas Harrison and John Spilman, George Harland

and John Meadley 6.4.72.4

**Paupers** 

Case of pauper destroying clothing 16.3.67.4

Children Leader on boarding out of pauper children 17.9.70.4, 1.10.70.4, 24.12.70.4&6

Concert at Patrington for aged poor 30.1.69.6

Disorderly paupers 18.9.75.8

S Walliker letter trip for the poor people of Hull 5.6.75.3

Treat for aged poor of East Sculcoates 13.3.75.5

**Rating Office** 

In Posterngate proposed that be used as a newsroom 5.1.67.2

Relief of the poor

Hull Hebrew Relief Society, table 2.2.67.4

In Hull - J Scott in chair 19.1.67.5

#### Poverty & Poor Relief

Soup Kitchens Death of Thomas Toogood ex councillor - Sculcoates soup kitchen 11.3.71.5 Letter on Sculcoates soup kitchen 11.1.68.4 Report E & W Sculcoates soup kitchen 28.12.67.7 Soup distribution at Bridlington 26.1.67.8 South Myton meeting Poor Law Union Sculcoates Meeting 27.2.75.5, 27.3.75.7, 3.4.75.5, 28.8.75.5 Hull Local Board of Health meeting Long account, case of alleged neglect Sculcoates Board Union 29.1.76.6 More details alleged neglect at Sculcoates Union 5.2.76.6 Treat to inmates Sculcoates Union 18.9.75.5 Hull New cooking apparatus at Hull Union 1.5.75.6 Vagrancy Cottingham, Carafa Carafa a Negro vagrant drunk and riotous 3.5.73.7 Hull Board of Guardians meeting what to do with our street Arabs 3.7.69.5 Leader on professional vagrancy in hull 2.9.76.4&5 Work Case refusing to work, Pocklington 24.4.75.7 Workhouse Brigg Tenders for building a chapel at Brigg Workhouse 1.7.76.1 Driffield Case of refactory casuals at Driffield Workhouse 1.5.75.7 Goole New Infirmary, Goole Workhouse opened 18.1.73.6 Hull Children's treat, Hull 10.7.75.5 Death of Hull Workhouse Master and Matron - Vickers 19.1.67.2 Government inspection at Hull Workhouse 9.7.70.6 Laying the rate, Hull Workhouse 28.3.68.6 Master and Matron wanted 2.2.67.1 Prize day at Hull Workhouse 4.1.68.3, 31.12.70.5, 2.1.69.5 Prize distribution 2.1.75.7 Visit to Hull Workhouse by HMI 18.7.74.5 W Charlesworth, headmaster, Hull Workhouse School, in court for assaulting boy of 8 11.4.74.5 Workhouse Committee Meeting 30.3.67.2, 15.8.68.6 James Greenwood lecture, A night in a Workhouse 12.12.68.6 Patrington Case Patrington Workhouse inmates' destruction of clothing 5.12.68.7 Death of Joseph Wing, December 30<sup>th</sup> at 68, late Master of Patrington Workhouse 6.1.72.8 Distribution of Coal to the needy of Patrington, and food tenders for the Workhouse 23.3.67.7 Paul Burial at Paull after death in workhouse of William Armstrong, 74, one of crew of H M S Northumberland which took Napoleon to St. Helena 13.1.72.7 Proposed appointment of Roman Catholic chaplain to workhouses 20.7.67.6 Sculcoates Annual excursion Sculcoates Workhouse children Catholic priest and children in Sculcoates Workhouse 4.12.69.6

Visit of Mr Farnell to Sculcoates Workhouse

Extension of Sculcoates Workhouse

Fire at Skirlaugh Workhouse

Skirlaugh

11.9.69.7

11.12.69.6

28.12.67.6&7

# Prisons

# **Prisons**

# **Gaol Committee**

Meeting (reported regularly) 5.1.67.2

And escape from Hull gaol 3.10.68.4

Suggested manufacture of gas needed at the gaol on the premises 30.1.69.4

Gaol

Escape from Hull Gaol 31.10.68.3

Fall of scaffolding at new Hull Gaol 25.12.69.5

Meeting contractors of new gaol and Corporation 14.3.68.4

Meeting new Gaol works 8.6.67.6

Parliamentary report of Hull Gaol 7.9.67.4

Property Committee meeting new Gaol 6.7.72.6

**Penitentiary** 

Annual meeting Hull Penitentiary 29.10.70.6

Hull and East Riding Penitentiary Report 2.11.67.6

# **Property & Land**

Anlaby Rd

Tenders for erection of double fronted house Anlaby Rd opposite Coltman St, F W Hagen architect 26.8.71.4

**Beverley Road** 

For sale building sites west side of Beverley Road 20.6.68.6

Buckton

For sale by auction, portions of the Buckton estate 13.2.69.2

Corporation

Letter on dale of property to Corporation 27.69.4 Sale of Corporation property in Hull 20.7.67.6

Cottingham

Auction at Cottingham 27.2.69.7

For sale Cottingham Villa, houses and building land 1.7.71.1

**Courtney St** 

For sale building land in Courtney St. and land in Lee Smith St. 29.6.72.1

For sale building land, Courtney St. accepted by Local Board who are completing it 3.6.71.1

Houses in Courtney St. may be purchased by payment of rent alone for 4 years 14.5d per month or 3s 4d a week 31.8.72.1

**Dairycoates** 

Meeting property owners Dairycoates and Beetonville 21.9.72.6

East Ella House

Tenders for altering East Ella House for Robert Jameson, this later became White City, William Botterill 16.3.72.4

East Yorks.

Rev. F O Morris and loss of land in East Yorks., reported from Pall Mall Gazette

2.9.71.5

Hornsea

Contents of Football Green Villa for sale, late Rev. Christopher Fonge, Hornsea 26.4.73.1

Hull

Sales of property in Hull 6.2.75.5

**Hull Property Owners Society** 

Annual meeting 1.2.68

**Junction St** 

Report Junction St. property 14.6.73.3

Keyworth

W D Keyworth completion of 2 lions for entrance of a Hull mansion 6.9.73

Myton

Property owners meeting in Myton 8.8.68.5&6

Old Town

Sale by auction of various properties in the Old Town 20.5.71.4

Paragon St

Sale of property in Paragon St. 3.10.68.6

Pollock

For sale premises house and garden suitable for smackowner belonging to John Charles Pollock smackowner 16.12.71.1

**Princes Avenue** 

Leader on Mr Garbutt, Hull builder, Princes Avenue 28.10.71.4

**Sculcoates Ratepayers Meeting** 

Assessment of tenement property Sculcoates 28.8.69.6

Swann Estate

Opening of new streets in Hull - Lincoln, Swann, Oxford, for John Swann 2.5.68.4

Walmsley St.

Letter on Board of Health and houses in Walmsley St. Thomas Haller 12.1.67.3

Public Health

See also HOSPITALS, MEDCINE

**Baths and Washhouses Committee** 

Meeting 23.2.67.3, 30.4.70.6, 17.9.70.6, 6.5.71.6, 2.3.72.6

**Baths Committee** 

Meeting Baths Committee 2.9.76.5

**Beetonville** 

Report on sanitary condition of Beetonville 20.5.71.5

**Board of Health** 

Finance Committee meeting

Board of Health Rules 24.8.72.6

Gainsborough

Board of Health Meeting 6.5.76.8

Letter

On Board of Health and houses in Walmsley St. Thomas Haller 12.1.67.3

Model Board of Health meeting 11.9.69.6

Malton

Board of Health Meeting 30.1.75.7, 1.5.75.7

Meeting 31.8.67.5

Extension of Board of Health district 3.4.69.6

Proposed amalgamation of Council and Board of Health 31.7.75.6

Proposed extension Hull Board of Health District 20.4.72.6

**Bridlington Quay** 

Report sanitary condition of Bridlington Quay 30.11.72.6

**Burial Committee** 

Meeting 6.7.67.6, 9.1.69.6, 25.9.69.6, 11.3.71.6, 6.9.73, 30.1.75.5, 22.5.75.5, 5.6.75.5

At Sutton 10.4.75.3

Re Hedon Road Cemetery 26.10.72.7, 10.3.73.5

**Burial Ground Committee** 

Meeting, Hedon Road Cemetery 30.11.72.5

Cleethorpes

Report on Cleethorpes improvements 6.5.76.8

Driffield

Report sanitary state of Driffield 12.9.74.3

**Drinking Fountain** 

Letter on North Bridge drinking fountain 23.7.70.6

Health Act

Sculcoates Board of Guardians meeting re new Health Act 24.8.72.6

**Health of Hull** 

Alderman Mayfield annual report on Health of Town 7.1.71.6

In 1869 8.1.70.6

In 1871 6.1.72.6

Report Health of the Town 28.8.75.5

Hessle

Sanitary condition of Hessle, stormy meeting, long account 10.2.72.3

**Holy Trinity** 

Health Inspector to visit vaults of Holy Trinity 4.2.71.6

**Hull Suburbs** 

Sanitary condition of Hull suburbs 16.3.72.6

Local Board

Cottingham

Nuisances 15.11.73.5

Local Board of Health

Cottingham

Meeting 18.4.68.7, 16.5.74.3

Hornsea

Meeting 9.12.71.7

Hull

### Public Health

Meeting (reported regularly) 2.2.67.3

Local Board of Health continued

Includes Garbutt's Boulevard scheme 2.1.75.6

Long account, case of alleged neglect Sculcoates Board Union 29.1.76.6

Proposed extension of Local Board of Health - Sanitary Committee 13.4.72.5

**Mat Pest** 

In Brooke St. 15.6.67.6

Mortality

Rate in Hull 25.1.68.4

**Night Soil** 

Cottingham night soil collector, breach of Highways Act 29.6.72.7

Deputation from Leeds Town Council to investigate Hull night soil collection methods 9.9.71.5

**Patrington** 

Pub Report on Patrington and its insanitary state 21.11.74.7

Sanitary matters at Patrington 4.9.75.7

Public Analyst

Appointment of Public Analyst for Hull, part time 23.9.76.6

**Public Health** 

Lecture on Public Health by Dr Elliott - Lit & Phil 12.2.70.6

**Rural Sanitary Authority** 

**Driffield Union** 

Board of Guardians meeting And Rural Sanitary Authority 6.3.75.7

Meeting

Beverley Union

Meeting, 22.1.76.615.4.76.6

Sculcoates Union

 $Meeting \ 7.9.72.5, 23.11.72.514.2.74.2, 16.1.75.6, 5.6.75.7, 9.9.76.7, 7.10.76.6, 21.10.76.5, 21.10$ 

2.12.76.5, 30.12.76.6

Sanitary Board

Meeting Kirk Ella and Swanland Sanitary Board 5.8.71.5, 9.9.71.5, 7.10.71.5

Sanitary Committee

And asphalt nuisance 15.4.71.5

And leader 23.3.67.2

Meeting (reported regularly) 26.1.67.5

Cholera precautions 5.8.71.6, 3.8.72.6, 10.8.72.6, 16.8.73.5

On Derringham estate drainage 29.6.67.6 Prevalence of fever in Hull 24.10.74.5

Proposed extension of borough boundary 27.4.72.5

Re cattle plague 14.10.71.6

Sanitary conditions in Hull in 1870 21.1.71

Smoke 6.3.69.6

Nuisance inspector's report to 25.1.68.6

Sanitary inspection

Annual report Hull Sanitary Inspector 20.1.72.7

Of Hull in 1869 22.1.70.7

Sanitary reform

Need for sanitary reform in Hull 6.11.75.6

Sewage

Driffield Ratepayers meeting re water supply and sewage 11.5.72.7

Meeting important to Cottingham, sewage 28.2.74.5

St. John's Newland

Insanitary state of St. John's Wood 23.11.72.6

Meeting St. John's Newland sanitary state of district 8.10.70.5

Stoneferry

Important sanitary prosecution in Stoneferry 24.10.74.6&7

**Swimming Baths Committee** 

Meeting 27.3.75.7, 2.10.75.5, 11.12.75.5, 8.1.76.5

**Swimming Baths** 

Local gossip - Hospital for poor children, swimming baths 15.1.76.6

# Public Health

Opening Trippet Swimming Baths 23.4.70.5 Reopening of new swimming baths 15.7.76.8, 22.7.76.5

# **Unwholesome Goods**

Bad meat Case 20.3.69.6, 9.10.69.6

Destruction of unwholesome fruit and fish 24.9.70.4

# Vaccination

Meeting Anti Vaccination League to be held in Hull 21.9.67.6

# Withernsea

Report on Withernsea and sanitation 28.11.74.3

# Railways

**Accidents** 

Fatal accident Park Street rail crossing 4.1.68.4&6 Letter rail accidents M Denton, Beverley 29.1.76.8, 5.2.76.4

Serious accident on Hull excursion train 3.7.75.6

Beverley

Hannah Thorley on poisoning charge death of John King son of late station master at Beverley 6.7.67.4

**Channel Tunnel** 

Proposed submarine railway between England and France 24.10.68.3

Crossings

Fatal accident Park Street rail crossing 4.1.68.4&6

Letter re rail bridge and crossing Wellington St. and Manor House St. 26.1.67.8

Statistics of railway crossings in Hull 24.4.69.6

Works Committee meeting

Neptune St. rail crossing 19.2.70.5 Rail crossings in Hull 16.10.69.5

Re Park St. rail crossing 10.10.68.6, 17.10.68.4

**Derailed Train** 

Case attempting to derail train, Hull to Hessle, 3 months 7.3.74.3

Goole and Marshland

Meeting proposed new railway, Goole and Marshland 18.1.73.6

Hull

Robert Baxter and railways to Hull 17.10.68.3

**Hull to Doncaster** 

Opening of new line Hull to Doncaster 31.7.69.5

**Independent Railway** 

Scheme for independent railway in Hull 18.12.75.5

Monopoly

Report on rail monopoly in Hull 20.11.75.6

North Eastern Rail Co.

Sick Club Meeting N E Rail Sick Club 13.2.75.5

Meeting N E Railway Co. 22.2.68.7, 15.2.73.3

Engine drivers and fireman on strike, 20.4.67.3

New Clee

Station to be built at New Clee 24.4.75.8

**New Railway** 

Meeting re new railway question 5.2.76.5, 19.2.76.6 Plan for new railway Yorkshire and Lancs. 12.8.76.5 Report new railway for Hull 21.10.76.5, 4.11.76.5

Newington

Meeting to consider rail accommodation for Newington 30.10.75.5

Rail Accommodation

Report on rail accommodation at Hull and leader 9.11.72.6

Rail and Dock Works

Details on new rail and dock works at Hull 15.11.73.5

**Smoking** 

Case smoking in a rail carriage, Malton 3.4.75.7

South and West Junction Railway

Meeting South and West Junction Railway Bill 24.5.73.6, 31.5.73.5, 19.7.73.5

Report Hull and South and West Junction Rail Bill 17.5.73.5, 5.7.73.6

Stations

Meeting proposed station for Newington 28.11.74.5, 24.10.74.5, 19.6.76.5

Letter on proposed station Anlaby Road crossing 19.10.72.5

Memorial proposed station on Anlaby Road at crossing 14.9.72.5

# Aldborough

Letter on restoration of Aldborough church 12.8.71.3

Reopening of Aldborough church after partial rebuilding and restoration 15.7.71.7, 19.8.71.7

Report Aldborough church restoration 3.12.70.6, 31.5.73.6, 24.7.75.5

Restoration of Aldborough church 11.4.74.6, 30.9.76.7

Tenders for restoration of Aldborough Church 16.4.70.6

#### All Saints

Bishop of Columbia address in All Saints Church 6.11.69.6 Consecration All Saints church, Margaret St. 14.8.69.6

Rev. John Watson, curate of All Saints, left to become vicar of Hanley 15.7.76.5

# **Anlaby Road**

Notice opening new PM church, Anlaby Rd 12.8.71.5 Opening of new PM chapel, Anlaby Rd 19.8.71.6

Movement for a new church on Anlaby Road 30.11.67.6

#### Archdeacon's Visitation

To Hull 24.4.75.6

#### **Bainton**

Bankruptcy of Rev. G T Clare, rector of Bainton 18.5.72.7

## **Baptist**

Completion of new Baptist church, Quay Road, Bridlington 6.9.73.6 Opening new Baptist chapel, South St., Bridlington 26.9.74.6

#### Barton

Theft. 351lbs of beef taken from larder of Rev. G W Holto, Barton 2.2.67.5

# **Bath Abbey**

Canon Brooke accepted living of Bath Abbey 31.10.74.5

Canon Brooke inducted to rectory of Bath 20.2.75.5

#### Bells

6 new bells at Brigg church 26.2.76.8 Letter re Brigg church bells 4.3.76.7

Change ringing at Beverley Minster from Holy Trinity 18.4.74.3

Change ringing at Holy Trinity 20.12.73.5, 13.11.75.5

Change ringing at St. Mary's and Holy Trinity 19.12.68.6

Change ringing at St. Mary's Lowgate 8.8.68.6, 25.11.71.5

Change ringing at St. James church 30.12.71, 27.2.75.5

Trinity Society of Change Ringers rang peel 19.4.73.5

## Bethel

Reopening Bridge Street Bethel chapel 22.1.76.5

# **Bethesda Chapel**

Foundation stone laid of St. Nicholai Church, on site of old Bethesda Chapel, Osborne St. 13.8.70.6

# Beverley

Bishop of Beverley - Cornthwaite on Infallibility 27.11.69 Opening of Beverley Church Institute Norwood 2.2.67.2

Uproar at St Martin's Burial Board meeting at Beverley 5.10.67.8

St. Mary's

Report on Champney window in St Mary's Beverley 10.5.73.6

Trouble at St. Mary's, Beverley, Dissenters and burial grounds 27.4.67.4

Hon & Rev. E Carr-Glyn offered living of Whitby and declined it, vicar of St. Mary's, Beverley 27.3.75.6

# Minster

Installation of Rev. John Birtwhistle, vicar of Beverley Minster as cannon of York (Bilton) 11.1.68.6

L Colburn, St. Michael's College, Tenbury, appointed assistant organist Beverley Minster, Mr Lambert retiring 11.7.74.3

Report on restoration of Beverley Minster 11.7.74.3

Rev. Robert Birtwhistle, curate of Beverley Minster appointed vicar of Bishop Burton

14.9.72.7

Rev. Robert Birtwhistle ex curate Beverley Minster inducted vicar of Bishop Burton

26.10.72.7

Bridlington

Foundation stone laid of new PM Chapel at Bridlington 2.10.69.6

Consecration of Holy Trinity church, Bridlington 19.8.71.7

**Bridlington Quay** 

Opening services Quay Methodist church 5.7.73.7

Foundation stone laid new church Bridlington Quay, R S Smith, architect Holy Trinity 9.4.70

Meeting proposed new church for Bridlington Quay 28.8.69.6

Bulmer

Death at Bulmer House, Castle Howard aged 86, the Rev. William Preston, MA, senior canon of York and 61 years vicar of Bulmer 13.7.67.8

**Burial Ground** 

Trouble at St. Mary's, Beverley, Dissenters and burial grounds 27.4.67.4

Uproar at St Martin's Burial Board meeting at Beverley 5.10.67.8

Consecration of Sculcoates Burial Ground 8.2.68.6

Catholic

John Robinson junior, late of St. Vincent's Catholic Church has been appointed choirmaster and deputy organist of Sheffield Parish church 6.7.72.5

Plan to erect Catholic Church at Bridlington in new street laid out by Mr Travis from Chapel St. 13.9.73.6

Proposed appointment of Roman Catholic chaplain to workhouses 20.7.67.6

Sculcoates Board of Guardians meeting And Catholic demands 29.6.72.6

Report on Roman Catholic edifices in Hull, Trappes v Cobb 23.11.67.6

Fenians executed at Manchester prayed for at St. Charles 30.11.67.6

Opening of St. Patrick's Catholic Church 11.11.71.5

Foundation stone laid of new chapel and school for Roman Catholics, Mill St. 18.3.71.5

Charterhouse

Leader on appointment of new Master of the Charterhouse 18.4.68.4

Death of Rev. J H Bromby in 98<sup>th</sup> year. Master of the Charterhouse and late vicar of Holy Trinity Church 28.3.68.7&8

Funeral of Rev. J H Bromby 4.4.68.6

**Christ Church** 

60 guineas sent to Christian Missionary Society be congregation of Christ Church thanksgiving for recovery from serious illness of vicar F F Goe 27.1.72.4

Craddock composition Christ Our Passover, sung at Christ Church 11.4.74.5

Lecture on Music by Fred Jackson, organist of Christ Church 2.2.67.3

Marriage of Rev. J H Wicksteed curate of Christ Church to Anna Maria Simons step daughter of Rev. W H Kemp, later vicar of Hedon and of Pocklington 18.4.68.4

Meeting Christ Church night schools, details 21.2.74.5

Presentation to Rev. F F & Mrs Goe, Christ Church, leaving for Sunderland, later rector of St. George's,

Bloomsbury and Bishop of Melbourne 12.7.73.5

Report on Christ Church night school 7.3.68.4

**Church Accommodation** 

Meeting re church accommodation in Hull 1.11.73.6

Church

Canon Brooke address on the Church of England 23.1.69.6

Report on church work in Hull 16.5.68.6

**Church Conference** 

To be held in Hull 4.9.69.5, 2.10.69.5, 23.10.69.6

**Church Extension** 

Meeting Church extension in Hull 28.3.68.7

**Church Institute** 

Opening of new Church Institute at Hessle 10.12.70.7

Lecture Hull Church Institute by Tom Hood, jun. 13.1.72.6

Rev. F F Goe lecture on the Monks of Old England, Church Institute 22.2.68.6

**Church rates** 

Letter from Rev. R A Redford and church rates 29.5.69.4

Rev. R A Redford and others in court for not paying church rates 24.4.69.6

**Church Schools** 

Report on St. Stephen's night schools 10.4.69.4

Tea meeting St. Stephen's, details of Schools 10.2.72.6

First foundation stone laid St. Paul's Boys School to be on Tuesday next 24.2.72.5

**Church Schools continued** 

Foundation stone laid St. Paul's Boy's School 2.3.72.7

Foundation stone laid new school in West St., Primitive Methodist 22.2.68.6

Foundation stone laid new George Yard Sunday Schools 2.5.68.6

Lecture by Rev. Charles Garrett on the Education of Children at George Yard Chapel 12.10.67.7

Foundation stone laid of new chapel and school for Roman Catholics, Mill St. 18.3.71.5

Meeting Christ Church night schools, details 21.2.74.5

Report on Education in the North and East Ridings by Rev. G French 17.8.67.4

Congregational

Opening of new organ, Wycliffe Congregational 19.2.70.6

Opening of Wycliffe Chapel 7.11.68.4

Rev. R A Redford address on the Moral State of Hull 11.1.68.6

Farewell to Rev. R A Redford minister of Albion Congregational church 15.2.73.3

Rev. R A Redford ex minister of Albion Congregational appointed to Chair of Systematic Theology at New

College, St. John's Wood 10.5.73.5

Rev. Henry Wonnacott for Albion Congregational church 4.10.73.7

Proposed new Congregational church at Hornsea

Foundation stone laid Hornsea Congregational church, long account

Meeting proposed new Congregational church for Hull, corner of Strickland St. 2.10.75.6

Opening new organ in Latimer Congregational Church, Williamson St. 13.6.74.5

Opening of Latimer Congregational Church, Williamson St.

Opening Latimer church, Holderness Road 29.11.73.6

Reopening services Tabernacle Congregational Church, Sykes St. 11.9.6

5.8.76.6 Departure of Rev. W H Statham Farewell to Rev. W H Statham 19.8.76.6

Rev. W H Statham accepted London pastorate (Wycliffe Congregational) 22.7.76.5

Convent

6.2.69.5, 13.2.69.6&7, 27.2.69.5&6 Hull Convent case

Letter Hull Convent case 20.2.69.7

Cottingham

Gift of brass lectern to Cottingham church by R W Jameson 13.7.72.7

**Dissenters** 

Trouble at St. Mary's, Beverley, Dissenters and burial grounds 27.4.67.4

Doncaster

Hon and Rev. E Carr-Glyn likely to be vicar of Doncaster 30.10.75.6

**Dykes** 

Letter on Rev. Dr Dykes birthplace, Lime St 4.3.76.3

Easter Vestries

Hull Easter vestries 3.4.75.6

**English Church Union** 

Hull meeting English Church Union 13.11.69.5

Leader English Church Union meeting in Hull 15.11.73.5

English Church Union service at St. James 29.8.68.6 Meeting English Church Union, Hull 31.5.73.5

Etton

Church reopened after restoration 31.7.69.7 Reopening of Etton Church 21.11.68.7

Fimber

Foundation stone of Fimber church laid by Sir Tatton Sykes 31.7.69.7

Fish St Chapel

Lit and Phil, Rev. A Jukes lecture on the Drama of Western Civilisation 16.2.67.7

Presentation to Rev. Jukes, Fish St. Chapel 6.7.67.6

Flamborough

Reopening of Flamborough Church 9.10.69.7

Frodingham

Tenders for erection of chapel at Frodingham, Lincs. 2.9.76.1

George Yard

Foundation stone laid new George Yard Sunday Schools 2.5.68.6

Lecture by Rev. Charles Garrett on the Education of Children at George Yard Chapel 12.10.67.7

Goole

Reopening of Goole church after fire 7.8.69.7

**Great Thornton St. Chapel** 

A ghost at Great Thornton Street Chapel 30.10.69.5

Grindale

Church to be reopened 14.3.74.3

Haborough

Reopening St. Margaret's church, Haborough 14.8.69.8

Hall

Rev. Newman Hall to visit Hull 27.4.67.6

Halsham

Restoration of Halsham Church 12.8.71.5

Hedon

Church nave restored 30.11.72.6

Presentation to Rev. C E Camidge vicar of Hedon leaving for Wheldreake 21.6.73

Proposals for restoration of church and a new vicarage 29.4.71.7 Reopening south transept of Hedon church after restoration 31.7.69.7

Report restoration nave and aisles of Hedon church 7.12.72.7

Rev. C Camidge vicar of Hedon accepted living of Weldrake, later Bishop of Bathurst 12.4.73.7

Heresy

Appeal 19.11.70.7

Case Rev. Charles Voycey rector of Healaugh 12.11.70.5

Leader on Voycey, Colenso, Newman 19.11.70.5

Prosecution of Rev. Charles Voysey for heresy 4.12.69.3

Hessle

Case Newmarsh v Clark, application for faculty to enlarge Hessle Church and opposition 7.12.67.6

Church restoration almost complete 29.1.70.6

Laying of corner stone Hessle Church restoration 24.10.68.6

Opening of Hessle Church after restoration 26.2.70.5

Opening of new Church Institute at Hessle 10.12.70.7

Holmpton

Reopening of Holmpton church 3.4.75.3

**Holy Trinity** 

Archbishop of York to attend ordination in Holy Trinity on 4<sup>th</sup> June 20.5.71

Banquet at Alexandra Hotel, Hornsea, to Revs. H G Kinnear, G O Browne and G Burnell, end of Holy Trinity curacies following appointment of canon Brooke 27.7.67.6

Bible Class

Holy Trinity Men's Bible Class Meeting 16.12.71.5

Blakeney

Understood Canon Blakeney will not accept living of Holy Trinity 20.2.75.5

Bromby

Memorial window to Rev. J H Bromby in Vicar's porch Holy Trinity 31.12.70.5

Death of Rev. J H Bromby in 98<sup>th</sup> year. Master of the Charterhouse and late vicar of Holy Trinity

Church 28.3.68.7&8

Funeral of Rev. J H Bromby 4.4.68.6

Brooke

Canon Brooke address on National Education 18.1.68.6

Farewell sermon of Canon Brooke 6.2.75.5

Leader on induction of canon Brooke by the Rev. J Deck to living of Holy Trinity 20.7.67.4

Presentation to Canon Brooke 10.4.75.6

Proposed testimonial to Canon Brooke 16.1.75.6

Canon Brooke and future services at Holy Trinity 7.9.67.6

Canon Brooke new vicar of Holy Trinity interview with churchwardens 22.6.67.6

Canon Brooke sermon on Education at Holy Trinity 15.1.70.3

Election of a vicar for Holy Trinity - Canon Brooke 4.5.67.3

Browne

Presentation to Rev. G O Browne, ex curate of Holy Trinity 3.8.67.6 Change ringing at Holy Trinity 20.12.73.5 Choir Outing to Beverley 9.9.76.5 **Holy Trinity continued** Meeting Holy Trinity Choir Boys Club 24.4.75.5 Clock repair, meeting re 27.4.67.6 Gurnhill Presentation to Rev. J Gurnhill of Holy Trinity 12.10.67.5 Rev. J Gurntell last sermon at Holy Trinity 31.8.67.6 Health Inspector to visit vaults of Holy Trinity 4.2.71.6 Hull Corporation at Holy Trinity church 16.1.75.5 Jackson Rev. E Jackson MA Trinity College Cambridge, appointed to Eston with Normanby, by Archbishop of York, curate of Holy Trinity Church 15.2.73.3 Kinnear Presentation to Rev. H G Kinnear 31.8.67.6 Leader Holy Trinity, the parish church veiled from the public eye 15.1.70.4 On Holy Trinity vicarage 22.1.70.5 On induction of canon Brooke by the Rev. J Deck to living of Holy Trinity 20.7.67.4 Lewis Rev. J T Lewis appointed curate of Holy Trinity 6.11.75.5 **McCormick** Rev. Joseph McCormick has accepted the living of Holy Trinity, Hull 24.7.75.5 Rev. Joseph McCormick new vicar of Holy Trinity read himself in 21.8.75.5 Ordination at Holy Trinity 10.6.71.6 Organ Church bazaar result £1850 to organ fund 29.4.76.6 Death of J G Skelton organist of Holy Trinity 66. Feb 11<sup>th</sup> 15.2.68.7&8 Details of new organ Holy Trinity 11.3.71.6 Grand bazaar in aid of Holy Trinity restoration and new organ, to be held 4.3.76.5 Holy Trinity Organ Committee meeting 21.5.70.6 Holy Trinity Organ fund Concert 12.2.76.5 Mr Craddock new organist of Holy Trinity 16.5.68.6 New organ for Holy Trinity 30.4.70.7, 14.5.70.6, 20.11.75.5 Opening of Holy Trinity church organ 30.9.76.8 T Craddock one of the candidates for organist of Holy Trinity - organist of St. John's, Paddington, played at funeral service to Rev. J H Bromby 4.4.68.6 T Craddock organist of Holy Trinity passed 1<sup>st</sup> degree of B. Music, Oxford 18.11.71.5 Restoration Holy Trinity Church Restoration Committee meeting 15.2.68.6, 28.3.68.6, 4.4.68.6, 11.4.68.6, 9.5.68.6 Holy Trinity Restoration Fund meeting 14.12.67.4 Hull Town Council £100 donation to Holy Trinity 18.3.76.6 Opening of nave of Holy Trinity 23.10.69.6 Public meeting re restoration of Holy Trinity Church 8.2.68.3 Restoration Holy Trinity 28.5.70.6, 9.5.74.3 Rev. H W Kemp letter on restoration 23.2.67.2, 23.3.67.5 Table of donations for towns meeting to finish restoration of Holy Trinity church 29.1.76.4 Table subscriptions to Holy Trinity Church 22.2.68.1 Towns meeting, Holy Trinity restoration 5.2.76.7 Vicar of Holy Trinity And congregation 13.11.75.6

Page 101

12.1.67.4

Memorial window to Rev. J H Bromby in Vicar's porch Holy Trinity 31.12.70.5

Vicarage

Window

Letter strange candidate for

New memorial window at Holy Trinity west side south transept 11.3.71.6

Horkstow

Death of Rev. R G Moore vicar of Horkstow 6.7.67.4

**Hull Church School Masters and School Mistresses Benevolent Int** 

Meeting 20.12.73.5, 9.12.74

Independent

History of Independency in Hull, extract from Tickell's History of Hull 11.1.68.7

Reopening South Cave Independent chapel 6.6.74.3

Irish Church

Hull Town's meeting on the Irish Church 18.4.68.5&6

Meeting in Hull 26.9.68

**New Jerusalem** 

Notice consecration of New Jerusalem church on Spring Bank July 25<sup>th</sup> 24.7.75.4

Report on New Jerusalem church, details of new church on Spring Bank 14.11.74.5

Jews

At Synagogue Mr Bergman presented a valuable scroll of the Mosaic law written by hand

Case of assault in Hull Synagogue Elias Casrel v Louis Israel 26.10.72.8

Hull Hebrew Relief Society, table 2.2.67.4

Visit to Hull of Chief Rabbi of England 12.6.69.6

Keyingham

Rev. Joshua Smyth resigning living of Keyingham after 54 years, 81 22.3.73.6

Presentation to the Rev. Joshua Smyth vicar of Keyingham and Burton Pidsea, silver salver and claret jug 17.5.73.6

31.5.73.5

Reopening of Keyingham church 21.8.69.7

Mariners

Rev. S Allgood, curate of Eston and South Bank, leaving for incumbency of Mariners church, Hull

3.4.75.5

Methodist

Foundation stone laid Anlaby Road Methodist Church 25.9.69.6

Foundation stone laid new chapel United Free Methodists 10.2.72.3

Foundation stone laid new Methodist chapel, Marfleet, long account 23.11.72.6

Foundation stone laid of new Methodist Chapel at Asselby 13.6.68.7

Laying foundation stone of new Stepney Methodist New Conn. Church 11.4.68.4

Meeting of Hull Methodists 10.5.73.6

New Connexion Conference in Hull 14.6.73.6, 21.6.73.5

Opening of new organ Stepney Methodist Chapel 16.4.70.6

Opening services Quay Methodist church 5.7.73.7

Middleton

Long account restoration of Middleton church 8.2.73.6

Morris

Rev. F O Morris and loss of land in East Yorks., reported from Pall Mall Gazette 2.9.71.5

Rev. F O Morris on Sheffield wasters shooting seabirds at Brid and Flamborough 6.4.67.5

**Nafferton** 

Reopening of Nafferton church after restoration 5.11.70.7

Newton upon Rawcliffe

Consecration of new church at Newton upon Rawcliffe 6.8.70.7

Orangemen

Dinner at Hull 18.7.74.5

Primitive Methodist

Conference in Hull 6.6.74.6, 13.6.74.2

Corner stone laid new chapel (PM) at Roos 3.10.68.7

Foundation stone laid Fountain Road PM chapel 4.4.74.5

Foundation stone laid Lincoln Street PM Chapel 3.12.70.6

Foundation stone laid of new PM Chapel at Bridlington 2.10.69.6

Foundation stone laid new school in West St., Primitive Methodist 22.2.68.6 New organ opened Williamson Street PM chapel by Dr Sparks 2.9.76.5

New PM chapel for Hedon, Baxtergate 26.4.73.7

New PM chapel in Lincoln St. 2.3.72.6

Notice opening new PM church, Anlaby Rd 12.8.71.5

Opening of new PM chapel, Anlaby Rd 19.8.71.6

Sale of Driffield ex PM chapel

11.4.74.6

Presbyterian

Opening of English Presbyterian Church, Holderness Road 30.5.74.5

Preston

Reopening Preston Church chancel 16.7.70.7

**Protestant Institute** 

Letter and report of disturbances at the Protestant Institute, Labour League 12.9.74.6

Letter on Protestant Institute 18.9.69.5&7, 18.9.69.5, 25.9.69

Ritualism

Anti Ritualism demonstration in Hull 20.3.69.4&5

Roos

New east window for Roos church 10.7.69.7

**Rural Dean** 

Rev. J McCormick appointed rural dean of Hull 30.10.75.5

Scott

Mechanics Institute lecture by Rev. J Scott on Gothic Architecture 23.2.67.3

Sculcoates

Case Rev. W L Hughes late curate of Sculcoates for assaulting a policeman, 3 refs. 28.8.75.5

New Sculcoates church to be consecrated August 10<sup>th</sup> 31.7.69.6

Report on Sculcoates new church 21.8.69.6

Rev. C Walsham letter on church building and schools for 23.2.67.3

**South Ferriby** 

Restoration of South Ferriby church 1.10.70.8

South St

Judas Maccabeus at South St. Chapel 5.4.73.5

St. Andrew's, Drypool

Church completed, £5000 30.3.72.5

Foundation stone laid, St. Andrew's church, Drypool 2.9.76.5

Opening St. Andrew's temporary church 17.2.72.5

Reopening St. Andrew's Temporary church 22.3.73.5

St. Barnabas

Consecration of St. Barnabas church, long account 28.2.74.3

Foundation stone laid St. Barnabas Church 15.6.72.6

Opening of south aisle of St. Barnabas church 25.11.76.5

St. James

Change ringing at St. James church 30.12.71

English Church Union service at St. James 29.8.68.6

Letter on visit of Father Stanton to St. James 2.7.70.7

Memorial for Rev. J W Hunt ex vicar of St. James, Hull 28.10.76.5

Reopening St. James after renovation, high back pews removed 25.11.71.5

Rev. A B Carpenter, curate of St. John's, Deptford, appointed it is believed to living of St. James church by Canon Brooke 30.5.74.5

The Rev. Canon Brooke has appointed the Rev. Archibald B Carpenter late of St. John's, Deptford, to the curacy of St. James, Hull 1.8.74.6

St. John the Baptist at Newington

Meeting re proposed new church of St. John the Baptist at Newington 4.12.75.5

Tender of Simpson & Malone accepted for St. John's Newington 12.8.76.5

Letter from Rev. A C Gleadhill soliciting donations for St. Johns, Newington 10.6.76.5

St. John's, St John's Street

Memorial service to Rev. J H Bromby at St. John's Church 11.4.68.6

St. John's Newland

Opening of organ St. John's Newland 29.7.71.5

St. Jude's

Erection of temporary church of St. Jude 3.4.69.6 Church to be consecrated next Thursday 23.5.74.5

Church, long account 25.11.71.6

Corner stone St. Jude's church laid 28.9.72

Improvements to St. Jude's church 31.7.69.6

Opening of St. Jude's temporary church 5.6.69.4

Opening St. Jude's church 30.5.74.6

Report on St. Jude's temporary church 12.2.70.6

# St. Mary Lowgate.

Brass lectern presented to St. Mary's Lowgate 6.9.73.6 Change ringing at St. Mary's and Holy Trinity 19.12.68.6 Change ringing at St. Mary's Lowgate 8.8.68.6, 25.11.71.5

# St. Mary Lowgate continued.

Confirmation at St. Mary's, Lowgate 9.11.67.7, 4.11.71.5

Meeting St. Mary's church. Lowgate 11.12.75.5

Memorial contemplated to the Rev. Thomas Scott, Bible Commentator, in St. Mary's, Lowgate 24.10.68.6

Rev. John Hopkin licensed to curacy of St. Mary's, Lowgate 9.10.75.5

Sermon by Dr Alford, Archbishop of Victoria at 2.3.67.2

# St. Matthew's

Consecration of St. Matthew's church, long account 22.10.70.7 Foundation stone laid of St. Matthew's Church 5.12.68.6 Plans for new church of St. Matthew's approved 1.8.68.6

# St. Michael and All Angels

Reopening 31.8.67.7

Rev. Canon Brooke has appointed the Rev. G Robinson, curate of St. Stephens, to curacy of St. Michael and All Angels 10.8.67.6

Meeting at temporary church of St. Michael, Coltman St. 15.2.68.6

Meeting to consider erection of a permanent church of St. Michael's and All Angels 2.11.67.6

Service at St. Michael's and All Angels 19.10.67

Tea making 6.2.69.6

## St. Nicholai

Hull to have a Danish Church 18.3.71.6

Church, Lutheran registered for marriages 3.6.71.5

Foundation stone laid of St. Nicholai Church, on site of old Bethesda Chapel, Osborne St. 13.8.70.6

King of Denmark appointment of C C Broughner of Sutton to be a Knight of the Dannebrog and the Order of Dannebrogsmond for services towards the building of St. Nicholai Church, Hull 20.5.71.5

# St. Paul's

Organ meeting 18.5.67.4

First foundation stone laid St. Paul's Boys School to be on Tuesday next 24.2.72.5

Foundation stone laid St. Paul's Boy's School 2.3.72.7

Reopening St. Paul's Church organ 14.12.67.6

Report on church building, refers to St. Paul's parish 30.5.68.6

Living of St. Pauls offered to Rev. W F Rowsell vicar of Copmanthorpe, accepted 18.3.76.5

# St. Peter's, Drypool

Opening of Drypool church after restoration 14.12.67.7

Stained glass window placed in Drypool Church in memory of Councillor Boulter 5.9.68.6 Rev. John Ellam vicar of St. Peter's, Drypool to be vicar of Hernes Bay, details of career 22.1.76.5

# St. Philip's

Meeting of St. Philip's church 1.3.73.5

Rev. John Pitkin curate in charge of St. Philip's church, presentation on leaving for London 16.12.71.5

## St. Silas

Case Councillor Stephenson and Wardens of St. Silas church 20.9.73.5

Consecration of St. Silas 28.1.71.6

Councillor Stephenson in court for causing disturbance in St. Silas church 15.2.73

Disturbance at St. Silas church 30.8.73.3

Foundation stone laid for St. Silas church 26.6.69.6

Meeting for proposed new church of St. Silas 26.9.68.6

Notice St. Silas church to be consecrated January 21st 14.1.71.4

Reference to disgraceful scenes at St. Silas church 1.2.73.6

Report on new church of St. Silas 16.1.69.6, 21.1.71.6

# St. Stephen's

Erection of a tablet in St. Stephen's church to mother of C M Norwood, MP 20.4.72.5

Report on St. Stephen's night schools 10.4.69.4

Tea meeting St. Stephen's, details of Schools 10.2.72.6

Right Rev. Samuel Gobat, Bishop of C of E in Palestine to preach at St. Stephen's 9.10.75.5

Rev. Canon Brooke has appointed the Rev. G Robinson, curate of St. Stephens, to curacy of St. Michael and All Angels 10.8.67.6

# St. Swithin's, Lincoln

Affiliation order against Rev. G H Pratt, vicar of St. Swithin's, Lincoln 30.10.69.5

#### St. Thomas

Harvest festival in temporary church of St. Thomas, Day St. 16.9.71.5

Letter on St. Thomas church 4.2.71.8

# St. Thomas continued

Movement to erect new church of St. Thomas 28.1.71.6

Notice to architects to submit designs for St. Thomas church, Rev. A Wood, Arlington St. 23.9.71.6

Opening new organ St. Thomas new church 15.4.71.7

Subscriptions for family of late Rev. A Wood, late curate in charge of St. Thomas Temporary Church, left a widow and 7 children 30.3.72.4

Temporary church opened 26.7.73.5

## Sutton

Opening of Sutton Church 6.7.67.6

#### **Swine**

Reopening Swine church, long account 27.7.72.5

Restoration of Swine Church 3.6.71.7

#### Thixendale

Archbishop of York refusal to consecrate Thixendale church, trouble with Sir Tatton Sykes 13.8.70.7

#### **Town Churches**

Lecture on Town Churches by Gilbert Scott 18.3.76.5

## **Trippett**

New church for Trippett, Miss Bromby 19.6.69

Opening of new church in Trippett, under Rev. J Pitkin, in mortuary chapel and now a wooden building 29.1.70.5

# Tunstall

Restoration of Tunstall church 27.6.74.3

# Ulceby

Opening of new organ Ulceby church 12.8.71.8

## Vicar of Hull

Report on future Vicar of Hull 16.1.75.6

# Vicarage of Hull

Report on vicarage of Hull29.5.75.7

#### Walsham

Rev. C Walsham letter on church building and schools for Sculcoates 23.2.67.3

Marriage at St. Stephens, Paddington of the Rev. Charles Walsham to Mary Caroline Newmarsh 31.8.67.8

### Walton

Funeral of the Rev. Samuel Standidge Walton in General Cemetery 12.10.67.6

# Wesleyan

Conference in Hull 24.7.69.7, 31.7.69.3, 7.8.69.7, 14.8.69.6

Foundation stone laid Coltman St. Wesleyan Chapel 20.8.70.6

Foundation stone laid new Wesleyan chapel near Durham Street on Holderness Rd 6.11.75.5

Foundation stone laid Wesleyan Chapel, Oxford St. 26.2.70.6

Meeting proposed new Wesleyan chapel at Hessle, Botterill architect, W & J Hall builders 10.4.75.3

New Wesleyan chapel foundation stone to be laid opposite Rose Cottage, Beverley Rd 16.12.76.5

Opening new Wesleyan Chapel 2.7.70.7

Opening of new Wesleyan Chapel at Beetonsville 14.9.67.6

Opening of new Wesleyan chapel at Hook 23.1.75.7

Opening new organ Coltman St. chapel 17.1.74.5

Organ opened at new Wesleyan chapel Hessle 5.6.75.7

Proposed new Wesleyan chapel for Hedon 25.9.75.7

Report on new Wesleyan chapel at Hessle, foundation stones laid 1.5.75.6

### Wheldrake

Proposed restoration of Wheldrake church 23.8.73.7

# Winterton

Notice Reopening Winterton church 30.3.72.1

Reopening Winterton church after restoration 31.7.75.8

Reopening Winterton church 4.5.72.8

# York

Canon Brooke appointed a Surrogate of York 31.8.67.4

Death at Bulmer House, Castle Howard aged 86, the Rev. William Preston, MA, senior canon of York and 61 years vicar of Bulmer 13.7.67.8

Installation of Canon W T Vernon, vicar of Kirk Ella, to canonry of York 13.2.75.7

Rev. J McCormick preached ordination sermon in York Minster 18.12.75.6

#### Roads

# Roads

See also STREETS

Asphalt

Introduction of asphalt to Hull roads 16.11.72 Order to asphalt Register Square, Beverley 7.12.72.5

Report proposed Asphalt Company for Yorks. 23.3.72.6

Boulevard

Contract for new Boulevard between Anlaby Road and Humber Bank, drainage, etc. 17.6.71.1

Hull Local Board of Health meeting Includes Garbutt's Boulevard scheme 2.1.75.6

Leader on projected boulevard 30.7.70.4&5

Proposed Boulevard for Hull, Mr Garbutt 19.9.74.5

**Hessle Road** 

Mr Travis complaint on state of Hessle Road 11.1.73.5

**Level Crossings** 

Statistics on level crossings in Hull 1.5.69

Promenade

Another proposed promenade for Hull 4.6.70.6

Toll Bar

At Wold Carr to be removed 18.11.71.5

Case - right of charging toll on cyclists going through Newland Toll Bar 12.6.69.6

Government inquiry at Wold Carr 16.3.72.6

Newland toll bar removed on April 1<sup>st</sup> 2.12.71

Proposed demolition Anlaby Road Toll bar 7.1.71

Works Committee meeting Re Anlaby Rd. & Hessle Rd. toll bars 21.1.71

# Shipping

# See also COMMERCE, FISHING, WHALING Individual Ships

'Agra' Launch new screw steam Earles yard 'Agra' for East India trade, sister ship 'Calcutta' went for trials 24.6.71.5

'Alder' Disaster off mouth of the Humber S S 'Alder' and 'King Oscar' 2.10.75

'Almirante Cochrane' Proposed launch of Chilean ironclad Earles yard 'Almirante Cochrane' 1.5.75.5 'Alpha'

Board of Trade inquiry loss of S S 'Alpha' 23.1.75.7

Loss of SS 'Alpha'

Hull salvage case 'Alpha' 24.4.75.5

'Angelo' Trial trip new Wilson liner 'Angelo' Humphreys & Pearson 8.8.74

30.1.75.5

'Anlaby' Board of Trade inquiry loss of 'Anlaby' 8.11.73.5

'Argyle' Launch steamer Bailey Bros. & Leetham in Gilbert Cooper yard, 'Argyle' 9.11.72.6

'Ashford' Screw steamer 'Ashford', C M Norwood, sunk off Whitby 12.2.70.5

'Aurora' Launch at Sunderland yard of 'Aurora' screw steamer for Hull 5.8.71.5

'Bee' loss of schooner 16.3.67.2

'Bessemer'

Children of Park Street and Spring Bank orphanages shown round 'Bessemer' steamer 17.6.76

Launch of 'Bessemer' steamer Earles yard 26.9.74.6

Report 'Bessemer' steamer Earles yard 29.8.74.6

Steamer bought by Hull firm 20.5.76.7

Steamer saloon steamer Earles yard left Albert Dock 6.3.75.5

'Beta' Launch of screw steamer for Smith, Hill & Co., Humphrey & Pearsons yard, 'Beta' 23.9.71.5

'Bolderas' Board of Trade inquiry into loss of S S 'Bolderas' of Hull 4.2.71.8, 11.2.71.5

'Brownlow'

Board of Trade inquiry loss of 'Brownlow' 18.10.73

Loss of steamer 'Walamo' Wilsons and 'Brownlow' 20.9.73.5

'Calcutta'

Launch new screw steam Earles yard 'Agra' for East India trade, sister ship 'Calcutta' went for trials 24.6.71.5

Launch of East Indiaman Earles yard, C M Norwood, 'Calcutta' 6.5.71.6

'Cameo' Launch of Wilson liner 'Cameo' Earles yard 13.5.76.5

'City of Rotterdam' Schooner 'City of Rotterdam' blown up after sinking opposite Albert Dock 7.6.73.5

'Clio' Inquiry into stranding of 26.1.67.4

'Colombo' Launch Humphrey & Pearson yard steamer for Wilson's 'Colombo' 21.9.72.5

'Commondouros', Supposed loss of two Hull steamers 'Commondouros', Briggs & Co. and 'Edward Hawkins', Messrs de Jersey of Manchester 20.5.71.5

'Como' Launch steamer 'Como', T Wilson, Earles yard 7.10.71.5

'Dande' New steamer launched Humphries & Pearson for Bailey & Leetham, 'Dande' 27.8.70.6

'Delos' Board of Trade inquiry stranding of steamers 'Delos' and 'Ino' 10.2.72.7

'Derby' Launch new steamer Bailey and Leetham 'Derby' Humphrey & Pearson yard 19.8.71.5

'Derwent' Launch of steamer, 'Derwent', Gilbert & Cooper yard 28.6.73.6

'Dhoolis' Board of Trade inquiry stranding of Red Cross liner 'Dhoolis' of Hull 11.7.74.6

'Dora' Trial trips of screw steamer 'Dora' to Sunderland, engines from Hull 31.5.73.5

'Dorset' Loss of Hull trading schooner Dorset 8.6.67.6

'Duke of Edinburgh' Trial trip 'Duke of Edinburgh' Trinity House yacht 14.3.74.5

'Echo', Wilson steamer, overdue after great storm 6.11.69.3

'Edward Hawkins', Supposed loss of two Hull steamers 'Commondouros', Briggs & Co. and 'Edward Hawkins', Messrs de Jersey of Manchester 20.5.71.5

'Emily Chaplin' Launch of 'Emily Chaplin' at Sunderland for Hull trade 18.9.75.5

'Empress' Launch of steamer Earles yard for Gee's, The Empress 18.7.68.6

'European'

Trial trip screw steamer 'European' Earles yard lengthened it Ringrose owned 1.5.75.5

Ringrose & Co, 50 head of cattle thrown overboard in rough sea 20.2.69.6

'Eva Fewson' Keel 'Eva Fewson' launched G Brown Yard 7.3.74.3

'Foundling' Mutiny, case of on a ship in the Humber, The Foundling 5.1.67.2

'Gamma' Launch of steamer 'Gamma' and pier boat 'Swift', Humphries and Pearson's 2.3.72.4

```
'Gem' loss of Hull schooner
                                            26.1.67.5
Individual Ships continued
         'Haining' Trial trip steamship 'Haining' screw steamer Humphreys & Pearson 21.6.73.5
         'Hapsburg' Launch of large steamer Earles yard 'Hapsburg'
                                                                        16.1.75.5
         'Hawk' Board of trade inquiry into loss of 'Hawk'
         'Herald' Loss of Hull steamer 'Herald'
                                                     16.11.72.7
         'Hercyna' Loss of 2 Hull barques Sea King 4 and Hercyna
                                                                        15.6.67.4
         'Hidalgo' Launch of Wilson steamer 'Hidalgo', Earles yard
         'Hohenstaufen' Launch steamer 'Hohenstaufen' Earles vard 27.9.73.6
         'Hohenzollern' Launch of 1st of 4 steamers for German Atlantic trade, 'Hohenzollern' Earles yard 31.5.73.5
         'Ino'
                  Launch of steamer Earle's yard for T Wilson, 'Ino'
                                                                       24.10.68.6
                 Board of Trade inquiry stranding of steamers 'Delos' and 'Ino'
                                                                                          10.2.72.7
         'Insulano' Trial of steamer, 'Insulano', Earle's yard for Bailey & Leetham
                                                                                          31.10.68.6
         'James D Dickson'
                 Launch Earles yard large steamer for Gothenberg Steam Navigation Co. 'James D Dickson'
                          5.10.72.5
                 Trial trip 'James J Dickinson' Earles yard
                                                              30.11.72.5
         'Juno'
                 Board of Trade inquiry loss of steamer, 'Juno', Wilsons
                                                                                 29.4.71.6, 6.5.71.6
                 Loss of 12.1.67.3
         'King Oscar' Disaster off mouth of the Humber S S 'Alder' and 'King Oscar' 2.10.75
         'Kingston' Launch iron keel by C D Holmes, 'Kingston' for C & W Ford of Hull
                                                                                                   19.6.69.6
         'Laura' Launch of keel 'Laura' by Mr Day for A Bannister & Co. New Holland 22.1.76.8
         'Leo' Launch of steamer, C & W Earle for T Wilson, 'Leo'
                                                                       3.4.69.6
         'Louth' Board of Trade inquiry into loss of ketch 'Louth'
                                                                       9.10.75.5
         'Memphis' Trial trip 'Memphis' steamer H Lambert chairman, Pearson manager 28.8.75.5
         'Miranda'
                 Loss of 16.3.67.2
                 Screw steamer launch at Stockton for Leetham, The Miranda 25.7.68.6
         'Mont Cenis' Trial trip Hull steamer 'Mont Cenis' for Good Bros. - at Middlesborough 27.1.72.5
         'Nautilis' Hull steamer, missing
                                             12.1.67.5
         'Niobe' launch of new steamer Richardson of Stockton for Homestealt & Garthorne
                                                                                                  27.4.67.6
         'Oberon' Launch screw steamer Humphrey & Pearson yard for George Lawson & Co. 'Oberon' 9.12.71.5
         'Onward' Loss of schooner rigged vessel 'Onward' of Hull
                                                                       6.5.71.5
         'Orthello' Launch new steamer 'Orthello', Wilson's, Earles yard
                                                                                 3.2.72.6
         'Otto' Launch of steamer Otto, Earles yard for Wilsons
                                                                        22.6.67.6
         'Ouse'
                 Details of letter loss of the 15.6.67.4
                 Loss of Hull steamer Ouse - Wilsons
                                                              8.6.67.6
         'Oxfordshire' Launch Joint Stock Co., Ltd. yard, Humber Bank Earles, steamer 'Oxfordshire' for Tindall &
            Co., London 14.10.71.6
         'Perica' Launch of barque Humphries vard 'Perica' - A Pearson of Glasgow
                                                                                          8.7.71.5
         'Peterhoff' restoration of Z Pearson blockade runner 20.4.67.2
         'Precursor' Board of Trade inquiry loss of S S 'Precursor'
                                                                        13.3.75.5, 20.3.75.6
         'Princess Alice' For sale iron steamer 'Princess Alice'
                                                                        27.9.73.1
        'Richard and Harriet' Loss of barque 'Richard and Harriet' 4.3.71.6 'Rosa' Trial trip of 1<sup>st</sup> Goole built steamer the 'Rosa' 21.8.75.5 'Rose' Steamer 'Rose' launched Sunderland for G Jinman of Hull, also building 'Thistle' for Jinman & Co.
            and one for Hammond Emes & Co. of Hull
                                                              13.5.71.5
         'Salem' Loss of ship Salem of Hull 29.6.67.6
         'Sappho'
                 Case overcrowding of Wilson liner 'Sappho'
                                                                                 30.10.69.5
                 Murder and attempted suicide in S S 'Sappho' Wilson liner
                                                                                 16.1.75.5
                                   23.1.75.6, 13.3.75.6, 20.3.75.6
                 Murder case
                  Trail and sentence 'Sappho' murder
                                                              20.3.75.5
         'Scotia' Report on the 'Scotia' new service between Hull and Dundee 10.7.75.5
         'Sea King 4' Loss of 2 Hull barques Sea King 4 and Hercyna 15.6.67.4
         'Sprite' S S 'Sprite' engines and boilers by C D Holmes
```

19.8.76.6

'St George', Launch steamer for Jinman of Hull, 'St George', Richardson Dock Yard, C D Holmes engines 2.12.71.5

# **Individual Ships continued**

'Stanley Main' wrecked off Ferriby, application by Captain for return of his ticket 5.8.76.5

'Stephenson' Launch of steamer 'Stephenson' by Gilbert & Cooper 11.5.72.7

'Swift' Launch of steamer 'Gamma' and pier boat 'Swift', Humphries and Pearson's 2.3.72.4

'Thistle' Steamer 'Rose' launched Sunderland for G Jinman of Hull, also building 'Thistle' for Jinman & Co. and one for Hammond Emes & Co. of Hull 13.5.71.5

'Twenty Two' Trial trip screw steamer 'Twenty Two', Hull to Sunderland 22.3.73.5

'Urbino' Launch of steamer 'Urbino', Wilson's, Schlesinger, Davis & Co., Wallsend 26.8.71.5

'Vanguard' Hull Guard Ship in Collision H M S 'Vanguard' sunk 4.9.75.5

'Viatka' Launch of screw steamer C & W Earle, Viatka, for Norwoods 15.6.67.6

'Viceroy' Loss of 'Viceroy' Bailey & Leetham 26.12.74

'Walamo'

Board of Trade inquiry loss of 'Walamo' 4.10.73.8 Decision in 'Walamo' case 25.10.73.5

Loss of steamer 'Walamo' Wilsons and 'Brownlow' 20.9.73.5

Ref. loss of 'Walamo' 6.12.73.3

'Winestead' Launch of 'Winestead' from Priestman's yard for Bailey & Leetham 13.5.71.5

'Yankee' Screw steamer 'Yankee' sunk at Selby 23.4.70.7

'Zeno'

Board of Trade inquiry loss of 'Zeno' 14.6.73.6

Loss of 'Zeno' inquiry 12.7.73.3

Official report loss of 'Zeno' 6.9.73.6

#### Loses

In the White Sea 6.7.67.6

Of Hull steamers, report 9.2.67.2

#### **Overloading**

Case overcrowding of Wilson liner 'Sappho' 30.10.69.5 Joseph Clay Bill to prevent overloading of ships going to sea 26.4.73.5 Leader re overloading of steamers 5.2.70.4

#### Plimsoll

C H Wilson and support for Samuel Plimsoll 16.1.75.7

Case Norwood v Plimsoll 14.6.73.5

Hedon Town Council Mr Plimsoll and seamen 22.3.73.7

Leader Mr Plimsoll and the sailors 22.3.73.5

Leader on Mr Plimsoll's visit to Hull, long account 5.4.73.6

Meeting in Hull against Mr Plimsoll's Bill 3.5.73.6

Monster meeting to be held in Hull next week, Mr Plimsoll 29.3.73.7 Mr Plimsoll's movement, action by C M Norwood MP 26.4.73.7

Mr S Plimsoll and unseaworthy ships 1.3.73.3

Report of Mr Norwood against Mr Plimsoll 15.7.76.5

Report of Plimsoll Movement 1.11.73.6

### **Ship Builders**

Brown

Keel 'Eva Fewson' launched G Brown Yard 7.3.74.3

Launch keel from G Brown yard, Wilmington, Ford's family 13.7.72.5

Day

Launch of keel 'Laura' by Mr Day for A Bannister & Co. New Holland 22.1.76.8

Earle

'Bessemer' steamer saloon steamer Earles yard left Albert Dock 6.3.75.5

C & W Earles being transferred to a joint stock company 16.9.71.5

First annual meeting Earles Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. 23.11.72.6

Launch Earles yard large steamer for Gothenberg Steam Navication Co. 'James D Dickson' 5.10.72.5

Launch Joint Stock Co., Ltd. Yard, Humber Bank Earles, steamer 'Oxfordshire' for Tindall & Co., London 14.10.71.6

Launch new screw steam Earles yard 'Agra' for East India trade, sister ship 'Calcutta' went for trials 24.6.71.5

Launch of 1st of 4 steamers for German Atlantic trade, 'Hohenzollern' Earles yard

3.2.72.6

31.5.73.5

Launch new steamer 'Orthello', Wilson's, Earles yard

Launch of 'Bessemer' steamer Earles yard 26.9.74.6

**Ship Builders continued** Launch of Czarwick's yacht Earles 5.9.74.6 Launch of East Indiaman Earles yard, C M Norwood, 'Calcutta' 6.5.71.6 Launch of large steamer Earles yard 'Hapsburg' Launch of screw steamer C & W Earle, Viatka, for Norwoods 15.6.67.6 Launch of steamer Earle's vard for T Wilson, 'Ino' 24.10.68.6 Launch of steamer Earles yard for Gee's, The Empress 18.7.68.6 Launch of steamer Otto, Earles yard for Wilsons 22.6.67.6 Launch of steamer, C & W Earle for T Wilson, 'Leo' 3.4.69.6 Launch of Wilson liner 'Cameo' Earles vard 13.5.76.5 Launch of Wilson steamer 'Hidalgo', Earles yard 27.4.72.5 Launch steamer 'Como', T Wilson, Earles yard 7.10.71.5 Launch steamer 'Hohenstaufen' Earles yard 27.9.73.6 Leader on Earles shipyard 20.1.72.5 Proposed launch of Chilean ironclad Earles yard 'Almirante Cochrane' 1.5.75.5 Report 'Bessemer' steamer Earles yard 29.8.74.6 Report Earles Shipbuilding 9.12.71.5, 25.12.75.6 Strike of engineers and moulders at Earles vard 14.9.67.4 Trial of steamer, 'Insulano', Earle's yard for Bailey & Leetham 31.10.68.6 Trial trip 'James J Dickinson' Earles vard 30.11.72.5 Trial trip screw steamer 'European' Earles yard lengthened it Ringrose owned 1.5.75.5 Visit of Czarwich to Earles yard re new yacht 29.8.74.6 Yard tenders for 10,000 bricks Gilbert & Cooper Case affairs of Gilbert & Cooper, shipbuilders 18.1.73.3, 17.5.73.5 Launch of steamer 'Stephenson' by Gilbert & Cooper 11.5.72.7 Launch of steamer, 'Derwent', Gilbert & Cooper yard 28.6.73.6 Launch steamer Bailey Bros. & Leetham in Gilbert Cooper yard, 'Argyle' 9.11.72.6 Holmes Launch iron keel by C D Holmes, 'Kingston' for C & W Ford of Hull 19.6.69.6 S S 'Sprite' engines and boilers by C D Holmes 19.8.76.6 **Humber Ironworks** Case Humber Ironworks and Witham Case Humber Ironworks, charge of false prospectus 3.7.69.6, 10.7.69.6 Meeting Humber Ironworks Co. 20.11.75.5 Report 6.6.68.6 Settlement of large claim 14.8.69.6 Humphrey & Pearson 'Peterhoff' restoration of Z Pearson blockade runner 20.4.67.2 Launch Humphrey & Pearson vard steamer for Wilson's 'Colombo' Launch new steamer Bailey and Leetham 'Derby' Humphrey & Pearson yard 19.8.71.5 Launch of screw steamer for Smith, Hill & Co., Humphrey & Pearsons yard, 'Beta' 23.9.71.5 Launch screw steamer Humphrey & Pearson yard for George Lawson & Co. 'Oberon' 9.12.71.5 Trial trip new Wilson liner 'Angelo' Humphreys & Pearson 8.8.74 Trial trip steamship 'Haining' screw steamer Humphreys & Pearson 21.6.73.5 New steamer launched Humphries & Pearson for Bailey & Leetham, 'Dande' 27.8.70.6 Launch of steamer 'Gamma' and pier boat 'Swift', Humphries and Pearson's 2.3.72.4 Launch of barque Humphries yard 'Perica' - A Pearson of Glasgow 8.7.71.5 Trial trip 'Memphis' steamer H Lambert chairman, Pearson manager 28.8.75.5 Priestman's Launch of 'Winestead' from Priestman's yard for Bailey & Leetham Richardson Launch steamer for Jinman of Hull, 'St George', Richardson Dock Yard, C D Holmes engines 2.12.71.5 Samuelson Creditors meeting re Martin Samuelson 22.3.73.8

Shipbuilding

In Hull 16.4.70.5

#### Report on Shipbuilding in the Humber 18.6.70 Strike in Hull 13.6.74.5 Ship Owners Bailey & Leetham Loss of 'Viceroy' Bailey & Leetham 26.12.74 New steamer launched Humphries & Pearson for Bailey & Leetham, 'Dande' 27.8.70.6 Trial of steamer, 'Insulano', Earle's vard for Bailey & Leetham Launch new steamer Bailey and Leetham 'Derby' Humphrey & Pearson yard 19.8.71.5 Launch of 'Winestead' from Priestman's vard for Bailey & Leetham 13.5.71.5 Launch steamer Bailey Bros. & Leetham in Gilbert Cooper yard, 'Argyle' 9.11.72.6 Screw steamer launch at Stockton for Leetham, The Miranda 25.7.68.6 Bannister & Co Launch of keel 'Laura' by Mr Day for A Bannister & Co. New Holland 22.1.76.8 **Briggs** Supposed loss of two Hull steamers 'Commondouros', Briggs & Co. and 'Edward Hawkins', Messrs de Jersey of Manchester 20.5.71.5 Hammond Emes & Co. Steamer 'Rose' launched Sunderland for G Jinman of Hull, also building 'Thistle' for Jinman & Co. and one for Hammond Emes & Co. of Hull 13.5.71.5 Ford Launch iron keel by C D Holmes, 'Kingston' for C & W Ford of Hull 19.6.69.6 Launch keel from G Brown yard, Wilmington, Ford's family 13.7.72.5 Gee's Launch of steamer Earles vard for Gee's, The Empress 18.7.68.6 Good Bros. 27.1.72.5 Trial trip Hull steamer 'Mont Cenis' for Good Bros. - at Middlesborough Jinman Launch steamer for Jinman of Hull, 'St George', Richardson Dock Yard, C D Holmes engines 2.12.71.5 Steamer 'Rose' launched Sunderland for G Jinman of Hull, also building 'Thistle' for Jinman & Co. and one for Hammond Emes & Co. of Hull 13.5.71.5 Lawson Launch screw steamer Humphrey & Pearson yard for George Lawson & Co. 'Oberon' 9.12.71.5 Norwood Launch of East Indiaman Earles yard, C M Norwood, 'Calcutta' 6.5.71.6 Screw steamer 'Ashford', C M Norwood, sunk off Whitby 12.2.70.5 Launch of screw steamer C & W Earle, Viatka, for Norwoods 15.6.67.6 Ringrose & Co 'European', Ringrose & Co, 50 head of cattle thrown overboard in rough sea 20.2.69.6 Trial trip screw steamer 'European' Earles yard lengthened it Ringrose owned Smith, Hill & Co Launch of screw steamer for Smith, Hill & Co., Humphrey & Pearsons yard, 'Beta' 23.9.71.5 Steamship owners Leader on steamship owners and supply of water 8.1.70.4 Veltman & Co. New line of steamers for, to St. Nazaire and Nantes 12.1.67.4 Ward Death of Thomas Ward, shipowner 11.1.68.6 Funeral of Thomas Ward 18.1.68.6 Report late Thomas Ward 25.1.68.5 Wilson ' 'Sappho' murder and attempted suicide in S S 'Sappho' Wilson liner 16.1.75.5 Action for damages, T Wilson, Sons & Co. Board of Trade inquiry loss of steamer, 'Juno', Wilsons 29.4.71.6, 6.5.71.6 Case overcrowding of Wilson liner 'Sappho' 30.10.69.5 Case Thomas Wilson Sons & Co. smoke nuisance 4.3.71.6 'Echo', Wilson steamer, overdue after great storm 6.11.69.3

Launch Humphrey & Pearson yard steamer for Wilson's 'Colombo'

Launch new steamer 'Orthello', Wilson's, Earles yard

Launch of steamer 'Urbino', Wilson's, Schlesinger, Davis & Co., Wallsend 26.8.71.5

Launch of steamer Earle's yard for T Wilson, 'Ino' 24.10.68.6 Launch of steamer Otto, Earles yard for Wilsons 22.6.67.6

## **Ship Owners continued**

Launch of steamer, C & W Earle for T Wilson, 'Leo' 3.4.69.6

Launch of Wilson liner 'Cameo' Earles vard 13.5.76.5

Launch of Wilson steamer 'Hidalgo', Earles yard 27.4.72.5

Launch steamer 'Como', T Wilson, Earles yard 7.10.71.5

Loss of Hull steamer Ouse - Wilsons 8.6.67.6

Loss of steamer 'Walamo' Wilsons and 'Brownlow' 20.9.73.5 Report on Wilson's New York line of Steamers 27.2.75.6

Trial trip new Wilson liner 'Angelo' Humphreys & Pearson 8.8.74

### **Smoke Nuisance**

Report on smoke nuisance on steamers 11.3.71.6

## Stockholm

New line of steamers to sail between Hull and Stockholm 15.2.73.4

## Wreck Register

For 1866 28.12.67.4 For 1867 10.10.68.4

Fatal wrecks in Humber 34 vessels ashore 12.12.74.3

#### Yacht

Launch of Czarwich's vacht 12.7.73.8 Launch of Czarwick's yacht Earles 5.9.74.6

Trial trip 'Duke of Edinburgh' Trinity House yacht 14.3.74.5 Visit of Czarwich to Earles yard re new yacht 29.8.74.6

# **Shops**

**Co-op Society** 

South Myton Co-op Society meeting 20.7.67.6, 25.1.68.6

**Early Closing** 

Drapers Early Closing 1.10.70.6

Hull Drapers Early Closing meeting 18.3.71.6 Report on Early Closing Movement in Hull 3.5.73.6

**Shop Hours** 

Meeting Lubbock Ten Hours Bill 14.6.73.5

Meeting Town Hall, Sir John Lubbock Shop Hours Bill 17.5.73.5

**Sunday Closing** 

C H Wilson on Sunday Closing Bill 25.9.75.5

# Slavery

# Slavery

Meeting

In Hull on the "Slavery" circular 9.10.75.6

Towns meeting re Admiralty Slavery circular 5.2.76.7

Report

Recent anti-slavery meeting 19.2.76.5

Letter

From Kelburne King on slaves boarding British vessels - no longer slaves with other signatures 29.1.76.4 Leader on Slavery letter 29.1.76.5

# Smuggling

# Smuggling

# Smuggling

Extensive smuggling case 18.3.76.6 Serious smuggling of tobacco case 28.8.75.5

# Sports & Games

### Billiards

Opening new billiard room, White Hart, Silver St. 9.9.71.5

Canoe

Races across the Humber 13.6.74.5

Cricket

All England cricket at Hull 10.7.69.7

Grand cricket match in Hull, North of England v South of England 4.9.75.5

Hull Town Cricket Club meeting 30.4.70.7

Match Holy Trinity choir v All Saints choir 20.5.76.3 Report Beverley Town Cricket Club 18.4.74.3

Report Hull Town Cricket Club 2.9.71.6

Table of matches Hull Town Cricket Club 5.2.76.5

Gymnasium

Wilberforce Gymnasium, Castle, St., open daily 3.6.71.4

**Recreation Ground** 

For Holderness Road 29.1.70.5

Tenders for erection of a fives court Cannon St. Recreation Ground

6.5.71.4

Tenders for erection of gymnasium Cannon St. Recreation Ground

29.4.71.4

Meeting re proposed recreation grounds in Hull 25.1.68.4

**Recreation Ground Committee** 

Meeting 16.7.70.6, 25.3.71.5, 23.9.71.6, 13.4.72.5, 17.8.72.6

**Swimming** 

Letter S Walliker on swimming baths 8.1.76.3

Report re Hull swimming baths 3.4.69.5 Report Hull Swimming Club 25.4.74.6

White City

Tenders for altering East Ella House for Robert Jameson, this later became White City, William Botterill 16.3.72.4

#### Statues & Memorials

### Statues & Memorials

**Bromby** 

Memorial window to Rev. J H Bromby in Vicar's porch Holy Trinity 31.12.70.5

Clay

Statue of James Clay to be received at the Guildhall 18.12.75.5

De la Pole

Leader on William de la Pole statue 30.7.70.4 & 5

Letter proposed statue of First Mayor of Hull, Rev. H W Kemp 28.12.67.4

Michael de la Pole statue to be presented on October 17<sup>th</sup> 7.10.71.5

W D Keyworth jun commissioned for statue of Sir William de la Pole 3.4.69.4

William De la Pole statue completed by Keyworth 16.7.70.6

William De la Pole statue presented 25.6.70.5

Gravill

Movement to erect a monument to Captain Gravill 30.11.67.6

**Holy Trinity** 

New memorial window at Holy Trinity west side south transept 11.3.71.6

Hunt

Memorial for Rev. J W Hunt ex vicar of St. James, Hull 28.10.76.5

Marvel

Inaugural address Lit & Phil ref. to Marvel statue presented 12.11.70.6

Presentation of Marvel statue 2.11.67.6 Report on Andrew Marvel statue 14.9.67.6

Statue of Andrew Marvel for Town Hall 15.6.67.6

Norwood

Erection of a tablet in St. Stephen's church to mother of C M Norwood, MP 20.4.72.5

**Prince Consort** 

Arrangements for unveiling of Prince Consort statue 3.10.68.6

Inauguration of Prince Consort statue in Pearson Park 10.10.68.6&3

Meeting proposed statue of Prince Consort 18.1.68.2

Prince Consort Memorial Committee meeting 18.4.68.7

Plans to unveil Prince Consort statue 26.9.68.6 Table of donations for Prince Consort statue 25.1.68.1

Scott

Memorial contemplated to the Rev. Thomas Scott, Bible Commentator, in St. Mary's, Lowgate 24.10.68.6

Skelton

Reported death of Mr Skelton, organist of Holy Trinity, proposed memorial 20.3.69.5

Streets

See also ROADS

Advert

Street cries of Hull 2.2.67.4

Alexandra Rd

Cottingham Local Board 19.6.76.5

Beverley Rd.

Works Committee meeting Beverley Rd. improvement 27.7.67.4

**Boulevard** 

Contract for new Boulevard between Anlaby Road and Humber Bank, drainage, etc. 17.6.71.1

Hull Local Board of Health meeting Includes Garbutt's Boulevard scheme 2.1.75.6

Leader on projected boulevard 30.7.70.4&5

Proposed Boulevard for Hull, Mr Garbutt 19.9.74.5

**Bridlington** 

Plan to erect Catholic Church at Bridlington in new street laid out by Mr Travis from Chapel St. 13.9.73.6

**Chestnut Ave** 

Cottingham Local Board Meeting Includes widening of Chestnut Ave. 15.6.67.7

**Church Side** 

Improvement letter 19.6.75.3

Day St.

Letter on drainage of Day St. 13.3.69.5

Dock Side

Meeting Dockside Improvement Committee 29.11.73.6

Meeting Dock Side improvement 8.11.73.6, 15.11.73.5

Report Dockside Improvement Scheme 17.1.74.5

**Hedon Rd** 

Human leg found on Hedon Rd 18.12.75.5

**Improvements** (general)

Leader on Hull street improvements 30.8.73.6

Leader on proposal to widen and improve some of the principal thoroughfares in Hull 15.2.73.4

Jennings St.

Tenders for flagging, curbing and channelling Jennings St. 13.7.72.4

Lime Street

Report on Lime Street improvements 10.12.70.6

**New Streets** 

East Sculcoates Ward and proposed new street from Prospect St to Jarrett St. 23.8.73.5

Leader on C R Lambert and new street from Beverley Road to Church St. 13.11.69.4

Letter on new street South Church Side and new Holy Trinity vicarage 15.1.70.7

Meeting re new street from Carlisle St. to Dock Offices 18.10.73.7

Opening of new streets in Hull - Lincoln, Swann, Oxford, for John Swann 2.5.68.4

Request for 1000 sq. yard. of land for a new street 17.10.74.5

**New Towns Improvement Committee** 

Meeting

New street from Whitefriargate to South End 26.7.73.8

Re proposed communication between Carr Lane and Osborne St. 3.5.73.7

Princes Avenue

Leader on Mr Garbutt, Hull builder, Princes Avenue 28.10.71.4

Mr Garbutt's improvement scheme, Princes Ave. 12.9.74.5

Opening Princes Bank Avenue, long account 3.4.75.6

**Property Committee** 

Meeting

Proposed promenade at South End 19.3.70.6

Proposed promenade 5.2.70.6

Queen's Road

Cottingham Local Board meeting, street construction of Queens Road 18.4.74.3

£2.7.6 a foot for making Queen's Road 14.10.76.5

St. Mary's Alley

Condition of St. Mary's Alley 3.4.69.6

## Streets

**Swann Estate** 

Opening of new streets in Hull - Lincoln, Swann, Oxford, for John Swann 2.5.68.4

Whitefriargate

Meeting re paving of Whitefriargate 25.7.74.3

To be paved in wood next week 13.5.76.5

Works Committee meeting Re Whitefriargate paving 17.6.76

Whitefriargate Bridge

Report on plan to widen street from Whitefriargate Bridge to Wellington St. 1.11.73.6

# **Strikes**

**Bricklayers** 

Strike of bricklayers' labourers 17.4.75.5

Threatened strike in Hull bricklayers labourers 10.4.75.5

Carpenters

Strike of Hull carpenters 11.4.68.6

**Dock Labourers** 

Case dock labourers strike 27.4.72.5

Strike of dockside labourers 30.3.72.5

**Engine Drivers** 

And fireman on strike, N E Railway 20.4.67.3

Cases 4.5.67.7

Long account 27.4.67.5

Refs. to 11.5.67.6

**Engineers** 

Strike in Hull 23.5.74.5

Strike of engineers and moulders at Earles yard 14.9.67.4

**Fireman** 

And engine drivers on strike, N E Railway 20.4.67.3

Gasmen

Case disturbances among Hull gasmen 14.12.72.6

**Joiners** 

Letter on 6.4.67.5

End of joiners strike, Hull 28.9.72.5

Hull master joiners and employers after strike, and case 22.6.67.6

Strike of joiners 22.4.76.5

Labourers

Strike of labourers at Hessle 13.4.72.8

**Letter on** 12.1.67.3

Shipyard

Strike of engineers and moulders at Earles yard 14.9.67.4

Case strike at Humphreys & Pearson shipyard 28.1.71.8, 11.2.71.6

Tailors

Strike in London, meeting of workmen in Hull 24.8.67.6

**Whale Fishers** 

Strike of whale fishers at Dundee 23.1.69.2

### **Temperance**

# **Temperance**

# **British Workman Pubs**

Opening British Workman Pub in Driffield 13.4.72.7

Inauguration of British Workman pub in Hull 31.12.70.5

Leader on British Workman pubs in Hull 12.11.70.4&5

First anniversary British Workman No. 1, pubs without drink 13.1.72.5

Report British Workman No. 2 18.11.71.5

## Meeting

Great meeting in support of intemperance in Hull 22.4.76.6

Great Temperance meeting at Cottingham, C H Wilson, Overton, and Rev. Charles Garrett

5.12.74.6

Hull teetotal meeting 11.12.69.6

In Hull 9.11.67.6, 27.2.75.3

## **Temperance Hall**

Reopening Mytongate Temperance Hall 23.9.71.5

## **Temperance Library**

Meeting to form a Temperance Library in Hull, at Mr Wray's School, Norwood St. 26.10.72.5

Report Hull Temperance and General Library 11.4.74.5

Report Hull Temperance Library 8.3.73.5

## **Theatres**

# **Theatres**

**Opening** 

New theatre, Hull2.12.71

Queen's Royal

Report on new theatre building for Sefton Parry in Paragon St. to be Queen's Royal Theatre 10.6.71.5

Queen's

Theatre sold by auction 16.7.70.6

**Temporary** 

Proposed temporary theatre in Hull 21.8.69.6

Theatre Royal

Destroyed by fire, Humber St. Madame Restori at Theatre Royal 26.7.73.6

Mr and Mrs Kendall at the Theatre Royal. Later Dame Madge Kendall, born Grimsby later lived in Hull 5.12.74.5

where her father was lessee of theatre in Humber St. Theatrical career began in Hull

Reopening of Hull Theatre Royal 9.9.76.5

# **Towns & Villages**

Bridlington

Local Sketches Run by Rail to Bridlington 5.7.73.6

Meeting Bridlington to form Harbour of Refuge 4.3.71.7

Cleethorpes

Local Sketches II Trip to Cleethorpes 7.5.73.6

Hornsea

First pile of new Hornsea Pier driven 8.6.72.7 Letter on Hornsea improvements 21.8.69.4, 28.8.69.5 Local Government inquiry at Hornsea 30.11.72.6

Hull

Christmas festivities in Hull public institutions 30.12.76.6

Christmas in Hull Institutions 26.12.74

Christmas week in Hull 18.12.75.6

Report from The Architect magazine, Out Rambler in Hull (Hull buildings) 14.1.71.7

Report on Christmas in Hull 23.12.71.6

Whitsuntide in Hull 10.6.76.7

**Local Gossip** 

A regular feature 27.2.75.6

**Local Sketches** 

I 31.5.73.6

**Spurn** 

Case removal of shingle from Spurn 7.8.69.6

Withernsea

Improvements planned for Withernsea 13.4.72.7

Report on Withernsea new pier 27.2.75.6

Wolds

A Ride on the Yorkshire Wolds 25.7.74.3

## Trade Unions and Work

**Agricultural Labourers** 

Abolition of Statute Hirings at Driffield 25.12.75.8

Leader on wages 2.3.72.4, 9.3.72.4

Meeting at Patrington 23.3.72.6

And letter from Charles Lambert 2.3.72.7

Meeting Hessle 16.3.72.7

**Dockside Labourers** 

Wages movement among dockside labourers 20.7.72.5

Driffield

Abolition of Statute Hirings at Driffield 25.12.75.8

Great labour meeting at Driffield 24.2.72.7 Labour meeting at Driffield 7.11.74

Hessle

Meeting of Hessle working men 2.3.72.3

Hirings

Abolition of Statute Hirings at Driffield 25.12.75.8

Intimidation

Case of intimidation by workmen at Earle's yard, long account 6.6.68.4

Labourer's League

Meeting Labourer's League, Brigg 22.5.75.8

Labourers

Meeting at Hedon 5.4.73.7

Meeting Barton labourers and their wages 23.3.72.7

Notice labourers of Ulceby have formed a protection society 6.4.72.1

Leven

Adjourned meeting of working men at Leven 24.2.72.7

Meeting working men at Leven 10.2.72.3

**Platelayers** 

Meeting General Union Platelayers 24.1.75.5

Trade Unionism

Report on Trade Unionism in Hull 4.1.67

Letter Trade Unions and strikes 6.5.76.3

In Hull 2.11.67.6

Hull United Trades Union meeting 17.8.67.6

Work

Case refusing to work, Pocklington 24.4.75.7

**Working Classes** 

Window gardening for the working classes 18.5.67.4

**Working Man** 

Adjourned meeting of working men at Leven 24.2.72.7

Meeting working men at Leven 10.2.72.3

Leader on strength and weakness of the working man 27.4.67.4

Letter Mr Billany and the Working Man 2.12.76.5

Meeting of Hessle working men 2.3.72.3

Letter from John Cherry to my brother workmen in Hull - political 17.10.68.5

## **Transport**

# **Transport**

# See Also RAILWAYS, ROADS, SHIPPING

# Cabmen

Letter for cabmen's shelter, T F Hewitt 14.3.74.2

Hull Board of Guardians meeting Re cabmen's shelters 20.5.76.5

Letter on cabmen's rests 23.1.75.3

Letter on cabmen's shelter in Park St 19.2.76.3

Opening of cabmen's shelter No. 2 3.4.75.6

Opening Park Street cabmen's shelter 11.3.76.5

Report Hull cabmen's shelters 24.7.75.4

## Cartmen

Master Cartmen and Rulleymens Association Meeting
Hull as it may be - letter on carrier's carts in Mytongate
20.6.74.2
23.1.69.5

# **Tramways**

Hull Street Tramways Bill 3.7.75.6

Hull Tramways Bill 8.6.72.5

Meeting proposed trams for Hull 11.11.71.5, 18.11.71.6

Report Hull tramways 20.3.75.5 Report on Hull trams 26.12.74

Report to promote trams in Hull 27.4.72.5

Tramways Committee Meeting 18.5.72.6, 2.8.73.5

### Velocipede

£7 velocipede for 21/-, 30-31 Dagger Lane 29.6.72.1

Letter on velocipedes 17.7.69

Velocipede lately arrived in Hull 9.3.72.5

# **Trinity House**

'Duke of Edinburgh'

Trial trip 'Duke of Edinburgh' Trinity House yacht 14.3.74.5

**Charity Commissioners** 

New scheme for Hull Trinity House Charity Commissioners 3.7.75.6

**Charity Inspector** 

Visit of charity inspector to Trinity House 4.7.74.5

**Zachary Pearson** 

Elected assistant at Trinity House 11.4.74.5

# Wars

# Abyssinia

Letter from East Riding soldier in Abyssinia 30.5.68.4

# Franco-Prussian

Letter from T F Hewitt on French wounded in Franco-Prussian War 3.9.70.5

Table of donations sick and wounded in Franco-Prussian War and leader 17.9.70.4

Towns meeting sick and wounded of war 24.9.70.6

# Serbo-Turkish

Towns meeting re Bulgarian atrocities 9.9.76.5 Fund opened for Sufferers in the East 21.10.76.7

## Water

### **Anlaby**

Report on water supply of Anlaby 16.3.72.5

# **Beverley Waterworks**

Bill proposed new Beverley Waterworks 25.4.74.3

Meeting Beverley Corporation re Waterworks for Beverley 23.1.75.6

Opposition to new Beverley Waterworks Bill 6.6.74.3

### Dale

Biographical sketch of late Thomas Dale, waterworks engineer at Hull, native of Daventon, Cheshire. Author of On the Supply of Water from the Lake Districts of Cumberland and Westmoreland, published Hull 1866 10.7.75.6

### Driffield

Ratepayers meeting re water supply and sewage 11.5.72.7

Report on defective and impure water supply of Driffield 13.4.72.7

Report on Driffield water 2.8.73.6

### Hull

Leader Hull without water 1.6.72.5

Report on management of Hull Waterworks 19.9.74.6

Water Bill read a third time on Tuesday 10.8.72.4

### Newington

Water in Newington district 5.4.73.5

#### Newland

Cottingham Local Board Newland supply of water 11.7.74.3

### Sewage

Driffield Ratepayers meeting re water supply and sewage 11.5.72.7

Meeting important to Cottingham, sewage 28.2.74.5

# Springhead

Leader on Springhead water supply 18.3.71.5

Meeting proposed new engine house, Springhead 8.11.73.7

Report increased supply of Springhead water 4.3.71.5

Report Mr Dale's works at Springhead 11.3.71.7

Report of unsafe Springhead water supply 10.6.71.5

Report Springhead water supply 3.7.69.6

Trial new steam engine Springhead Waterworks, details of engine 29.1.76.5

### Stoneferry

Trail new fire extinguisher at Stoneferry Waterworks 21.5.70.6

#### Warden

Leader on Mr Warden and Springbank 25.3.71.4

Leader on treatment of Mr Warden 1.4.71.4

Letter on Mr Warden 20.2.69.7 Mr Wardens claims 26.3.70.6

Warden Inquiry Committee Meeting 4.7.68.4

Warden Remuneration Committee Meeting 9.4.70.6, 5.8.71.5

#### Water Closet

Case of wasting water, Lime St., Groves, occupant has a water closet 6.5.71.5

## Water Supply

Enteric fever At Hull and intermittent water supply 16.1.75.5

Hull Town Council Hull water supply 1.6.72.6

Leader on proposed increase in water supply 6.8.70.4

Meeting water supply in Hull 26.6.75.6

Ratepayers meeting And Hull water supply 10.8.72.6

Report on water supply, Hull 13.1.72.6, 23.3.72.6

Table of townsmen dissatisfied with water supply 27.7.72.1

# Waterworks Committee

Meeting (reported regularly) 12.1.67.2

1<sup>st</sup> meeting new Waterworks Committee 10.10.74.6

Dispute with Mr Musgrove 25.11.76.6

Property Committee meeting re old Waterworks Committee 1.10.70.6

# Water

Re mismanagement 9.11.67.6

**Waterworks Committee continued** 

Re Waterworks Bill, threatened resignation of Mayor of Hull 4.5.72.6

Resignation of Waterworks Committee 3.10.74.5

Stormy meeting, long account re water supply of Hull 25.5.72.6

**Waterworks Enquiry Committee** 

Meeting 13.12.73.5, 11.12.75.7

Waterworks

Hull Town Council and Waterworks, leader 6.4.67.5

Hull Waterworks and Fenianism 4.1.68.7

## Weather

# Weather

### Flood

Public meeting sufferers in late flood in Hull15.2.68.4

Table of donations to flood victims 22.2.68.1

Gale and floods sawmill blown down in Gibson St. 20.11.75.5

Serious gale and floods in Hull 20.11.75.3

Gale

And floods sawmill blown down in Gibson St. 20.11.75.5

Casualties to Hull smacks in late gale 2.10.75.3

Disastrous gale on East coast 22.4.76.3

Drowned at sea, C H Atkinson and Walter Hunter off smack in a gale 25.1.68.7

Serious gale and floods in Hull 20.11.75.3

Storm

Dreadful storm at Hull and district, smacks lost 7.12.67.6

Report Hornsea lifeboat and recent storm 16.11.72.7

Serious damage done to Kingston Cotton Mill during storm 8.6.67.4

Heavy local storms 30.12.76.3

Weather

Report in 1869 8.1.70.5

For Hull and District 19.1.67.3

### Whaling

# Whaling

'Cornhill'

The Cornhill, on the voyage of the Diana 1.6.67.5

'Diana'

Arrival in Hull of the Diana and Intrepid 27.4.67.5

Arrived at Lerwick 27.3.69.6

Funeral of Captain Gravill of the Diana 4.5.67.7

Presentation to Charles Edwin Smith, surgeon of the Diana 17.8.67.6

'Diana' Relief Fund Committee meeting 9.3.67.2

Report on Diana Fund 6.7.67.6

Sale by auction of Truelove and Diana 30.11.67.6 The Cornhill, on the voyage of the Diana 1.6.67.5

Entertainment in aid of crew 12.1.67.4

Whaler 'Diana' left Hull on Tuesday morning for Davis Straits 6.3.69.6

Gravill

'Diana' Funeral of Captain Gravill of the Diana 4.5.67.7 Movement to erect a monument to Captain Gravill 30.11.67.6

Greenland

News 2.5.68.7

'Intrepid'

Arrival in Hull of the Diana and Intrepid 27.4.67.5

'Truelove'

Report on the voyage of the Truelove 2.11.67.4 Sale by auction of Truelove and Diana 30.11.67.6

Smith

Presentation to Charles Edwin Smith, surgeon of the Diana 17.8.67.6

### Women

# Women

**Court Case** 

Hull man selling his wife west side of Queen's Dock 16.3.72.5

**Lying-in Charity** 

Meeting Hull Lying-in Charity 12.10.67.6

**Prostitution** 

Brothel case, Bourne St. 13.9.73.5

Case disorderly houses and the police 10.6.71.5

Court case house of ill fame 22.8.74.5 Disorderly house case in Hull 20.5.71.6

Fatal accident in Hull brothel - pensioner in Trundle St. 7.3.68.4

Rape

Case, Cottingham 16.3.72.7

Suffrage

Women's suffrage meeting at Royal Institution 10.10.74.5

**Temporary Home for Fallen Women** 

Meeting 11.3.76.5

Report on 12.10.67.6

Report, long account 22.2.73.5

Vicar of Ingoldmells

Charged with immorality with a female, Edwards 30.5.68

Charged with immorality with two women - had one leg amputated 6.6.68.8